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TESCO at a glance

A A S Y

Highlights® UK Asia

£72.4bn

Group sales

+1.3%

Group sales growth

£43.6bn £2,272m | £11.5bn £661m

Revenue? Trading profit Revenue* Trading profit

+1.8% T(8d.?>)‘:/o :6.0% qu‘sr)%

Revenue i
£ 2 .0 bn growth* growth growth® growth

Group profit before tax 313,885 1st 125,797 15t or znd

colleagues market positioning colleagues in three markets
(14.5)%

Underlying profit 3,1 46 Around TOM 2 ,1 31 Around 20mM

loyalty scheme

T stores loyalty scheme stores
before tax members

members

(14.0)%

Underlying diluted
earnings per share™t

14.76p

* Plan to ‘Builld a Better Tesco’ on frack
with iImprovements made 1o our offer
and mare to come n 2013114

* Year-on-year profit performance reflects
UK reinvestment

* Strong progress m our online grocery
business with sales growing by 12 8%

* Growing our portfolio of businesses
by investing in WE?, Mobcast, Giraffe,
Harns + Hoole and Euphorium

+ Regulatory chatlenges in South Korea
held back profit growth

¢ Successhully launched enline grocery
bussnesses in Thailand and Malaysia

« Expanded our convenience store business
in Thaland to over 1,115 stores

Full year dividend per
share maintained

* Alltghhghts reported on a continuing operations basis, excluding the United States and Japan which have
been treated as disconunued
** See glossary on the inside back cover for full accounting definittons

t Calculated on a tonstant tax rate basss
* Excludes the accounting impact of IFRIC 13




As one of the world'’s largest retailers,
with over 530,000 colleagues, we
serve millions of customers a week
In our stores and online

Europe Tesco Bank

£9.3bn £329m £1.0bn £191m

Revenuet Trading profit Revenue* Trading profit

(5.5)% (37.8)% | (2.2)% (15.1)%

Revenue Trading profit Revenue Trading profit
growth® growth growth? growth
st nd
94,712 1tor2 3,390 £6.0bn
colleagues in five markets colleagues savings deposits
1 ,507 Over /M 6.6m
stores loyalty scherme customer accounts
members

» Customers affected by severe economic * Successfully transferred all of our

conditions customers onto our own platforms
* Slovakia and Hungary proved more resihent + Launched our first range of mortgage
* Successfully launched online grocery products in August

businesses, now in all of our Central » Launched ISAs and Junior ISAs in

European markets November
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Chairman’s statement

-

Sir Richard Broadbent Chairman

“It has been a year of addressing long-standing
business issues, bedding in management and
governance change, and laying the foundations
for sustainable future growth In all these
areas | believe the Company has responded
with energy, skill and application and we have
made progress ”

» Visit www tescople com/ar201% (o hear
maore from Sir Richard Broadbent and
other members of the leadership team

This ime last year, i referred to the business going through
a transition and said

"We witl continue in 2012/13 to address long-standing business
1ssues in the UK and elsewhere i order to secure future prosperity
as well as ensuring that our financial and human resources are
developed and deployed where they are able most effectively

to generate future growth and returns ™

This ts what has been done It has been a year of addressing leng-
standing business issues, bedding in management and governance
change, and laying the foundations for sustainable future growth

In all these areas | believe the Company has responded with energy,
skill and apphicatton and we have made progress

Business issues

One of the greatest challenges for a business s to face itself
honestly It 1s also the mark of a quality business that it can do so,
since the capacaty to name 1ssues s the essential first step towards
addresstng them

The decisions to seek a sale of the US business and to call an end

to the UK space race in large stores reflect this As wath the decision
last year to rainvest in our UK busimess, they reflected a long, hard
look at where the business needs to devote 1ts energy and resources
to create sustainable value, and a willingness to face up to tough
decisions to do this

Some of these deasions had painful short-term conseguences

The early signs are that the decision to reinvest in the UKs
strengthenung the business and we believe the steps we have

taken in the US and in respect to UK property will stmifarly underpin
a sustainable, profitable future, notwithstanding the accounting
write-downs we have had to take this year as a consequence

Bedding in management and governance change

The year has also seen a generational transition in management
This 1s not a surprise when there has been a refatvely unchanged
management tearm in place for a substantial time and we are
fortunate in Tesco to have a substanval depth of talent to draw on
from around the world it 15 striking how many of the executives
taking on new and enhanced responsibilities bring internauional as
well as extensive UK expenence to their roles, reflecting the breadth
of Tesco's business

A largely new Executive Committee has been developed under

Philip Clarke’s leadership Many talented, and widely expenenced,
younger executives are getting to grips with new responsibilities

with skill and enthusiasm Sirmlarly in the UK business, a substantially
new leadership team with a wide diversity of expenence and skills

15 10 place under a new Managing Director
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Chairman’s statement continued

The Board also has been reshaped dunng the year We now have

a smaller Board, of ten, with a different balance of Executives and
Non-executives Three Executive Directors — Andrew Higginsan,
Tim Mason and Lucy Newille-Roife — have left the Board since our last
Annual Report and we are grateful for all that they have contnbuted
to Tesco over many years The Group Executive Committee rather
than the Board 1s now the focus of operational business oversight,
allowing the Board te focus on a more strategic agenda

We have also seen Karen Cook and Ken Hydon, two long-serving
Non-executives, retire after nine years on the Board and we extend
our thanks to them for their contnbutions Liv Garfield, Chref
Executive of BT Openreach, jomed the Board as a Non-executive
Director on t Apnl 2013

Laying the foundations for future growth

As immedate operational business issues are addressed, our
attention can turn increasingly to the strategic judgements that wilt
deterrine Tesco’s prospenty and value for shareholders over the
next decade Our strategic choices are defined by three parameters
the strength of the Tesco brand, the internet and all the associated
developrents 1t 1s drving, and the potential to leverage our skalt and
scale internationally

All retailers must decide how to position therr businesses relative

to the rapid development of the internet which, together with social
media, 15 changing both how consumers choose to shop and what
they expect from a retailer that aspires to serve thern This creates
both opportunities and challenges which Teseo needs to understand
and respond te, both in terms of offering rmore diverse ways for
customers to shop and by forging more personal, customised
relationskips with tts customers

Internationally, we have the potential to create value for shareholders
by leveraging our skifl and scale into relapively bugh-growth econormies
with less well-developed retail sectors The key to unlocking thus

value 1s disciphne in how opportunities are approached and flexibility,

drawing on the dessons of experience, m how they are developed

At the sarme time, and drven by many of the same factors,
brand and reputation will becorme ever more cntical points of
differentiation as the internet continues to broaden access and
choice for consumers, and as consumers themselves develop
expectations about fevels of choice, service and, increasingly,
behaviours that match their own values and aspirations

Against thus background, the inwvestment choices we make over
the next few years as we develop Tesco as an international
multichannel retailer with strong brands and a distinctive identity
apprecated by customers, are and will continue to be critical
Judgements for the Board as it seeks to secure long-term returns
for shareholders

We wilt approach these chowes within a framework of ngorous
capital discipline A company like Tesco will often appear to have
multiple short-term opporturuties to invest, but sustamed returns
depend on a rigorous judgement about both the quantum and
allocation of capital over ime As we made clear in our Preliminary
Results announcement :n Aprd, this s a disapline that now informs
ali that we do

Financral resuits

The financial results for the year reflected the steps being taken

to ensure that we can deliver sustainable and attractive returns and
long-term growth for shareholders Hence, while we continued

to see sales growih, of 1 3%, Group trading profit was down (13 0)%
on last year and underlying profit before tax down by (14 5)%,
reflecting our previously announced investment in the shopping trip
for custormers in the UK, i addition to the impact of regulatory
restrictions on opening hours in South Korea and the effects of
detenorating economuc canditions, partcutarly in Central Europe
Statutory profit before tax felf by (51 5)%, due to the impact of a
nurnber of sigrificant but one-off charges related to the important
steps we are taking to reshape the business, including & wnte-down
of aur UK property following an m-depth review of our forward
pipeline, our exit from the US and geodwall impairment of businesses
in Poland, Czech Republic, arid Turkey

Return on capital employed (*ROCE’) decreased dunng the year

as expected, reflecting the impact of the dechine in trading profit
as described above Prior to the impact of one-off charges, Group
ROCE was 12 7% We contimued ourlong record of strong dividend
payouts to sharehotders, with the full year dvidend maintamed
at14 76p

| would fike to extend my thanks, on behalf of the Board, to everyone
i Tesco who i an exceptionaf year has, as always, styiven to
antiupate and meet the needs of our customers while all the time
retaming a sense of perspective, sometimes a sense of humour and
always a sense of respect for others They are a great group of
people and we are fucky to have them

‘At

Sir Richard Broadbent Charrman
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“I've worked in retailing for
nearly 40 years but never
in that time has there been
a penod of such profound
and rapid change as | see
today. The digital age I1s
transforming not just the
way people shop, but also
the way they live therr lives ”

P Visit www tescople comiar2013 to hear
mare from Philip Clarke and other
members of the leadership team

e
Repgrt from the Chief Executive

Philip Clarke Chief Executive

| am pleased to have this opportunity to report on the past year, during which we have taken
some significant business decisions and laid down some smportant building blocks for the future

1 will share my perceptions of the year under the following headings

» The wider context — adapting to lead the digital future
* The busmess tn 2012/13 — & year of transition

* Setting finanaial disciplines for the future

+ Driving future growth and returns

e Culture

+ Management

The wider context — adapting to lead the digital future

It has been clear for some time that we are seeing a seismic shift in our Industry and its pace
I1s accelerating In 2012 global e-commerce actvity reached $1 tnilhien P've worked i retailing
for nearly 40 years but never in that time has there been a period of such profeund and rapid
change as | see today The digital age 1s transforming not just the way people shop, but also
the way they live their lives

The opportunities this is creating are exciting It provides the potentsal for Tesco to make
customers’ hives easier, to enable them to shop in whichever way suits them best, and it
enables us to offer them new products and services

This plays to our strengths Smce Tesco was founded, we have always been pioneers and
innovators in retalling Qur central focus, our culture, 1s and has been to lead in understanding
and delvering what customers want, in the way they want i, at the ume they want it

Umguely among our peers, we have a profitable dotcom grocery business From drive-
through Grocery Click & Collect in the UK to our virtual shopping walls on the subway in
South Korea, we are introducing excating innovations to improve the customer shopping

tnp Thanks to Clubcard and dunnhumby we have urique insights into how our customers’
behawviour 1s changing Qur new conversation with custamers — threugh a vanety of channels
~ 15 about listening to what they want, to how they're living therr lives today, and then
adapting and building the business accordingly as we have said for years, ‘Every Little Helps'
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Report from the Chief Executive continued

“A truly multichannel
business — one which offers
customers the ability to
shop anywhere, anyhow
and any time —will be more
lkkely to become a winner
In the new era than one
which concentrates purely
on one channel or another”

So we are exceptionally well-placed to thrive in this new era of retailing However, to grasp
the opportunity we must adapt because it will require a different type of business, with
a different type of relationship with our customers, and a new set of capabilities

We have already begun this process of adaptation

Avyear ago, | signalled the end of the space race and a change in focus | ndicated that our
future investment would be less about new large stores, and that it would be more focused
on multichannel retailing and on smaller formats

Avyear on, | am even more certam that this s the nght approach for us to take The future of
retailing 1s multichannel because, in this increasingly complex and volatile world, consumers
are looking for ssmphcity and for brands they can trust A truly multichannel business — one
which offers customers the ability to shop anywhere, anyhow and any time — will be maore
hikely to become awinner in the new era then one which concentrates purely on one channel
or another

Our stores are a wital part of thus multichannel wision Tesco has a superb portfolio of well-
located stores in all of our markets, but adapting to a digital future means harnessing this
great asset to the changing requirements of the digital age This will require rethinking how
we use the space in our stores, how we offer and delver what we sell, how we interface with
our custormers and much else besides | wall return to the speafics of what we are doing

in some of these areas below

The business in 2012/13 - a year of transition
This year's performance was principally the result of three things in combination

* the decision we took in early 2012 to reset our margin inthe UK and invest £1 billion
In improving our offer for customers,

* the continuing economic challenges our customers around the world are faang,
particularly in and around the Eurozone, and

* the impact of legislation restricting opening hours 1n South Korea, our largest market
outside the UK

1 have reflected on the work we have done over the first two years of my tenure as CEQ and
it 5 clear to me that much of our effort has been about removing barriers to progress The
business has delivered many years of growth and goad returns, but was in danger of being
inhibited from further sustainable progress by an attachment to initiatives and strategies
which, while they served us well in the past, need to be adapted to deliver growth in a more
economically challenged and rapidly changing world

Consequently we have had to tackle a number of 1ssues which needed to be addressed
before we could move the business forward Tius work has entailed some tough and at tmes
painful decisions and while 1t 1s not finished, | am confident we have already tackled the
biggyest issues

These changes were often difficult to face up to, complex to implement and they have
required a great deal of hard work by many pecple, some of whom have been directly
affected by the decisions By way of reminder, in a little over 18 months we have

1 Deaded to exit markets in which we saw no prospect of acceptable investment returns
m an approprtate time frame - Japan and the United States,

2 Dewvised and progressed the comprehensive £1 billion tvestment plan to ‘Build a Better
Tesco’ in the UK, resetting our margins to fund the scale and pace of change reguired,

3 Putan end to the big store space race — placing a much greater emphasis on growth
through bath digital and convenience retailing, wherever we operate,

4 Reviewed our entire UK property pipeline to ensure i1t 1s appropriate for our future needs
and valued accordingly Going forward this will mean less capital commitment (o property
development and also less asset divestment,

5 Reflected the new globaf economic reality by reviewing and moderating the rate of
expansion in some farge economues such as China and sharply reduced spending in some
of our European markets, and

6 Focused Tesco Bank on the smooth migration of customer accounts to our platforms,
strong governance, nsk management and increasingly on prepanng it for its key role
in our mulbichannel future
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These decisive actions are necessary in order to ensure sustamnable longer-term growth

l am acutely aware that withdrawing from the US and wniting down the value of property
developments no longer appropnate for the future have had a significant impact It s time
to act and | believe this work has cleared the way for the business now to move forward

Having tackled these 1ssues, Tesco 15 a more focused business, which can apply all of its
considerable resources and energies to meetng the challenges and grasping the opporturunies
created by the changes taking place in our industry today These actions may have been the
most visible, and therefore the most tangible, signs of change to the outside world but within
Tesco we've been making other important changes to prepare the business for the future —
putting it on track for sustainable growth and returns

Setting financial disciplines for the future

Nat only have we started on the journey of transforming our business to enable it to move
forward as a leader in the new digital world, we are alse fundamentally changing the
financial profile of the Group

The Tesco of the future will pursue more focused growth, consume less capital and generate
more free cash flow Malang this transformation in all its aspects will of course not be
without its chalfenges — and the clearest evidence of this can be seen in the first reduction

n profits of the Group for two decades, which we reported onin April

Everything we are domg reflects my determunation to deliver sharehaolder value, an
appropniate balance between investing for future growth, and delivering sustamnable returns
for our shareholders | want to be very clear if there 15 one lesson to be learned from the
past it is the importance of capital discipline and thes marks the start of a new era of capital
discapline in Tesco

We are confident we can dehver attractive and sustainable returns within a framework where
capital expenditure falls to around 3 5% to 4% of sales

For cur mvestors, this means they can expect mud-single digit trading profit growth and
return on capital employed within a range of 12% to 15%

The fundamental change in our approach to new space | descrnibed earhier also has implications
for our sale and leaseback programme Two years ago, we reviewed the programme and
announced a steady reduction it the level of divestrnents, in order to ensure that any property
profits refeased were matched to the level of new profit created by development activities
Grven that we have significantly reduced the amount of these activities going forward,

we believe that it 1s appropniate to accelerate the scaling back of the sale and leaseback
programme, such that it1s unlikety to make a matenal contnibution after the next few years

The outcomes which we have laid out for investors will be achieved through disciplimed
Investrment, focused on those existing markets where we see the best opportunity for
significant growth and returns

Driving future growth and returns

For me as your CEQ, driving sustainable growth within this new financial framework 1s about
three prionities These are not new areas for us but they each have the capacity to be the
engmes of growth for the Group for years to come

() Continue to strengthen the UK business
{1} Drive sustanable growth through multicharnel leaderstup
{n) Pursue disciphined internationat growth

Whilst the past year has not been without some significant challenges, we have made
progress on these prionties

“Everything we are doing
reflects my determination
to deliver shareholder value,
an appropriate balance
between investing for
future growth, and
delivering sustainable
returns for our shareholders”
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Report from the Chief Executive continued

“Having grasped the nettle
and decided to reinvest in
the UK business in early 2012,
we have seen a pleasing
response from customers
—and consequently the
performance of the business
Is now markedly better”

( Continue to strengthen the UK bustness

Ayear ago we annouriced a plan to ‘Buid a Beiter Tesco' in the UK In fast year’s Annual
Report | described how getting our business at home back to leading was the single most
important objective for Tesco Having grasped the nettle and decaded to reinvest in the UK
business in early 2012, we have seen a pleasing response from customers — and conseguently
the performance of the business is now markedly better The ‘Buiding a Better Tesco' plan
1s firmly on track

| am proud of the work our teams have done to improve the look and feel of certain stores,
to develop new products and to reformulate existing product ranges, whilst delivering better
service and availabifity for customers We want to be the best value, most convenient and
integrated, most relevant and personalised retatler and we are making good progress

We invested £200 million to have the equivalent of 8,000 more colieagues in-store and
also provided customer service and specialist training for nearly 250,000 team members to
help them serve customers better Consequently, our customer ratings of senvice and staff
helpfulness have improved and customer complaint numbers have fallen sharply We have
made a good start and there will be more progress mn 2013 We refreshed 300 stores,
representing almost a quarter of our space, delivering a warmer look and feel and better
standards of presentation mn our fresh food departments

Our price image with customers has also improved, and we have supplemented cur work

on priang with stronger, personalised Clubcard mathings and, more recently, the mtroduction

of our Tesco Price Prormise, which aims to reassure customers that they will never be
disadvantaged on price when they shop with us On ranging, the strang performance of the
relaunched Everyday Value range has continued and we have put significant mnvestment into
improving 3,500 core Tesco own-label ines, with an emphasis on fresh food categories

We have made fundamental changes to the way we communicate with our customers, with
the most prominent early change being the appointment of a new lead advertising agency,
Wieden + Kennedy Our first new advertising campaign, which began last Christmas, was
very well recewved by customers

QOur store strategy s ‘Food First’ which means a more targeted, less space-intensive
approach to general merchandise in-store, with Tesco Direct becoming better equipped
to offer customers the much greater breadth and depth of range that the onhine ptatform
provides 50 well

It also means other changes to our stores — such as clothing becoming more prominent and
services taking more space This means, for example, allocating more space to Click & Collect
so that we are giving customers the compelling convernence of being able to order what they
want onkne and pick up in-store

Upgrading our in-store diming offer will also utiise more of our existing space We aim to
give customers shopping in our stores the kind of food expenence they have when they

wisit shopping malls or high streets We'll do this through the investments we have made in
new family-fnendly restaurants, coffee shops and arusan bakeries — such as Giraffe, Harns +
Hoole and Euphonum They will be increasingly available around our network of larger stores
in the UK

I've been particularly encouraged to see that the innovative spint, that desire to be first for
custorners which made Tesco what it is, has also flounshed in this peniod of rapid change

A good example of this 15 11 our dotcorn grocery business where the roll-out of our drive-
through Click & Collect modutes in 150 of our car parks helped our onhne safes grow 12 8%
—which was faster than the market, in which we already have a high share The launch of our
Delivery Saver subscription service in May 2012 also contributed to our outperformance
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Our UK business 1s more competitive, performance relative to the market has improved

and our margins have stabilised, as planned, and there s still much more to come The scope
for further improverment means that this cbjective remains our most iImportant prionty

t am pleased with the progress we've made, but | am equally pleased that we have the
opportunity and plans for that progress to continue

With the new UK management team now bedded in, In January this year | felt able to step
back from the day-to-day running of the business, which | had assumed temporaniy n March
2012 Chns Bush, who has over 30 years’ expenence in Tesco, has taken over the leadership
as UK Managing Director

The strategic importance of Tesco Bank to the Group 15 being increased by the impact of the
internet on the way our customers shop — and | believe it 15 a key part of our multichannel
future It will prowide the means for more and more of our customers to transact online using
Tesco financial products Several years of mfrastructure builld and the wider challenges that
the whole banking sector has had to deal wath - from more careful management of nsk

to PPl claims — have held back performance The Bank plays an impoertant role in driving
increased loyalty for Tesco and we are giving even more focus to delivenng the best possible
products and prices ta our Clubcard customers

(15} Drive sustanable growth through multichannel leadership

| belreve establishing multichannel leadership — combtning digital and online seamlessly with
our existing excellent physical store network - 15 gaing to be cntical for our future success
We've made good progress — we're the largest internet retailer of food tn the UK and we're
getting bigger and better in clothung and general merchandise — but the opportunities
remain huge

The jJudgements we make today about how we respond to the new digital era will profoundly
affect the kind of business Tesco becornes in the years ahead The internet and social media
are rapidly changing the way people five therr lives, the way they shop and what they expect
from us — not Just in terms of goods and services, but also what we stand for and how we
contrnbute 1o society

The speed of that change 15 accelerating and if we are tolead this revolution in our industry,
I believe we must move faster and embrace it

Calling an end to the brg store space race and beginring a move to refocus our investment
away from large stores, particularly hypermarkets, to conventence and eniine has been
followed by an accelerating pace of change over recent months in afl our businesses and
geographies For example, we are in¢reasing our investment tn technology and £500 mulkon
of our total capital spend will be devoted to technology, enabling us to create a seamless
blend between our stores and online businesses

A good example of this change in emphasis 1s blinkbox We are alveady one of the leading
retallers of fitms, TV senes, music and books in the UK Given the rapid pace of change

n the way customers are buying entertaimment products, we have been working to develop
a range of new digital services In March 2013 we launched Clubcard TV using the blinkbox
platform, a free service prowiding family-friendly films and television senies to our most loyal
customers In the next few months, we will be launching blinkboxmusic and blinkboxbooks,
demonstrating our commitment to prowiding the very best entertainment as easily as
possible for our customers

Going forward, we will be applying this thinking and experience to our international markets
around the world

“The strateqic importance
of Tesco Bank to the
Group 1s being Increased
by the impact of the
internet on the way our
customers shop —and |
believe it Is a key part of
our multichannel future”

“Given the rapid pace of
change in the way customers
are buying entertainment
products, we have been
working to develop a range
of new digital services”
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Report from the Chief Executive continued

“We will stay focused for the
foreseeable future on our
existing markets, and on
allocating significant capital
only where we see very
good prospects of strong
investment returns ”

(1} Pursue disciplined international growth

The singfe most important step we took in 2012/13 in our mternational business was o
launch a strategic review of Fresh & Easy in the United States and in April we confirmed our
decision to exit the market This was not a deasion hghtly reached but in keeping with what
I have said about the need to move the business forward, and to do so in a disciplined way —~
the US business simply did not offer the prospect of acceptable returns in an appropnate
tme frame

Whulst the process of exit is ongoing, and as such the full financial effect of it 1s yet to be fully
determined, we have written down the assets of the business and booked provisions for
future liabtlities — which together have impacted profit after tax by £(1) billion

Fundamentally, we invest overseas because we have the opportunity to generate returns by
using our skilt and scale in high-growth economies, where retaihing is less mature, to build
substantial market positions and strong consumer franchises

Thas opportunity 1s unchanged and explotting it remains an important element of our strategy
We have had success — 32% of our sales and 29% of our profit now comes from outside the
UK, and we have market-leading businesses in eight of our 11 mternational markets Qver two
decades of international development we have learmed a huge amount about what works and
what doesn’t - getting the pace and scale of expansion nght for local conditions, getting the
balance right between local front-end, global skills in sourcing and logistics and being ready
to partner where appropnate Utilising this knowledge ts catical to driving future returns from
our international business

Lookmng forward, these lessons will guide our approach to internationalisation ‘We will stay
focused for the foreseeable future on our exssting markets, and on allocating significant
capital only where we see very good prospects of streng investment returns And where
we do invest, itwill be with a clear emphasis on lower capital intensity routes 1o growth
such as conventence and online

| have categonised our countnes into three groups to explain what this approach means
R practice

In Thailand, South Korea and Malaysia, where we have strong market positions and
economic growth remains more robust, our businesses have substantial further potential
for growth These markets continued to delver excellent performance in 201213,
although the headline growth was obscured by the ¢ £(100) million profit impace of
legislation to restrict large store shopping hours i South Korea Looking forward, the
opporturities to build on our already strong posttions in these fast-growing economtes
remain compelling and are therefore our highest international prionty

In the European markets where we have sohd, in some cases, market-leading businesses,
but where the econormic backdrop has been damaging te performance, our emphasis will
be on holding our position, driving further benefits of skdl and scale and making targeted
investment m specific opportunities, such as online and converuence retailing At present,
the economic context remains unfavourable with continued recession and austerity

in all of our markets — the Republic of lreland, the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland and
Slovakia Long term, these remain fundamentally attractive markets for Tesco both

as growth markets and as markets where multichannel retaiing 1s still in its infancy

In China, Turkey and india, which are exciting long-term growth opportunittes, we will push
on - but carefully — adopting a steadier pace of growth that is, importantly, more cautious
about capital allocation Our modet in India 15 to work with the Tata Group, and we are
unable to commit our own capital under current regutations However, the model works,
we like our partner and we are learning a fot about the market We will commut new capital
to China and Turkey, but only for those opportuniies that pass our ngorous mvestrent
appraisal targets We will be commitung less capital in the comung years than we have
done in the past — at least untl we can demonstrate a significant step forward towards

our objective of stronger returns
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Cap#alising on the multichannel epporturity i all these markets will be a core part of our long-
term planning We are already moving much faster to roll out grocery horne shopping — which
15 now N eight International markets and we plan to launch in China later this financial year

Culture

For a consumer business above all, what you represent 15 critical and 1t 1s night that we should
be responsive and open about our Values and what we stand for We should actively manage
them just as we manage other parts of our business

We have completed a thorough review, looking at whether our Core Purpose and Values are
all that we need in this new world and at a time of change We have concluded that we need
to encourage seme changes to ensure it 15 clear to everyone at Tesco and beyond that we will
put more back into society than we take out You wilt find a tot more about this over the page
and in the Tesco and Society Report

Foday, our brand must be about more than stmply function It's about the way we work, the

values we hive by, the legacy we leave We can't solve the world’s problems but we want Tesco _~
to always do the right thing, to inspire and to earn trust and loyalty from all our stakeholders- -

And we are putting some clear ambition into changing things for the better in areas where
we can make a difference because of who and what we are

* First, we are going to focus our attention on young people wherever we are in the world
We are a major global employer, which means we understand how to provide opporiunities
for people in therr working lives So we want to use that to help millions of young people
who are worried about their future and are uncertain how to get a foothold in the world
of work

* Second, were going to help and encourage our colleagues and customers to hive healthier
lives and through this help to tackle the global obesity crisis

* Third, we're gomg to lead on the challenge of reducing food waste globally “Waste not,
want not' 1s at the heart of ‘Every Little Helps® So 1t1s natural for us to want to take a
leading role in preventing the enormous quantities of food going to waste every day
around the world

| behieve that by applymg our skills and resources — our scale — to these areas, Tesco can
make a difference and make things better

Management

i am delighted to say that underpinning alt of our drivers of growth — UK, multichannel

and international — 1s the strength of the new management team we have created Qur new
Executive Committee draws on the potential of the strongest, most expenenced leaders
wrthin Tesco, complemented by some first-class external appointments in key disaplines

I am confident that the team we now have In place has the skills, experience, creatimty and
drive to deliver our ambitions

Alf of these changes are the result of my deterrmination to ensure that Tesco 1s a company
that delivers shareholder value — but one that does so by delivening what matters to all
our stakeholders

P> (hore

Philip Clarke ChiBf Executive

Ps

“Today, our brand must be
about more than simply
function It's about the way
we work, the values we live
by, the legacy we leave”
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Core Purpose and Values
7

Our Core Purpose is a clear and simple statement
of what we do and what we stand for:

We make what
matters better,
together

OUI’ COI’E PUI’DOSE s a clear and S|mple Our Core Purpose needs to reflect how much society has changed
In recent years — more scepticism about corporations, more desire
statement of what we do and what we to see business demonstrate it has a purpose beyond profit, a sense
stand for It has been the same for many that large compantes should be contributing mere to tackling some
of the big challenges The world has changed from a culture of ‘more
years but the time has come to update It is better’ to ‘making what matters better’

That's why we've changed our Core Purpose — this profound shuft

in society must be reflected in the way we think and behave as a
business Today, our brand must be about more than simply function
It’s about the way we work, the values we live by, the legacy we
teave We can’t solve the world's problems but we want Tesco to
always do the nght thing, to mspire and to earn trust and loyalty
from all of our stakeholders
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Our Values help us to understand
how to put this into practice:

1 No one tries harder
for customers

* Understand customers
* Be first to meet ther needs
* Act responsibly for our communities

Understanding people - customers, colleagues, commumities - and what matters to
them, and then trying to make those things better, 15 at the heart of Tesco It’s about
hstening to peopie and talking to them using all the tools at our disposal — from
Clubcard data to social media — and then acting by changing and innovating to meet
therr needs

2 We treat everyone how
we like to be treated

« Work as a team

* Trust and respect each other

* Listen, support and say thank you
* Share knowledge and experience

We know that looking after our colleagues in a eulture of trust and respect is essential
to the success of Tesco Where colleagues feel recognised and rewarded for the work
they do tegether, where they have the opportunity to get on and where they are
supported in ther development as they move through thew careers in the business -
they i turn try their hardest for customers

3 We use our scale
for good

» Creating new opportunities for millions of young people around the world

*» Helping and encouraging our colleagues and customers to hive healthier hives
and through this helping to tackle the global obesity crisis

* Leading in reducing food waste globally

Our scale means that we can provide affordable, high-quality food to people around

the world and create value for customers We want to use this scale to create greater
value for society as a whole in many ways we do this already, whether it's by creating
thousands of jobs or working with thousands of farrmers to prowide world-class products
But now we want to scale up our efforts and make a positive contribution to some of the
maost pressing challenges facing the world

Qur new Core Purpose 1s We make what matters better, And as with our Core Purpose, we have had a hard look at whether
together It1s true to where we came from but more relevant the Values are all that we need n this new world and at a time of
to today and to the kind of company we want to be change — and we've conduded that we need a new Value, one that

makes it clear to everyone at Tesco and beyond that we will put more

ince we first intr r T |
S oduced our Tesco Values more than a decade back into saciety

ago, they have become a wital part of our culture — and an essential
underpinrung of our growth and success They ensure that every Our new Value 1s We use our scale for good Tesco i1s now a large
person at Tesco understands what 15 important - about how we work  company, touchmg millions of people’s lives every day This scale
together as a team and how customers are at the centre of whatwe  gives us an opportunity to make a positive difference to some of the
do They are universal values, which have helped guide our people biggest challenges facing the world We've set three big ambitions
as Tesco has grown into new markets and new countries in aveas where we can make a real contnbution and create value
for society as a whole Our new Value 1s also about building on the
essential work we already do as a responsible corporate citizen
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e
Vision and Strategy
-7
A growing business,

Wanted and needed
around the world full of opportunities
Whether it's food or general merchandise, books or digial
entertainment, banking or eating out, our business is full

We see 1t as essential not only to be the shop of choice
for customers but also the place people want to work,
of opportumties for both customers and colleagues We
want our business to offer something new every time

a business that communities welcome and the retailer
in which every shareholder wants to invest
’

Our Vision sets out what we want to be:

In any business, clear direction 1s vital Our Vision guides the
direction and the decsions we take as an organisation Tesco
Is @ company built around customers and colleagues, high-
quality assets around the world and multiple opportunities
for growth — and these characteristics are central to our
Vision for the business

We want Tesco to be the most highly valued business by the
customers we serve, the communities in which we operate,
our loyal and committed colleagues and of course, our
shareholders For these things to be possible, our Vision for
the business has five elements — each of them describes

the sort of company Tesco aspires to be

Winners locally whilst
! applying our skills globally

Modern, innovative
and full of ideas
Retail is local because cultures, tastes, cimates, regulations are all
different But the core skdls that we have learned in one place can be

Tesco's success has always been based on trying to
understand customers' needs better than anyone
else — and then innovating to make their ives that little apphed in others For example, setting up our grocery home shopping
operations from scraich in erght international markets across the Group
wouldn't have been possible without what we've learned in the UK

bit easier Thus attitude, which brought enline grocery

shopping, extended shopping hours, Finest, Everyday
Value, a range of formats from Express to Extra - and
all the other things that rake us who we are —1s as

central to our Vision now as it ever has been
Inspiring, earning trust and loyalty from
customers, our colleagues and communities

We want Tesco to be a company that earns trust, not just respect, through everything we do - be it
our in-store shopping trip, our Pnce Promise, or our determination to assure customers on food quality

We want to be a business that customers, colleagues and communities trust and are loya! to
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Our Strategy reflects our priorities as the
business grows and customers’ needs change:

We have a well-established and consistent seven-part strategy for growth, which reflects the
way consumer needs are changing and the increasingly global nature of our business —and
of course driving it forward is critical to our success over the coming years

T-o g.row the U K core To grow the UKér;m_,thé largest busme;s

in the Group and a key dnver of sales and
profit, 1s a pronty Our ‘Building a Better
Tesco' plan has been restonng growth to
the business through a comprehensive
senes of improvements for customers

Ny . X . We have established profitable businesses
To be an OUtStand’ ng in Asian and European markets Today,
H H H 32% of our Group sales and 29% of
! ntern atlonal retal Ier profits are made intemationally and our
in stores and on Iine goal now rs to take the performance of

these businesses to higher levels

H ‘ Food 1s our hentage but as the busur-ress
TO be as Strong In has grown and dwversified over recent
H years, we have added an ever-wider range
eve rythln g we se " of products and services n-store and
as we are in food onfing, bringing Tesco value and qualty
to many more categones

TO grow retail Ser\_fices Consumers are increasingly spending

a igger proportion of their income on
H services —whether it 1s in tetecoms, eating
n al ' our ma rkEts out or financal services In the UK, we
have burt some strong, successful new
businesses and our ambition now Is to
take that experience to all of our markets

TO put our responsibilities The changes we have made to our

Core Purpose and Values to reflect

to the commun ities we Tesco's wider social purpose are clear

signals that we put ourresponsibiliies

serve at the hea rt Of to the communities we serve at the
heart of what we do

what we do
Brands are about gning customers

TO be a creator Of confidence in the quality, value

H and rehabihty of the things we selt

h‘g h 'y valued bra nds We ain to be a creator of highly valued
brands across our affer, whether itis
finest, F&F or Tesco Bank

H As Tesco continues to grow and diversify

TO bU|Id our tea m we need more leaders to run the broad
range of businesses, operatons and

SO that we create support functions We are investing in

more va | ue the development of more leaders and
a bigger, more diverse talent pool io
support the growth of the Group
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Business Model
R

Our Business Model is how we
put our Strategy into action:



(O Our core activities

Like all retailers, we buy, move and sell products and services for aur customers They
rely on us to do these things consistently well and we strive to do them better, more
simply and rmore efficiently each time

We have convenient, well-invested store and distnbution networks, with a skilled and experienced
team and modern systems designed to help us do this rehably — as well as growmg capability and
scale online This operational effectiveness is at the core of the Tesco business model

Winning loyalty 1s also about looking constantly at ways to do things differently and innovating
for customers so that our offer doesn't stand still Innovation comes from insight and insight starts
wath listening

We try to work out what matters to customers by talking to thern — and the conversaton goes on

all the time, in all our businesses, in stores and enhing, whether it is through our regular customer
question tirme sassions or social media feedback Customers tell us what’s important to them — when
we're doing well and, even more importantly, when we're nat Couphng that feedback with the data
wae get from Clubcard and the analysis we apply from dunnhumby — and then acting on the resuit — 15
what Tesco is all about

(OThe virtuous circle

Striving for continuous iImprovement in operations and in the shopping tnp, as well as
staying close to custormners, are fundamentals but the engine of the Tesco business model
has always been a combination of scale and growth

This remans Just as true today in an enviconment where growth across many markets i1s harder to
come by Tesco may anly be as successful as a customer’s last shopping trip but our scale and how
we use It are very important to how we create value

Buying well and selling efficiently are essential in order to be competitive for customers When

we combine these really well, we deliver a great offer and customers reward us with more of their
business The more we sell, the more we are able to work with our suppliers te achieve mutually
beneficial econamies of scale, which in turn creates room to invest more for customers - in products,
categories and businesses

This has served the business well over many decades - but It our bustness in the UK we stepped off the
virtuous arcle when the recession it We didn't put enough back in for customers at a tme when they
were under pressure — and our petrformance and reputation felt the effect We recognised the need to
change, and last year we chose to reduce and reset our own margin to fund substantial investment in
improving the shopping tnp for customers and to move the business towards stronger growth

(OThe key enablers

The core elements of the business model have six key enablers — including, for example,
leveraging Group skill and scale and innovating our offer - which maximise the potential
of the core activities and ensure that what we do I1s sustainable

Transferring know-how, new systerns and processes around the Group has becorne a regular part
of how we do things based on the prnaple of “invent once, deploy everywhere' As our leadership
group — whitch numbers over 500 directors ~ gains even more experience in multiple markets, new
technologies and approaches can be introduced quickly and cost-effectively Loyalty and own-label
programmes, format expertise and anline trading platforms are all current examples of Tesco
leverageing Group skill and scale

As keeping pace with changing consumer shopping patterns — what they buy, how, where and
when they shop —becomes ever more dernanding, staying close to our customers means that we are
well-placed to see and to grasp the apportunities to innovate For example, we spend a lot of time
applying new technology in-store so that we can improve the shopping expenence for customers

A good example 1s Scan as you Shop — now in 100 stores - which allows customers to scan products
as they put them into the trolley, see how much they are spending as they go, and reduce their waiting
time at the checkouts
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Key performance indicators

7

] Group performance

Growth in undertying profit before tax

(14.5)%

09110 10M 1112 1213
87% 12 3% 21% (14 5)%
Definition

Our underlying profit provides information

on the underlying trend and performance of the
business 1t1s adjusted for a number of (non-cash)
accounting adjustrents and one-off costs

Performance

Our year-on-year performance in underlying
profit before taxreflects a number of factors
=mamnly our planned investment into the UK
busmess, the regulatory changes in South Korea
and the impact of challenging econormic
conditions in Europe

1 The 201t/12 figure including the LS was 1 6%

Return on capital employed (‘ROCE")

12.7%

Definition

ROCE 15 a relatve profit measurement that
demonstrates the return the business s
generating from its gross assets

Performance
ROCE decreased during the year, reflecting
our trading profit performance

1 The 201112 figure including the US was 13 3%

Growth inunderlying diluted earnings
per share {(at a constant tax rate)

(14.0)% |

09/10 1011 1112 1213
77% 108% 26%' (14 )%
Definstion

Underlying diuted earnings per share (‘EPS")
1s the amount of underlying profit, adjusted
for the number of shares in 1ssue

Performance

The fall in underlying drluted EPS reflects

the reduction of earnings this year We have
mantained the proposed full year dividend per
share despite th's, demonstrating our confidence
that the steps we have taken in 2012/13 will set
the Groupon track to resume growth

t The 2011432 figure ncluding the US was 2 1%

Group financial ratios

Total shareholder return ('TSR")

22.5% 21%

1 year 5 year
09110 10/ 112 12N13
lyear 304% (02)% (187%) 22 5%
Syear 95% 67% (30%) 21%
Definition

TSR s the notional annuatised return from a share
the percentage change in the share price, plus the
dividends paid and reinvested For example, five-year
TSR for 2012113 15 the annualised growth n the
share price from 2007/08 and drvidends paid and
reinvested n Tesco shares, as a percentage of the
2007408 share price

Performance

TSR increased this year, reflecting the effect on
our share price of increased investor confidence
since last year's decision to invest significantly
In our customer offer in the UK

Capital expenditure (‘capex’} as % of sales

41%

Net indebtedness

Definition

Net indebtedness shows debt in relation

to operating cash flow {'EBITDAR') Debtis
adjusted net debt, calculated as net debt, the
pension defiat and the net present value of
lease obligations

Performance

Net indebtedness has risen despite a reducuon

in net debt, due mainly to the dechne In EBITDAR
dnven by our investrment in the UK, the regulatory
impact in South Korea and challenging economic
conditions, particutarly in Central Europe

Definition

Capex 1s the iInvestment in property, plantand
equipment, Investment property and intangible
assets This s divided by Group sales {inc VAT,
ne petrol) to show a relative investment o sales

Performance

Thus year we continued to reduce our rate of capital
investiment, focusing on less capital-intensive
nvestments with higher returns, most notanly online
and corwenience

This year our capex was £3 bilhon or 4 1% of sales
and fell year-on-year in every one of our reporting
sagments Gong forward, we intend to carefully
and appropniately allocate capital within arange
of 3 5% to 4% of sales

Gearing

39.6% \
09M0  10M1 112 1213 ‘
540% 408% 384% 39 6%

Definition

The proportion of net assets financed through
debt rather than equsty, calculated as net debt
diwvided by total equity

Performance

Qur geanng remained relauvely flat reflecting
our stable debt position and our growing
investrment 0 assets

Fixed charge cover

Definitron

The number of times that our operating cash
flow ('EBITDAR") covers our debt obligations
(largely rent and interest payments)

Performance
Qur fixed charge cover decreased shghtly due
to the decine 1n EBITDAR and rent increases

More detated defimiticns for o Group performance and Group firancial KPIs can be found 1 the giossary on the mside back cover AllKPIs on pages 16 to 19 (apart fiom Gearing and TSR
where it is not appropnate) exclude the results flom our operations In Japan and the United States for 2011712 and 201213 with the excepuon of Suppher Viewpaint Donation of pre tax
o16fils to charies and good causes, and ow Greenhouse gas { GHG ) ermission 1eportmg
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Group strategy

1 To grow the UK core
UK like-for-hike (inc VAT, exc petrol)

0910 10411 112 12713
26% 10% 00% {(03)%
Defintion

The growth in sales from stores that have
been open for at least ayear

Performance
We aim to continue improwving like-for-tke
sales in 2013/14 through our ‘Burding

a Better Tesco’ plan We expect the plan
to continue delivering stronger like-for-hike
sales in 2013/14

Customer rating of overatl Definition
shopping experience as
excellent or good

79%

3% improvement
on last year

Source Marceting Sciences

n 261314

2. To be an outstanding international retailer in stores and online

International trading profit

Definition
The profit generated from our international
businesses in their retall operations

Performance

international trading profits deckined, due to the
¢ £{100) milhon impact of regulatory restrictions
in South Karea and challenging economic
conditions, particufarly in Europe

A Re presented 1o exclude Japan
t The 2011112 figure ncluding the LIS was £1,113 million

Performance

79% of customers find their shopping
experence excellent or good, and 98%
find it reasonable, good or excellent
Through our UK Plan we have been
improving customers’ shopping
expenences and this focus will continue

UK trading profit

Growth in UK online sales
Percentage of customer ratings,
measured In exit interviews

+10%

Proportion of customers pleased with thelr
shopping trip

295%

in 6 markets

Definition

The number of markets where at least 95%

of customers asked were very or farly satsfied
wath ther overalt shopping expernience —the top
two ratings

Performance

In six of pur markets at least 95% of customers
are very or faly satisfied with their overall
shopping experence, compared to eight
markets last year We have seen a dipin some
of our Central European markets and we have
customer plans in place (o improve the
shopping trip i all markets

* Re presented 1o exclude the LIS

Source Country customes satisfaction tracker and
Country mage tracker

Definition
The profit generated from the UK business
IR 1ts retail operations

Performance

UK profits dechined, reflecting the £1 bithon
investrment into the UK business Lo improve
the shopping tnp for custorners

Definition
The year-on-year sales growth from
total tesce corn and online telecoms

Performance

Our onhine businesses are performmg
well and we are pleased with the UK
sales growth Our largest online
busmess, grocery home shopping, saw
increased sales growth of 12 8%, driven
in part by the success of our Grocery
Click & Collect rol-out and the launch of
our Delvery Saver subscription scheme

Growth In international
online sales

+46.5%

Definition
The year-on-year sales growth from our
ntemnational onlne businesses

Performance

We are pleased with the growth in online sales
across the Group We now have online grocery
businesses in eight of our international markets,
50 would expect to see sizeable growth We
generated over £3 billion sales online for the
Group as a whole for the first ime
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Key performance indicators continued

3. To be as strong in everything we sell as we are in food

Proportion of UK
customers buying
general merchandise,
clothing and electncals

Definition
Our relative position among competiiors,
as rated by customers

UK general
merchandise, clothing
and electricals range
image

Performance
We have maintamned our leading position amongst o

1 st our supermarket peers, reflecting our efforts to 3 6 /o
create a compelhing general merchandise range

supermarket mn-store, combined with the strengths of our

online platform, Tesco Direct
Source Marketing Sciences

international general Definition Proportion of general

merchandise, clothing  The number of internaticnal markets where we are merchandise, clothing

and electricals range ranked first or second by customers for our general and electricals sourced

Image merchandise range as a Group
Performance o

9 We are ranked first, or joint first, for our general 2 6 /o
merchandise range image in eight of these mne

markets — 1st markets This 15 an improvement on 201112 when

Definition

The average weekly proportion of UK Clubcard
customers who bought a general merchandise,
clathing or electricals tem

Performance

The proporbion of customers buying general

merchandise, clothing and electnicals has |
remained broadly sirmilar to last year We contunue

to see subdued demand for discretionary items

Definition

The proportion, by sales, of general merchandise,
clothing and electricals we buy together,
through our Group Cormnmercial function

Performance

Qur performance on this measure 15 similar

to last year, despite challenging econormic
condiions holding back general merchandise

or 2nd place

Source Country image tracker  and general merchandise offers

customers ranked us first, or equal first, in six
markets, and reflects the strength of our clothing

and electnicals sales

4. To grow retall services in all our markets

Bank profit

* Re presented to excdude PPl provision

Definition

Tradng profit measures the profit generated by Tesco Bank inits operations [t excludes
the one-off impact of an increasing provision for customer redress payments inciuding
Payment Protection Insurance {'FPI")

Performance

Trading profit fell by (15)% impacted by the unwinding of the fair value provision — an accounting
adjustment made at the urne of acquisition in 2008 - and the run-off in legacy income from the
Bank’s nsurance distnbution arrangement with Direct Line Group, which terminated last year
Before these itemns, profits grewwell and are up 13%, with a particularly pleasing performance

n customer lending

5. To put our responsibilities to the communities we serve at the heart of what we do

Reduction in COze emissions from existing stores

09110 10/11 1H12 1213
8 5%t! 4 6%! 3 9% 4 9%
Definition

The year-on-year reduction in greenhouse gas ermissions
per square foot of sales area from existing stores built
before 2006/07

Performance

We reduced the CO»e enussions from our stores built before
March 2006 by 4 9% compared to last year, exceeding our
target of 3 5%, helped by our conunued focus across the
Group on reducing refrigerant gas leakage Last year, this
KPlincluded distnbution centres ('DCs') in addition to
existing stores® Using this definition, our performance

this year1s a 4 5% reduction From next year, we will be
measuring the cumutative reduction in COze across all of
our stores and DCs against a 2006/07 basehne ~ no matter
when they were built This will simphfy our target and is
consistent with our 2020 goal to achieve a S0% reduction
N emissions per square foot At the end of 2012713, we had
achieved a reduction of 32 5% towards this goal

t These figures have been restated to exclude ermisscns from exstng DCs
and from our US operations.

& This change was set out m the 2011/12 CR repart and the previous year's
figures are adjusted accordingly Addiional informatson can be found at
www tescople comisocety

Greenhouse gas (‘GHG’) emussion reporting

This 1s a new addstion to our Annual Report ahead of the upcoming UK leg slation on mandatory
greenhouse gas ('GHG') ermussion reporting that we expect to come into force later this year
Thes year our carbor foatprint was S 75 miliion tonnes of COre Our overall carbon intensity has
decreased by 30% since 2006/07 For more information on our carbon targets, see the Tesco
and Socaety Report, avalable online at www tescopk comisocietyfreport2013

GHG ermussions data for period 25 February 2012 to 23 February 2013
Globat tonnes of (e

Baseyear 2006107 2011112 2012113
Scope i 1,390,756 1,465,494 1,418,798
Scope 2 2,790,259 3587747 3,764 068 |
Scope 1 and 2 carbon intensity (kg COzefsq ft 5166 36 47 3512
of stores and DCs) !
Scope3 320,510 524,639 566,941 i
Total gross emissons 4501,525 5577880 5,749,807
Renewable energy exported to the gred - - 829
Total net emissions 4 501,525 5577880 5748978
Overall net carbon intensity (total net emssions 5562 40 25 3896

kg COnelsqft of stores and DCs)

We have taltulated our carbon footpnnt according to the WRUAWBCSD Greenhouse Gas (*GHG') Prototol We
Iollow the operational control approach and use emission factors from Defra/DECC s GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reportmg 2012 For more information on our carbon targers and how we calcudate our carbon tootprint,
ncluding reporting standards the definiien of Scope 1 2 and 3 emissions. and ERM's independent ¢athon
assurance statement, see www tescoplc comdsocetylresources
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Definition

The percentage of positive scores from
our annual survey of supphers, Supplier
Viewpoint, when we ask whether Tesco
treats them with respect

Supplier Viewpoint

71%

Performance

We were just behind our stretching target
of 74% and we are confident that we
have good plans in place to iImprove our
performance m 2013/14 and beyond We
know that we will only succeed if we have
strong relationships with our suppliers
We are launching a new Commercial
Food Support Office and simpifying our
systems to make it easier for supphers

to do business with us We will work more
closely wath suppliers to develop joint
business plans and recogmse success
through our Suppher Values Awards

6 To be a creator of highly valued brands

Customer loyalty Definition
The number of markets where we are
placed fist or second for the proportion
of customers who do over 50% of therr

markets — 1st shopping with a single retailer

or 2nd place

Performance

Building customer loyalty is at the heart
of Teseo and we are already ranked first
in seven of our markets Thisis an
important indicator of the strength of
the Tesco brand We earn our customers’
loyalty by delivering a great shopping
expenence and rewarding them far thewr
custom We now have loyalty schemes
in each of our markets

Source Marketresearch
{GFK, Ipsos, Kantar)

Donation of pre-tax profits
to charitles and good causes

£78.1m

Group-wide own-label
participation

38%

Tesco own-label
brands

7 To build our team so that we create more value

Definitlon

The proportion of colleagues wath over
one year's service who have worked for
Tesco in the UK throughout the year

Colleague retentlon

91%

in the UK Performance

COur retention rate i the UK remains
strong, up from 90% in 2011112 This
reflects our focus on creatmg good jobs
and long-term careers, with excellent
benefits and career development
opportunities |t s also a reflection of
our determined and ongoing efforts

to rake what matters to our colleagues
better For example, through our

UK Plan we have made significant
investments in training and equipment
for our colleagues, supporting them

to do ther jabs

Colleagues being trafned for
their next role

5.8%

across the Group

Definition

Qur contnbution to chanties and good
causes through direct donations, cause-related
marketing, gifts-in-kind, staff urme and
management costs

Performance

We have donated £78 1 mulhon to chanyes and
good causes this year, compared to £74 6 millon
n 2011112

As & proportion of statutory profit before tax

our donations represent 4 0% — anincrease

on last year’s figure of 1 9% reflectmg the dechne
n profits thisyear This equates to 2 2% of
underlying profit before tax, similar to 19% on
the same basis last year We expect Lo mamtain
abroadly similar level of contnbutions going
forward with the percentage proportion returning
to our usual historical levels in the coming years

Total cash donatiens for 2012113 were
£22 2 mullion

Definition

Own-label sales as a proportion of total Group
sales Own-label sales include Tesco brands (such
as F&F, Finest or Ven{ure brands) and unbranded
products, such as produce Tesco Bank and Tesco
Mobile are not included

Performance

Group own-label participation was stable in the
year Improving the range and quality of our
own-label products 1s animportant part of our plan
1o improve the shopping tnp for customers in the
UK We builton the Everyday Value relaunch early
i 2012413 with range additions in September and
made sigruficant improvemnents in the core Tesco
own-labelrange of products throughout the year
The strategy of improving our Tesco brands will
continue in 2013/14

Definitien

The proporton of colleagues who are on
development programmes trasning for their
next role

Performance

Gving our ¢olleagues the opportunity to get on at
Tesco 1s very important to us and we are proud of
our commuitment to this area This KPI measures
the number of colleagues being trained for their
next job through our dedicated '‘Options’
programme and we narrowly missed this year's
increased target of 6% of colleagues This
measure doesn't include other development
actpaties sich as apprenticeships, A-level Entry
Prograrnmes and our Advanced Leadership
Programme Including these opporturities, almost
7% of colleagues across the Group benefited this
year In addon, we nave also heavily invested in
our colleagues in the UK this year through our
‘Building a Better Tesco’ plan More than 250,000
colleagues in-store have receved customer service
traimung, with additional technical traiming for
36,000 colleagues
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Financial review
7

Laurne Mcllwee Chief Financial Officer

£72.4bn

Group sales

£3.5bn

Group trading profit

55.97p

Underlying diluted
earnings per share

14.76p

Full year dividend per
share maintalned

» Visit www tescopfc com/ar2013 to hear
more from Laurie Mdlwee and other
members of the leadership team

“As we adapt to ensure we deliver on our
objective to be the best multichannel retailer
for our customers, we are realistic In our
approach to growth and returns, We can
therefore offer clarity to shareholders about
how we intend to deliver an appropriate
balance of growth and returns in the
years ahead”

| Group results 2012/13 (on a continuing operations basis)

Growth {actual  Growth (zonstant

52 weeks ended 23 Fabruary 2013 2012/13 exchangesates)  exchange rates}
Group sales nc VATY £72,363m 13% 2 5%
Sales growth exc petrol 18% 31%
Group revenue £64,826m 14% 2 5%
(exc VAT, nc IFRIC 13)
Group trading profit £3,453m {13 0)% (12 3)%
-UK ) £2,272m (8 3)% {8 3)%
—Asia ) 661m_ (10 3)% _98)%
~ Europe £329m (378)% (33 3%
- Tesco Bank £19Im  (151)% (15 1%
Underlying profit before tax £3,549m (14 5)% (14 O)%
Underlying diluted earnings 3597p (14 0)%" nfa
per share
ROCE {adusted for one-off tems) 12 7% (Z20O)bp nfa
Capex £30bn down down
19 0% 18 1%
Statutory profit before tax mcludes the following one-off items
- UK property write-down £(804)Im
— Goodwill iImpairment {Poland, Czech Republic, Turkey} £(495)m
—Increased provision for PPI (Tesco Bank) (nc H1 £G0)m) £(115)m
Statutory profit before tax £1,960m (51 5% nfa

United States treated as discontinued, with restructuring and other one off costs
of £01 O) billion

* Group sales {Inc VAT} exclude the accounting impact of IFRIC 13
** Underlywng diluted EPS growth caleulated on a constant tax rate basis, (10 8)%
a1 artual tax rates

Group results and strategic update

It has been a year in which we have taken decisive action to focus our
efforts on those markets where we can have a leadership position
We exited lapan and launched our sirategic review of the Umited
States, while at the same time taking a more measured approach
to our growth in China We also set an appropriate pace of migration
for the Bank, keeping it focused on the needs of our most loyal
customers Mostimportantly, we have begun the essential process
of getting the UK business back on track, making sure we protect
and build on one of the most important leadership positions

we have

Group trading profit declined by (13 0)%, reflecting our investment
n the UK, the impact of requlatory changes in South Korea and the
challenging economic condittons in Europe This trading performance
coupled with reduced JV income and higher net finance costs led to
a dechne i Group underlying profit before tax of (14 5)%
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Group statutory profit before tax dedined by {51 5)% to £1,960
mdlion due to the impact of three man one-off charges

UK property write-down of £(804) million, following an in-depth
review of our property pipeline in the context of our fundamentally
different approach to new space and our announcemerit in Apn
2012 that we would be reducing the level of new space growth in
the UK going forward,

Goodwill imparrment of £(495) million, reflecting the impact

of diffenng growth prospects in today's environment for the
businesses we acquired in Poland, the Czech Republic and Turkey
in the rmid 1990s to early 2000s, and

Increase of £(115) mithon in our provision for patentiat Payment
Protection Insurance claims agamst Tesco Bank

Based on our progress so far with our strategic review of Fresh &
Easy, we have confirmed that the outcome of the review will be
an exit from the Uriuted States The results of our business there,
n addition to those of our business in Japan, have been classified
as discontinued operations in these results

Segmental resuits

UK

It 15 a year since we unveiled our six-part plan to get the UK business
back an top form The UK is absolutely fundamental to the success
of the Group, which 1s why thrs was our number one priority for the
year, and I'm pleased {o say the pfan s very much on track

We have made the Investment as planned and it has led to a clear
improvemnent in performance, both in absolute terms and relative to
the market Total sales rose by 2 6% excluding petrol, and hke-for-
like performance improved during the course of the year, with a
particularly encouraging result at Christmas

UK results 2012/13
£m % growth
UK sales £48,216m 18%
UK revenue (exc VAT exc impact of IFRIC 13} £43,579m 1 8%
UK revenue (exc petrol exc VAT, exc impact of IFRIC 13} 26%
UK trading profit £2,272m (8 3)%
Trading margin -rading profirirevenue) 521% (58)bp

When we latd out our plans last year, we descnbed the impact of
the nvestment in terms of a rebasing of our trading margin to 5 2%
and the progress we have made wn the UK has been achieved whilst
delivering a margin absolutely in ine with these expectations

The most important judge of progress i15 the custormer and we
ntroduced a new way of measunng customer perceptions back

n July — our ‘customer viewpont' This measures real customer
feedback i all of our stores on a regular and frequent basis, across
12 aspects of thew shopping tnp Pleasingly, every one of these
aspects improved throughout the second half of the year This
underpins our confidence that the underlying improvement we
have seen in our trading performance 1s driven by the changes

we have made for customers

While there are a number of drivers that could enable us to improve
overall UK margins, we believe the new base of 5 2% 1s appropnate
for the foreseeabte future and any outperformance will be reinvested
in dnving addiional improvernents in our customer offer

Asia

Our Asia performance was in {ine with expectations and was
dominated by the South Korean regulatory changes concerning
trading hours These changes held back headline numbers, and the
impact on trading prafit was broadly tn line with our £0100} milhon
guidance, with significant levels of Sunday store closures throughout
the second half and considerable uncertainty in the market about
exactly which stores would be closed and when, impacting operations
even when stores were able to open Following the passing of the
legislation in January this year, the situation seems more certam,
with more consistent store closures expected on alternate Sundays
As such, we expect the full-year effect of the requlanons, combined
with the extension of 24-hour trading restrictions to between
rrudright and 10am, to lead to an incremental tmpact of around
£(40) mullion in 2013114

E\sia results’ 2012/13 I

Actualrates  Consiantrates

£m % growth 9% growth

Asia sales £12317m 59% 61%

Asta revenue £11,479m 6 0% 6 2%
{exc VAT exc impact of IFRIC 13)

Asia trading profit £661m (10 3)% (9 8%

Trading margin {t ading profit/ evenue) 576% {105)bp {102)bp

* Exc Japan

In Thatland, like-for-like sales grew by 3 1% and we continued to
gain market share We benefited from a strong operming programme,
including almost 300 Express stores and we launched our first
dotcom grocery operation 1 Bangkok in February

We have adopted & more cautious stance in Ching We still see

an excess amount of new space being opened in the market —
ahead of customer demand - and we have moderated our pace of
development accordingly, opening just 12 new stores this year and
closing five underperfarming stores as part of our increased focus
an our three strongest regions

Europe
Whilst our markets in Europe remain fundamentally attractive,
our performance this year was disappointing

Clearly, we faced significant headwinds throughout the year, as
macroeconomic uncertainties continued to iImpact businesses
Thus had a particularly marked impact on our general merchandise
businesses across the region, holding back our overall like-for-hke
sales performance

)

Europe results 2012/13

Actualrates  Constant rates
£m % growth % growth
Europe sales £10,809m 4 9% 21%
Europe revenue £9,319m (55)% 14%

{exc VAT, exc wnpactof IFRIC 13)
Eurcpe trading profit £329m (378%% (33 3)%
Trading margin (radmg profitfrevenue) 353% (183)bp (183)}bp
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Financial review continued

Our performance in Hungary and Slovakia, where we enjoy two

of our strongest positions, has proved more resihient to the economic
headwinds While our profits m Hungary continued to be held back
by the cnisis tax this year, this will no longer be apphed from the start
of our new financisl year

in some markets such as the Czech Republic and Pofand, we saw
increased competitive actiity, with those retaifers focused on
discount small formats fanng much better than those —like us —with
a greater proportion of larger stores Our own smaller format stores
have performed better than the business as a whole, and our dotcorn
operations — now In 13 cities in these markets alone — have grown
strongly since launch

We have faced particularly intense competition in Turkey, in a year
in which we have retrenched from our strategy of pursuing large
store expansion to the east of our exisung business Like many other
businesses in the country, we faced mtense cost-price inflation and
the impact of this was exacerbated by a number of one-off, historic
1ssues The resulting losses contributed to our shortfall versus
expectations for European performance

All of our businesses undertake a value in use test each year to Justfy
the carrying value of goodwill Those busimesses acquired in Europe
in the 1990s and earty 20005 unfortunately face a more difficult
market today and different growth prospects as a result This led

to a wnite-down in the value of acquired goodwill for our businesses
in Poland, the Czech Republic and Turkey

Qur priorty in all of these markets 1s to get the businesses focused
on driving underlying performance and it is for this reason that we will
only open 400,000 sq ft of net new selling space in the year ahead

Tesco Bank

We were pleased to complete the final stages of migration of Tesco
Bank early in the financial year and to be able to get back to focusing
on marketing our existing products Our programme of new products
resumed tn August with mortgages and more recently, our ISA range

We made progress through the year in banking products, with good
growth in both customer accounts and balances Qurinsurance
business was held back by a very challenging market, with strong
downward price pressure in motor insurance Throughout this period,
we focused on ensuring we offer the best products and prices to our
loyal Clubcard customers

Tesco Bank results 2012/13

{m % growth
Tesco Bank revenue (exc VAT, exc impactof IFRIC43Y  £1,021m 22)%
Tesco Bank trading profit £191m {15 1)%
Trading margm (rading profitirevenue) 18 71% {284)bp

In recent years, the Bank’s profit has been impacted by a couple of
non-trading factors — the first, far value releases and the second, the
run-off of our legacy insurance agreement with Direct Line Group
Before these, profits grew well and are up 139% with a particularty
pleasing performance in customer lending

In fne with the rest of the industry, we have been proactively
consulting more widely with our custorners on PPF In Iight of this
contact, it has become necessary to ncrease our provision for
compensaton by £(85) milhion in the second half In addition to the
E(30) rmiihon prowsion in the first half, this takes us to a £(115) milfion
one-off charge

Group balance sheet

Net debt reduced by £0 2 bilhon year-on-year, despite the trading
profit impact and increased working capital, mainly due to
significantly reduced capital expenditure and a small increase

in property proceeds The working capital increase was largely

as a result of requlatory impacts i a number of markets and the
shortening of order lead times for general merchandise which
reduced our creditor days

Our return on capital employed, on a continuing operatiens basis
and prior to the mpact of one-off charges, 15 12 7% Thes 1s a (200)
basis point decline on returns calculated on a similar basis for last
year, mainly reflecting the trading prefit performance

We continued to see strong investor demand for our property

duning the year We launched the Tesco Lotus Retail Growth Freehold
and Leasehold Property Fund alongwrth a number of transactions
i the UK and South Korea, contributing to profits ansing on property-
related items of £370 mithon The market value of our property
across the Group currently exceeds £38 billion

Since becoming Chief Financial Officer | have made it a prionity

to improve cur debt metnics Resetting the UK margin, regulatory
challenges in South Korea and a disapponting profit performance
in Europe have stalled the improvements we have made to date

It 15 a high priority for the Group to maintain a strong investment
grade credit ratng  Qur target on netindebtedness remains
unchanged and it should be achieved within the next couple of years

Fixed charge cover ts more challenging because our gross debt

has long matunty penods We have £2 biflion of debt that we can
potent:ally retire over the next three years Our lower level of sale and
leasebacks will help stow down the nsing rent bill Both of these will
benefit fixed charge cover Qur improved cash flow growth will help
improve retained cash flow to adyusted net debt, a key credit rating
measure, underpinning our commiment to mantan a strong
nvestment grade rating

tLooking forward — our approach to growth and returns

The actions we have taken over the last two years have removed

a number of significant barniers to progress and underpin our more
disciplned approach to capital allocation

As we adapt to ensure we deliver on our obgective to be the best
multichannel retaiter for our customners, we are realistic in our
approach to growth and returns We can therefore offer clanty to
shareholders about how we intend to deliver an appropriate balance
of growth and returns tn the years ahead

We are managing the business in grder to

* Generate positive free cash flow

* Ensure a disciplined allocatron of capstal within a range of 3 5%
to 4% of sales

+ Maintain a strong investment grade credit rating

We are therefore allocating our capital to achieve three dear
pronities

1 Continuing to invest in a strong UK business
2 Establishing multichannel leadershup in all of our markets
3 Pursuing disciphined international growth
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This means that, in the current economic environment, investars
can expect us to deliver

» Mid-single digit trading profit growth

* Return on capital employed withim a range of 12% to 15%

* Dividend growth, broadly in line with underlying earmings,
with a target cover of rore than 2 times

Our approach te growth and returns

Guiderails
Trading profit growth

Finanaial disciphlines

Generate positive free

cash flow * Mid-single digit

Sustanable ROCE
* 12% to15% range

Allocate capital wathin range
of 4% down to 3 5% of sales

Dvidend growth

* [n hne with undertying EPS
+ Target cover of inore than 2 times

Maintain a strong investment
grade credit rating

We will update on aur progress n the context of these objectives
as part of our future results announcements

As we described earlier, the fundamental change in our approach
to new space afso has imphcations for our sale and leaseback
programme Two years ago, we reviewed the proegramme and
announced a steady reduction in the level of divestments, in order to
ensure that any property profits released were matched to the level
of new profit created by development activities Given that we have
stgrificantly reduced the amount of these activities going forward,
we believe that it 15 appropriate to accelerate the scaling back of the
sale and leaseback programme, such that it is unlkely to make

a matenal contribution after the next few years

Gur reported underlying profit measure currently includes these
property profits and related items, and therefore its growth over
the next few years would be held back by this accelerated reduction
We will therefore disclose and adjust for this impact when using
underlying earnings per share as the basis for our dividend policy

In doing so, we will bettes ahign dividend growth to the key targeted
profit performance measure for the business

Growth has always been a central part of the investment case

for Tesco 7o be clear, 1tss still at the core of the investment case,
but 1t 1s now a sustamable level of growth — a growth that enables
us 1o deliver improving returns and a much stronger level of

cash generation

The guidance we are sharing s for rmid-single digit trading profit
growth This takes inte account the structurally changing retatling
environment and the lower growth outlock for econormes and
consurmer spending around the world

We are determined to achteve this growth in a balanced way and
we see the application of our financial disciphines as an important
part of ensuring it 1s delwered in a way that supports strong,
sustainable and attractive returns going forward

We will ightly control our capex There will hkely be a very small
mcrease in 2013/14, as we push on at pace with our refresh plans
m the UK Following this, we will move quickly into and then down
through the range we have set out of 4% down to 3 5% of sales
importantly this will enable us to move to a position where we

can produce free cash flow without the historic requirernent for
property proceeds

This ts clearly a significant change from our hustoric cash flow shape
For @ number of years, we rehied on property proceeds to fund our
investment, as capex exceeded avalable cash We are getting close
to a position where capex ts broadly equivalent to available cash,
removing our relance on these proceeds From then on, availlable
cash grows and exceeds capex, giving us much greater flexibility
from a cash point of view

Protecting our strong position in the UK 1s stilf one of our highest
prionties The best returns now are from refreshing our existing
stores and mvesting in the broader muluchannel opportunities

of converience and online We will not invest in those large-store
schemes where we see unacceptable returns We will, of course,
continue our process of making our existing large stores even more
compelling destinations with the repurposing of space

QOur next prionty is Asta where modem retail 1s still very
underdeveloped We will continue to strengthen our positions

in Thalland, Malaysia and South Korea In China, we still see

a huge opportunity, although our approach going forward 1s more
measured, focused on stand-alone retail sites in the three regions
where we have critical mass arid good margims We will buikd out the
remamning 13 Lifespace malls, but are not committing capital to any
new freehold investrments beyond these

Finally, in Europe, our large-store networks are largely complete and
we are effectively at a mamtenance level of capex Specific capital
investments will be considered, but these will be about improving

the assets we have and expanding in low capitat formats such

as the internet and convenience

More of our capital will be going into already high-returning
businesses and into driving forward returns in our Immature
businesses

Thus allocation will enable us to produce a steady improvement in
return on capital employed from the current base, witfun a range
of 12% to 15%

The approach | have laid out above provides appropnate and realistic
objectives for the business As we deliver our objective of being the
leading multuchannel retailer, we are determined to do even better -
for customers and for shareholders

T

Laune Mcllwee Chief Financial Officer
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-
Board of Directors

1 Sir Richard Broadbent as +
Non-executrve Chairrman

Sir Richard Broadbert joined the Board of
Tesco PLC on 2 July 2011 and was appomted
Chairman on 30 Novernber 2011 He started
his career at HM Treasury before joiming
Schroders in 1986 In 2000, Sir Rechard

was appointed Executive Charrman of HM
Customs and Excise He also joned the
Management Board of the UK Civil Service,
serving n both roles untit 2003 In 2003 he
was appointed to the Board of Barclays ple,
becoming Senior Independent Director in
September 2004 and Deputy Chairman in
2010 He stepped down from the Board of
Barclays on 30 September 2011 Sir Richard
joined the Board of Arriva plc in July 2004
and served as Chairman from November
2004 unul 2010 He s also a trustee of the
chanty Relate

Committee membership

(from 23 February 2013)

& = Nenmnatrons Committee

# = Audit Committee

® = Rermuneration Committee

+ = Corporate Responsibility Committee

2 Philip Clarke

Group Chief Executive

Phihp Carke was appointed to the Board on
16 November 1998 Prior to his appointment
as CEQ m March 2011 he was Asia, Europe
& IT Drrector Philip began his career with
Tesco in-store dunng 1974 and continued

to work part-time through school and
uruversity After graduating with a degree

in Econormic History, he joined the Tesco
Management Traiming Programme and

then spent nine years in store management
before hofding a number of roles in commercial
and marketing In 1994 he was appainted
Stores Director and a year later promoted to
Regional Managing Director, before joining
the Tesco PLC Board as Supply Chain
Director and a year later adding Information
Technology to his responsibiines

3 Laune Mcllwee

Chief Financial Officer

Laune Mcliwee was appointed to the Board
on 27 January 2009 as Chief Financial
Officer He began hus career with Tesco in
2000 as UK Finance Director and after four
years, became Distnibution Director Prior to
Tesco, Laune worked for PepsiCo in a varniety
of roles including Vice President of Business
Planning at Frizo-Lay International, Chief
Financial Officer and Business Change
Dwrector at Frito-Lay Europe, Chuef Financial
Officer of Walkers Snack Foods and Finance
Drrector of PepsiCo Eastern Europe Laune
15 a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and a member
of The Hundred Group of Finance Drrectors

4 Patrick Cescau am &

Senior Independent Director

Patrick Cescau was appointed a Non-
executve Director on 1 February 2009 and
became Senior Independent Director in July
2010, he s also a member of the Audit,
Nominations and Corporate Respansibility
Commmuttees Patrick was Group Chief
Executive of Unilever from 2005 to 2008, and
prior to this he was Chairman of Unilever plc,
Vice Charman of Unilever NV and Foods
Director Hewas also a Non-executve
Director of Pearson pic from 2002 untl 2012
and became Senior Independent Director in
2010 Patrick was appointed Nor-executive
Chairman of InterContinental Hotels Group
on 1 January 2013 and Is also a Non-
executive Director of International Airlines
Group Hewas appointed a Chevaher de la
Légion d’honneur 1n 2005 He s a trustee of
the Leverhulme Trust and Chairman of the
St Jude india Children’s Charity, and was
formerly a Director at INSEAD

5 Gareth Bullock =

Non-executive Director

Gareth Bullock was appointed a Non-
executive Director on 3 July 2010 and was
appomted to the Board of Tesco Bank as

a Non-executive Director effective from

17 July 2012 He s also a member of the
Audit Committee Gareth was Group
Executive Director of Standard Chartered plc
until hss retirement in Apnl 2010 and was also
responsible for the Group's nsk and special
asset management function He is Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Commuttee of Spirax-Sarco
Engineenng ple, a Non-executive Director

of Global Market Group Ltd and a member
of the Adwisory Council of Good Governance
Group (G3) Gareth has been a trustee of
the British Council since October 2012
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6 Stuart Chambers a

Non-executive Director

Stuart Chambers was appointed 3 Non-
executive Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Commuttee on 3 July 2010
and was appointed to the Board of Tesco
Bank as a Non-executive Director effective
from 17 July 2012 He is also a member of
the Nominations Committee He was Group
Chief Executive of NSG Group from 2008 to
2009 Prior to NSG’s acquisition of Pilkington
plc in 2006, Stuart was Group Chief Executive
of Pilkington plc Previously he hetd a number
of senior roles at Pikington plc, the Mars
Corporatton and Royal Dutch Shell From
2006 to 2013 he was a Non-executive
Director of Smiths Group plc and from

2010 to 2013 a Non-executive Director

of Manchester Arport Group plc Stuart

was appointed a Non-executive Director

of Rexam plc on 1 February 2012 and
Non-executive Chairman effective from

22 February 2012

7 Olivia Garfield

Non-executive Director

Olivia Garfield (L) was appointed a Non-
executive Director on 1 Apnl 2013 She has
worked for BT since 2002 and has been
CEO of Openreach since 2011 Prior to that
she carried out a range of senior strategic
and eperational roles, including Group
Crrector Strategy, Portfolio and Regulation,
Managing Director Commeraial and Brands,
Global Services and Vice President UK
Customer Services, Global Services From
1998 to 2002 Liv worked for Accenture as
a consultant in the Communications and
High Tech Market Unit, desigring and
imptemnenting business change solutions
across a number of industry sectors

8Ken Hanna as e

Non-executive Director

Ken Hanna was appointed a Non-executive
Director on 1 April 2009 He 1s a member

of the Nominations and Remuneration
Comrmttees and became Audit Committee
Chairman on 5 Qctlober 2012 Ken was
previously Chief Financial Officer of Cadbury
plc from 2004 until 2009 and prior to that an
Operating Partner of Compass Partners and
CFO and then CEO of Dalgety plc Ken has
also been CFO of Urited Distillers and Awis
Europe plc He 15 currentty Chairman of
Inchcape ple, Aggreko plc and Shooting

Star CHASE Ken 15 a fellow of the Insbtute
of Chartered Accountants

9 Deanna Oppenheimer &
Non-executive Director

Deanna Oppenheimer was appointed a
Non-executive Director on 1 March 2012
and was appainted to the Board of Tesco
Bank as a Non-executive Director effective
from 17 July 2012 Shes also a member

of the Corporate Responsibthty Committee
Deanna held vanious senior roles between
2005 and 2011 at Barclays, mitially as Chief
Execuiive of UK Retail and Business Banking,
Vice Chair of Glebal Retail Banking and also
as Chief Executive of Europe Retaill and
Business Banking Prior to this, she was
Marketing Director and later President of
Consumer Banking of Washington Mutual
She has also served as a Non-executive
Drrector of Catellus and Plum Creek Timber
Deanna is currentdy CEO of CameoWorks
LLC and a Non-executive Director at NCR
Corporation and at AXA

10 Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker ¢ ¢
Non-executive Director

Jacquehne Tammenoms Bakker was
apponted a Non-executive Director on

1 January 2009 and 15 also a member of the
Corporate Responsibility and Rernuneration
Commuttees She was a Director General at
the Minustry of Transport in the Netherlands
from 2001 te 2007 and a Non-executive
Director of the Duich Land Registry and
Ordnance Survey from 2008 to 2012 Pnor
to this, she held serwor positions at Quest
International and McKinsey & Co Jacqueline
15 a trustee of the Van Leer Group Foundauon
and the Vice Charr of the Adwisory Board

to the Rotterdam Schoo! of Management
and was appointed a Chevalier de la Légion
d'honneurin 2006 Jacqueline s also a
Non-executive Director of Vivends and

Fiat Indusinal

11 Jonathan Lloyd

Company Secretary

Jonathan Lloyd was appointed Company
Secretary to the Board in December 2006
He joined Tesco as Deputy Company
Secretary and Corporate Secretariat Director
in Apnif 2005 from Freshfields Bruckhaus
Dernnger Jonathan s also Company
Secretary of Tesco Bank

1
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Executive Committee

Our Executive Committee oversees the implementation
of the strategy set by the Board. Over the past year we
have strengthened the Committee, bullding a team
with extensive UK, international and digital experience.

1 Philip Clarke
Group Chief Executive
See page 24 for biography

2 Laurie Mcllwee
Chief Financial Officer
See page 24 for biography

3 Matt Atkinson

Chief Marketing Officer

Matt joined Tesco in 2011 as Group Marketing and Chief Digital
Officer Before joining Tesco, Matt was the Global CEQ of Havas's
digital and data businesses Prior to this, Matt had a diverse
background in marketing, brand and agency management

4 Chns Bush

Managing Director — UK

Chris joined Tesco in 1982 and has held vanious positions including
Store Manager, Store Director and International Support Office
Director In 2004 he relocated to South Kerea as COO of Tesco
Homeplus and later became CEQ of Tesco Malaysia In June 2010,
Chris was appointed CEO of Thadand and returned to the UK In
March 2012 to take up the role of Chief Operating Officer LIK
Chns was appointed UK Managing Drrector in January 2013

5 Jill Easterbrook

Managing Director — Developing Businesses

Jill joined Tesco in 2001 and has held leadership roles across
a range of business areas including Retail Operations, Group
Strategy, Corporate Affairs and Clothing (stores and online)

In January 2013 she took up her current postion as Managing
Director — Developing Businesses

6 Gordon Fryett

Group Property Director

Gordon joined Tesco in 1969 and has held a number of rofes
induding Operations Directar, Internattonal Support Director, CEQ of
Republic of Ireland and UK Property Director He 1s a Non-executive
Birector of Severn Trent PLC

7 Kevin Grace

Group Commercial Director

Kewvin joined Tesco in 1982 and has held a number of roles ncluding
Support Office Director, COO of South Korea, CEQ of Poland and
UK Property Director Kevin Joined the Executive Committee in 2011
and has responsibility for commercial practice across our markets
and sourcing from over 80 countnes worldwide

8 Benny Higgins

CEO Tesco Bank

Before yjoining Tesco Bank, Benny served as Chief Executive Officer
of Retall Business at HBOS PLC Between 1997 and 2005 Benny
was Chief Executive of Retail Banking at the Royal Bank of Scotland
He has been Chief Executive of Tesco Bank since 2008

9 Altson Horner

Group Personnel Director

Alison joined Tesco in 1999 as a Personnel Manager and was later
promoted 1o Personnel Director for Tesco's UK operations After
eight years in stores and general management roles she jomned
the Executive Commuttee in 2011 as Group Personnel Director

10 Trevor Masters

CEC Asia

Trevor joined Tesco in 1979 and has held a number of roles including
Store Manager, Store Director, Operauons Director for Extras, and
CEO of Central Europe He became CEQ of Asia in 2011
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11 Mike McNamara

Chief information Officer

Mike has been with Tesco since 1398, having previously worked
at Accenture and BT He was on the Board of tesco com from
its inception in 1999 through to 2006, during which time he
led the transition of tesco com onto a fully online platform,

as well as the national roll-out of the service

12 Adnan Morns

Group General Counsel

Adnan joined Tesco in September 2012 as Group General Counsel
Prior to Tesco, Adnan worked at BP plc as Associate General Counse!
for Refiming and Marketing From 2002 to 2009, Adnan was with
Centrica PLC, imitially as European General Counsel and then as
General Counsel for British Gas

15 Beb Robbins

Group Business improvernent Director

Bob joined Tesco in 1975 and has held a number of roles including
CEO of Asia, CEO of Central turope, Strategy and Development
Drector Asia and various retall, marketing and general management
roles Prior to taking up his current position as Group Busimess
Improvement Director, Bob held the role of Chief Operating

Officer UK

14 Rebecca Shelley

Group Corporate Affairs Director

Rebecca joined Tesco on 1 May 2012 as Group Corporate Affars
Director Before joining Tesco, Rebecca was a partner at Brunswick
LLP, where she advised a wide range of companies on financial and
corporate reputation 1ssues From 2000 to 2007, Rebecca worked
at Prudential, most recently as Group Communications Director
and before that as Group Investor Relations Director

" 12

16 17

15 Robin Terrel}

Group Multichannel Director

Robin joined Tesco in February 2013 as Group Multichannel
Director, having worked in online retalling nearly since its meeption
From 1999 Robin worked at Amazon, ultimately as VP & Managing
Director, with responsibility for Amazon’s UK and French businesses
After leaving Amazon, Robim held senior e-commerce and multichannel
roles at Figleaves com, John Lewis and House of Fraser

16 Ken Towle

Managing Director — Central Europe and Turkey

Ken joined Tesco in 1985 and has held a number of roles includimg
vanious UK operations roles and CEQ of Tesco China Ken joined the
Executive Committee as Internet Retaiing Director in 2011, before
taking up his current role as Managing Director of Central Europe
and Turkey in February 2013

17 Jonathan Lloyd
Company Secretary
See page 25 for biography
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Corporate governance

Introduction from the Chairman

This sectton of our report sets out how we manage Tesca to ensure

as far as possible that the values you would expect us to operate by

are in place and adhered to, that commercial and operational risks

are identified and controlled, that we have strategies and plans in place
to optimise shareholder value over an appropnate tme penod and that
a proper system of checks and balances 15 1n place without mhibiting
the efficient running of the Company

Our approach ta governance remains unchanged from last year

It begins wath the recogmiion that itis not a set of rutes but the framework
supporting the core values which defines what 15 and what 1s not
acceptable Itis an expression of the way we want to conduct ourselves
which thforms actions and decisions whether or not there s a specific
rule for the situation, and which supports the cuiture and behaviours
that we wish to foster

The main governance challenges of the past year have been

*+ to bed in the substantally new govemance framewark we put
m place in February 2012,

* to manage a significant transition in batance and size of the Board,
mcreasing its Non-executive representation relative to Executive

Sir Richard Broadbent Chaiman within an absolutely smailer Board, and
+ 0 judge and oversee the execution of a number of significant
In this section business initiatives
28 Introduction from the Chairman The gavernance framework, and perhaps more importantly the

29 Con"uﬁl;aﬁze' wth the UK (_Zérisar'afe-é overnance Code comporate culture and human relationships that underpin all governance
frameworks, are operating as we hoped and we do not judge that any
The Board further matenal changes are needed

29 Role and responslbmnes or the Boarcl The Board now comprises ten Directors, seven of whom (excluding
30 Governance structures the Chairman) are Non-executive This change in both size and balance

e e —mmammem e - 15 SUPPOTtING the Board to bring a substantial focus on strategic and
31_ . ?E"”_’E rofes. .. . __ . ____ lengertermssues We do notanticpate further substantial changes
31 Board composntnon and independence in size in the foreseeable future although the exact number of Directors
32 Conflicts of nterest - TTTTTTTITTTTICCTTT ° may nise or fall sightly in line with the normal process of Board

- == S e e -+ e —eee - (JEVElOPMIENT and sUCcession planning

52 Appoantments and succession

32 BOafd!ndU(tlDﬂ TTTooTTTTTTT oTTmm T

32 Information and SUpPOrt

32 Training and development

33 Board attendance

33 Boadevaliaton T - uaL.\._.an-d

Sir Richard Broadbent Charrman

Committee tnformation
34 Audit Committee

13 CorpTaraté Responsnbmly Commluee
37  Nomsnations Committee

Risk management and internal controls

38 Effectiveness ofnsk management and mternal controls

38 Pnncpal nsks and uncertainties

47 Fnancal nsks review

42 internal controls

43 Internal Audnt
43 External Audit

Engagement

43 Engagernent



Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code") sets out principles and
speafic provisions on how a company should be directed and controlled
to achieve standards of good corporate governance The Code was
revised in September 2012, wath mmor changes mcluding a greater focus
on a company’s approach to diversity For the 2012113 financial year,

the Company 1s required to report agamst the 2010 version of the Code
A copy of the Code 15 available at www fr¢ org uk

The Board considers that Tesco PLC has complied in all matenial respects
with the 2010 version of the Code for the whole of the financial year
ended 23 February 2013

Role and responsibilities of the Board

The Board 1s the custodian of the Company’s Values and of its long-term
vision, and provides strateqic direction and guidance for the Company
There are certain matters which are deemed sigrificant enough to be
reserved for only the Board's decision These are set out in a schedule
of Matters Reserved to the Board, which was updated in February 2012,
as part of a number of changes te our governance framework, to ensure
that it remained m line with best practice

The Board’s agenda 1s determined against a pre-planned template to
ensure that, i addrtion to day-to-day matters requinng its attention,
all relevant issues come to the Board for review at appropriate intervals
The Board also receves regular updates, including between meetings
if necessary, on a range of matters including business, financial, legal
and corporate affairs

Ouring the year ended 23 February 2013, the Board considered a wide
range of matters, including

-

the Group’s strategy and key prioniues,

the strategy and performance of key businesses and functions within
the Group,

* the financial position of the Group and vartous businesses withim the
Group,

the budget and long-term plans for the Group,

* the interim and full-year results,

corporate and social respensibility,

sharehotder feedback and reports from brokers and analysts,

opportunittes for business development,

risk management and controls within the Group, including a detailed
review of the Key Risk Register,

reports from the Audit Commuttee, Corporate Responsibility
Committee, Neminations Commuttee, and Remuneration
Committee, and

a review of the effectiveness of the Board, the Matters Reserved to
the Board and the Terms of Reference of Board Commuttees

Tesco PLC Annuzl Report and Financiat Statements 2013 \2_9/

These matters are in additron to the work of the Commuttees, reported
to the Board, which covered in detall a range of impaortant matters such
as remuneration, succession planring, talent development, audit and
socal responsibility

In addition to its regular programme of activittes, the Board made
a number of key strateqic decisions in the year, including to dispose
of our business in Japan, to exit the US, to acquire Mobcast and

a stake in WE7 as part of an online media strategy and to carry

out the tPO of a property fund in Thalland

The Board defegates to the Group Chief Executive (*CEQ’) the
management of the day-to-day operation of the business, in accordance
with appropriate nsk parameters The 8oard monitors compliance with
palicies and achievements against objectives by holding management
accountable for its actvities throughregular updates In addition, each
busmess urut within the Group 1s required to update the Board on a
regular basis, gving the Board the epportunity to understand and
explore 1ssues in-depth as appropnate

In a constantly evolving and challenging business environment, the
Board recognises that our corporate governance framework needs
10 continue to adapt so that it remains fit for purpose The Board

will therefore continue to review structures and processes across

the Group to ensure they remam effecuve and to make umely changes
when needed to enhance the way the Group operates
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Corporate governance continued

Governance structures

Board
Chawman

I

Tesco PLC Board

{ | [ |

Nominations Audit Remuneration R Corpor.la)tft
Commuttee Committee Committee esponsibiiity
Commuttee
Executive Committee
Executive Committee
[ ] | i [ 1
Commercial Complance Digital Retailing People Matters E;?;Zg;: RESDSOO:;::I)I[I ty Technology
Committee Committee Committee Group Commiitee Commttae Committee

The Board 1s supported In 1ts work by the following key committees
* Nominations Committee,

* Audit Commuittes,

* Remuneration Commuttee, and

= Corporate Responsibhity Commuttee

The work of the Comemittees 1s essentral to the effective operation of the
Board The Committees consider in greater depth and detall, on behalf
of the Board, issues relevant to their Terms of Reference, and report to
the Board after every meeting

Detalls of the remit and activities of the Nominations Committee

can be found on page 37, the Audit Committee on pages 34 to 35,

the Remuneratron Committee on pages 57 to 58, and the Corporate
Responsibiity Commustiee on page 36 Copies of the Terms of Reference
of the above committees are available on the Company’s website at
www tescoplc com

The Board delegates responsibility for formulating and, after approval,
implementing the Group’s strategic plan and for management of the
day-to-day operation of the Group to the CEQ The Group Executive
Commuttee, which the CEO charrs, supperts the CEQ in carrysng out his
role and manages the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
The Group Executive Commuttee comprnses the Executive Directors
and a number of semior executives Biagraphies of the members of

the Group Executive Committee can be found on pages 26 to 27

The Group Executive Committee has established a number of
sub-commuttees which assist 1t in its work and ensure

* strategec choices are properly considered,
* new growth opportumties are fully discussed, and
* progress against the Group’s priorities is reviewed

The membership of each of the sub-committees compnises an
appropriate mix of Group Executive Comrmittee members and sensor
management from relevant functions The CEQ chaurs all of these
committees The sub-committees report 10 the Group Executive
Committee after each of therr meetings on ther work and ssues

are escalated for discussion and/or decsion to the Group Executive
Commuttee or the Board as appropriate The key comrmuttees are

* Commercial Commuttee,

Comphance Commtttee,

Digital Retailng Commuttee,

People Matters Group,

Praperty Strategy Committee,

Socaf Respansibility Commuttee, and

Technology Committee

The Board 1s keptup to date with developments in the business,
including the work of the Group Executive Committee and its
sub-commuittees, through the CEQ's monthly report, which is also
discussed in detail at each Board meeting Group Executive Committee
members regularly attend Board meetings to present itemns and they
also regularly meet with the Chairman to discuss matters which are
specific to their area on a less formalbasis

To support the governance structure there are a number of Group
policies and processes i place

Code of Business Conduct

The Code of Business Conduct explains to colleagues therr most
important indvidual responsibiities and obligations while working

for Tesco, and all colleagues must comply with it The code provides
guidance on key ssues which may anse for colieagues and indicates who
they should contact if they think that they, or another colleague, may
have breached those rules Al colleagues are required to provide an
annual staterment of cormphance with the terms of the code Disciplinary
action may result from breaches of the code

Whistleblowing

The Group operates a Whistleblowing policy which is reviewed annualty
In every business we operate a confidential tetephone and email service
which enables concerned colleagues to report, anonymously f they
choose, any instances of Inappropriate behaviour or malpractice within
the business Such issues mclude unethecal or illegal behaviour such as
bribery and corruption, fraud, dishonesty and any practices which may
prejudice or endanger our colleagues, customers or the environment



All complaints made are treated as confidential and are investigated by
the relevant department and where the individual prowides their identity,
they are kept updated Where there 15 a serious 1ssue, it will be escalated
to the CEO of the relevant business This palicy 1s monitored by the
compliance committees in each business, as well as by the Group
Comphance Commuttee and the Group Audit Commuttee annually

Anti-corruption

We seek to maintain the huighest standards of ethics and integnity in

the way we do business around the world Brnibery and corruption in all
forms are Wegal and unacceptable Any act of fraud, bribery or corruption
would be treated with extreme senousness by Tesco and our Group CEQ
has communicated our zero-tolerance approach to all forms of bribery
and corruplion to all colleagues We expect our business partners to
adopt the same approach In accordance with our anti-bribery and
corruption policy, the CEQ of each business is responsible for ensunng
comphance with all local legistation and Company policies and for
reporting on this area to the Group Comphiance Committee, which

15 chasred by the Group CEOQ To ensure the implementation of our
bribery and corruption policy, key colleagues across the busmess have
completed anti-bribery trairung, using an e-learruing tool which includes
traning on the UK Bnbery Act, as well as our policy, and reguires them
to pass an assessment Annual refresher tramning 15 also provided

Board roles

The Chairman and CEO

There 15 a clear delineation between the roles of the Chairman and CEQ
Therr role descriptions were updated and agreed by the Board i 2012
and are summarised below

The Chairman was mdependent upon his appomtment to the Board

He leads the Board, ensuning its effectiveness while taking account of
the interests of the Group's various stakeholders, and promoting hugh
standards of corporate governance The Charrman has regular one-to-
one meetings with the CEQ and other members of the Group Executive
Commuttee He also has one-to-one and group meetings with the Non-
executive Directors The CEQ leads the development of strategy and
manages all aspects of the performance and management of the Group
The main responsibilities of the Chairman and CEO include

Chairman’s responsibilities

Ensuring the Directors recerve accurate, trnely and clear mformation
Facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors and
the engagement between Executive and Non-executive Directors
Ensunng an annual evaluaton of the Board 15 conducted and leading
the performance evaluation of the CEO and Non-executive Directors
and ensuring that Committee Chairmen conduct evaluations of thewr
Committees

Bulding an effective Board

The induction of new Chrectors and further traiming for all Directors
as appropnate

Communicating effectively with shareholders and other stakeholders
and ensuring that the Board develops an understanding of the view
of stakeholders

Group CEO’s responsibilities

Leading the devetopment of the Company’s strategic direction and
implementing the agreed strategy

Identifying and executing new business opportunities

Managing the Group's risk profile and implementing and maintairng
an effective framework of internal controls

Building and maintaintng an effective top management team
Ensuring effecuve communication with shareholders and key
stakeholders and reqularly updating mstututional investors on the
busimess strategy and performance
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Sentor Independent Director

Patnck Cescau was the Senior Independent Director ('SID") throughout
the year Patrick was selected in July 2010 for the role because of his
experience and expertise, both as an Executive and as a Non-executive
Director A biography 15 avallable on page 24 In his role as SID, Patnck
Cescau 15 available to assist in resoling shareholder concerns should
alternative channels be exhausted The SID’s role includes responsibifity
for the Charman’s appraisal and succession, and te hold at least one
meetng each year with the Non-executive Directors without the
Chairman present Those responsibilites were fulfited during the

past year

Non-executive Directors

Our Non-executive Directors have the wide range of skills and
experrence necessary to enable them to provide constructive challenge,
scrutimise performance and help to develop our strategy Biographies
are avallable on pages 24 to 25

Company Secretary

The Group Company Secretary s responsible for developing,
implermnenting and sustaning high standards of corporate governance
Key responsibilities include

keeping abreast of legislation, requlation and corporate governance
developments which impact the business and adwising the Board
accordingly,

supporting the Chairman and other Board members as necessary,
ncluding the management of Board and Cormmittee meetings
and their evaluation, advising on Drectors’ duties and facditaiing
information {lows,

when appropnate, providing a discreet but challenging voice to
the Board,

communicating with shareholders and other stakeholders and
ensuring that the Board 1s kept mformed of therr opinions, and

ensuring that the Company 1s complhant with statutory and regulatory
governance requirements

Board composition and independence

During the year, the Board was intenuonafly managed to a smaller size
and, within that, proportionally greater Non-executive representation
relative to Executive These changes were designed to support the

Board in focusing more of its attentron on the strateqic and longer-term
opporturuties and challenges facing the business, and to underpin the
trust and respect necessary to ¢reate a collegiate, unitary Board wathin
which debate can be robust, open and transparent

In ight of the thanged balance of the Board, a series of steps have

been taken to ensure that Non-executive Directors maintain hne of sight
into busness operations, share thinking and views on business 1ssues
among each other and with management, and have the opportunity

to form firsi-hand relationships with senior management, especiatly

the Group Executive Committee and those betow identified as having
leadership potential

As at 23 February 2013, the Board of Tesco PLC comprised the
Non-executive Chairman, Sir Richard Broadbent, two Executive
Directors and six Non-executive Dhrectors, all of whom are considered
to be independent under the criteria set out in the Code On 1 Aprit 2013,
a further Non-executwe Director, Olivia Garfield, was appointed bringing
the total Board size up to ten We do not anticipate further substantial
changes in size in the foreseeable future, although the exact number
of Directors may nise or fall shightly m ine with the normal process of
Board development and succession planring

MIIAYIND

—~

MAATYE SSANISNE

—

MITAIY JIONVINHOHId

—

FINVYKRUIAOD

—

SINIWILVLS TVIDNVNIL

e



w Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

Corporate governance continued

The following changes to the Board took place dunng the year ended
23 February 2013 and between that date and the date of publication
of this document

Changes to the Board since 23 February 2012 ‘I
Deanna Oppenheimer Non-executive  Appomnted to the Board
Drerector with effect from 1 March
2012
Richard Brasher Executive Stepped down from the
Director Board on 15 March 2012
Andrew Higginson Executive Retired from the Board
Director on 1 September 2012
Tim Mason Executive Stepped down from the
Director Board on 5 December
2012
Lucy Neville-Rolfe Executive Retired from the Board
Director on 2 January 2013
Karen Cook Non-executwe  Retred from the Board
Director on 23 February 2013
Ken Hydon Non-executwve  Retred from the Board

Director on 23 February 2013

Changes to the Board since 23 February 2013

Olwia Garfield Non-executive  Appointed to the Board
Brrector with effect from 1 April
2013

Our Non-executive Dwrectors are apponted for an initial penod of three
years, subject to (a) remaining independent, and (b} provision B 71 of
the Code, which requires all directors to be re-elected by shareholders
annually at the Company's Annual General Meeting ('AGM'}, and may
be reappointed for further penods of three years The Board makes a
careful assessment of the time commitment required frorm the Chairman
and Non-executive Directors to discharge their roles propery This s
discussed with potential candidates as part of the recruitment process
and a commitment to the appropnate time requirement 1s included n
their engagement ietters The independence of each Non-executive
Birector 1s reviewed annually by the Chairman as part of the
performance review process

The terms and conditions of appomtment of our Non-executive Directors
are availlable for inspection at the Company's registered office and at
our AGM

Length of service of each Non-executive Director —I

Years m post

Non executve Director Date of appontment at 2013 AGM

Sir Richard Broadbent 2 July 2011 2

Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker 1 January 2009 4

Patrick Cescau 1 February 2009 4

Kent Hanna 1 April 2009 4

Gareth Bullock 3 July 2010 3

Stuart Chambers 3 July 2010 3

Deanna Qppenheimer 1 March 2012 1

QOlwia Garfield 1 Apnl 2013 —

Executive Drrectors are permitted to hold one FTSE 100 external Non-
executive Directorshup, although none of the Executive Directors do

Biographies of the Board are available on pages 24 to 25

Conflicts of interest

The Company has comprehensive procedures in place to deal with any
situation where a Director has an actual or potential conflict of interest
Under these procedures the Board isrequired to

consider each confhct situation separately on its particular facts,

*» consider the conflict situatron in conpunction with the rest of their
duties under the Companies Act 2006,

* keep appropniate records and Board minutes demonstrating any
authorisation granted by the Board for such conflict and the scope
of any approvals given, and

¢ regularly review conflict authorisations

Appointments and succession

Board development 1s a continuous process We are constantly assessing
what the appropnate mix of skills and expenence should be for the
Board, given the diverse markets the Group operates in and the breadth
of operations and services offered We also ensure plans are in place to
support successton for ali key Board roles Further details of the Board
appointment process can be found in the Nominations Commuttee
section on page 37 and brographves of our Directors can be found

on pages 24 to 25

Board Induction

All new Directors receive a personahised induction programme, tatlored
to their expenence, background and particular areas of focus, which is
designed to devetop ther knowledge and understanding of the Group's
culture and operations The programme has evolved over time to take
nta account feedback from new Directors and the development of best
practice, and includes a wide-ranging programme of meetings with
senior management from across the Group, attending results and broker
briefings, comprehensive briefing materials and opportuntties to visit the
Group's operauons across the world including spending time in-store
and in our distnibution network The Chairman agrees the personalised
induction plan with each new Director and ensures that it meets the
individual needs of that Director

Information and support

During the year we reviewed the information provided to the Board,
with a view to creating a suite of imnformation which covers the nght
ground in a focused way to support the Board's pattern of meetings,

as well as ensuning that Directors recewe appropnate information in

the periods between meetings i a form conststent with the information
provided for Board meetings

Board papers are arculated a week before each meeting to give the
Drrectors and Commuttee members sufficient time to fully consider
the information

All Directors have access to the services of the Company Secretary and
may take iIndependent professional advice at the Company's expense
in conducting their duties The Company provides insurance cover and
mdemnities for its Directors and Officers

Training and development

The Chairman reviews the Directors’ development needs as part

of the annual performance evaluation process and puts appropriate
arrangements in place for speafic traming The Nominations Commuttee
reviews the Directors’ skills and experience as a group againsi those
needed to continue to enable the Board to oversee and support the
Group's diverse operations it the future, and identifies any gaps This
mforms the approach to ongoing refreshing of the Board as well as the
training plan for the current members of the Board Traming 1s arranged
to help develop the knowledge and skills of the Directors in a vanety of
areas relevant to the Group's business, ncluding social, environmental
and ethical issues In the last year the Board recewved tramning focusing,
among other things, on the global macroeconomic outlook and social
trends Further training in 2 number of key areas s planned for Directors
in the comng year, including developments and opportunities in relation
to digital and ther obligations as directors of a isted company



The Board holds at least ene in-depth session a year focusing on one

of the Group’s key areas of bustness, with the aim of broadening and
deepening the Directors’ understanding of that busmess In March 2012
the Board carried out an in-depth review of our UK business Board

trips allow the Directors to view first-hand the progress, development,
challenges and direction of our businesses, as well as meetsng our leams
in those businesses

Board attendance

The Board held eight scheduted meetings in the year ended 23 February
2013, ncluding the AGM, and ad hoc meetings were also arranged

to deal with matters between scheduled meetings as appropriate

It1s expected that all Derectors attend scheduled Board and relevant
Cormmittee meetings, unless they are prevented from domg so by

pnor commitments, and that all Directors will attend the AGM Where
Directors are unable to attend meetings, they recewve the papers
scheduled for discussion in the relevant meetings, giving them the
opportunity to raise any issues and give any comments to the Charrman
in advance of the meeting

Following each meeting the Charman briefs any member not present
on the discussions and any decisions taken at the meeting Directors leave
the meeting where matters relating to them, or which may constitute

a conflict of interest for them, are being discussed

The tabte below records attendance at the meetings of the Board

Board attendance

Nurnber of
possible Actual
meetings meetings
attended at ended
Non-executive Directors
Sir Richard Broadbent 8 8
Gareth Buliock 8 8
Patrick Cescau 8 8
Stuart Chambers 8 8
Ken Hanna 8 B
Deanna Oppenheimer 8 B
Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker B B
Executive Directors
Philip Clarke 8 8
Laurie Mcllwee 8 8
Past Non-executive Directors
Karen Cook 8 6
Ken Hydon 8 7
Past Executive Directors
Andrew Higginson 4 -
Tim Mason 6 6
Lucy Neville-Rolfe 7 7
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In the current year, the Board will move to a pattern of six formal
meetings annually, plus a strategy meeting Board meetings will be
preceded by a day of Commuttee meetings and by a dinner the previous
evening Board meetings themselves will last substantially the whole day
Thes pattern of meetings s intended to support the Board’s focus on the
strategic and long-term while ensunng it can discharge its momitonng
and oversight role effectively through intensive high-guality meetings
and high-guality information flows This pattern of meetings also serves
to broaden the poo! of international talent and working executives able
to take up a non-executive role

The effectiveness of this approach will be reviewed at the end of
the year

Board evaluation

The Board conducted an external evaluation in 2011712 with the suppart
of Egon Zehnder, which has no other connection with the Company

In 2012113 we conducted an internal Board evaluation The evaluation
considered a range of factors relevant to the effectiveness of the

Board, including the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowtedge of the Board, its diversity and how the Board works together
as a urit The reviewwas led by the SID, supported by the Company
Secretary and combined in-depth interviews with each Director and

a questionnaire completed by members of the Board The resuits of the
review were considered in detatl by the Board, which recognised that

a number of improvements had taken place during the year, while also
notmg an appetae for continuing to push the agenda towards mare
strategic discussion The Board agreed a number of actions to be taken
m the corming year

Annual reviews of the performance of the Remuneration and Audit
Committees have been carned out, led by each Commuttee's Chairman
These reviews have confirmed that each Committee continues to
operate effectively and in each case a number of actions were agreed
to further improve the effectiveness of the relevant committee Reviews
of the effectiveness of the Nommatrons Committee and Corporate
Responsibihity Committee will be held in the 2013/14 year

Qur CEOQ reviewed the performance of the CFO and the Chairrman

has reviewed the performance of the CEO and each Non-executive
Director The Non-executive Directors led by the SID have reviewed

the performance of the Charman Having completed these evaluations,
the CEQ, Charman, Non-executive Directors and 51D have confirmed
that each individual whose performance they have assessed continues
to be effective and commitied to ther role

During the year, the Charrman metwith the Non-executive Directors,
without the Executive Directors present, to discuss a number of matters
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Corporate governance continued

Audit Committee

Iiudlt Committee attendance

Number of
possible Actual
meetings meetings
attended attended
Mermbers
Ken Hanna (Chairman since 5 October 2012) 5 5
Gareth Bullack 5 5
Patrick Cescau 5 4
Past members
Ken Hydon (Chairman until 5 October 2012) 3 3

Introductlon from the Committee Chalrman

Qur business operates in an increasingly challenging environment,
particularly with regard to economic, reputational, political and
regulatory factors Consequently we have seen a trend towards
increasing risks in the business The role of the Audit Commuttee s
now more Important than ever in reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s Internal ¢ontrols, prowiding assurance on the Group risk
management processes and assessing and acting upon information
recewved by external audstors and Internal Audit We keep the current
risk management and internal controls framework under review,

to ensure that it adapts to the changing environment and remains
as robust as it can be

Ken Hanna Audit Commuttee Chairman

Audit Committee responsibilities

The Commuttee’s Terms of Reference can be found at www tescoplc com
The Commuttee Chairman, Ken Hanna, and Gareth Bullock, 2 member
of the Committee, both have recent and relevant finanaal expenence

The key responsibilities of the Committee are to

consider the appointment of the external auditors, their reports
to the Commuttee and their independence, mcluding an assessment
of thewr appropriateness to conduct any non-audit work,

L3

review the financal statements and announcements relating
to the financial performance of the Company,

review the internal audit programme and ensure that the Intemnal
Audit function s adequately resourced and has appropnate standing
within the Company,

discuss with the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit,

review, and challenge where necessary, the actions and judgements
of management, in relation to the intenim and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board,

formally review the effectiveness of the external and internal audit
Processes,

consider management's response to any major External or Internal
Audit recommendations,

review the Cornpany’s plans for business continuity,

review the Company’s plans for the prevention and detection
of fraud, bribery and corruption, and

* report to the Board on how it has discharged its responsibilities

During the year the Committee receved update reports from a number
of businesses, including the Bank and from Internat Audit on its work,
including findings from its internal audit programme The Committee
atso considered a variety of matters including the Group Finance Risk
Reqgister, the arrangements for IT governance and business continuity,
the Grocery Supply Chamn Comphance Code and Whistleblowing
arrangements

In relation to the firnancial statements the Committee reviewed and
recommended approval of the quarterly, and half-yearly results and
annual financizl statements, conducted imparment reviews, reviewed
and recornmended dividend tevels, reviewed corporate governance
disclosures, and monitored the statutory audit

The Committee continually assesses the need for training and

the annual agenda provides substantal tme for technical updates
which are generally provided by external experts Dunng the year
training was provided on UK Financial Reporting Council’s guidance
of listed companies, developments in corporate governance, the
outputs from the Financial Reporting Review Panel, and regulatory
updates icluding the Competition Commission’s Issues statement,
the European Commussion’s proposals for audit reform, 1ASB
updates on reporting, direct and mdirect tax, pensions, capital
markets, sustainability, assurance and remuneration Traming

15 also provided on an cngoing basis to meet the specific needs

of ndividual committee members




PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘Pw(") has served as the Company's
auditors since 1983 The partner engaged on the audit 1s changed
regularly The services provided by PwC have been reviewed penodically
and the Audit Committee s satisfied that they remain appropniately
independent and are best placed to conduct the Company’s audit for
2013/14 The Commuittee therefore recommended PwC be reappointed
as the Company’s auditors

It1s essential for the Committee 1o be able to have an honest and open
relationship with both 1ts external and internal auditors Thus relationship
15 developed and maintaimed through regular private mestings with both
PwC and the Head of Internal Audit Further information on the role

of the external auditors and our Non-audit Service Policy can be found
on page 43

The Committee assessed the effectiveness of the external audit process
by rneans of a detailled questionnaire completed by key stakeholders
including the Board, the Executive Commuttee, members of senior
management and Internal Audit The questionnaire assesses the external
audit in the following areas quahfication, expertise and resources,
operational effectiveness, iIndependence and leadership The results are
rated aganst an ideal standard and compared to prior years to assess
the consistency of performance

The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function was assessed by means
of a detailed questionnaire compieted by key stakeholders including
members of senior management and the extermnal auditors The
assessment covers the Internal Audnt function's understandeing of #s
role and responsibiity, its charter, the quality of its communmicatrons,

its performance and the skills and experience of the function

The Committee carned out a review of its effectiveness dunng the

year, by the Committee Chairman conducting interviews with key
stakeholders and the use of a guestionnaire The Commuitee concluded
that it continued to be effective and has sufficient resources to carry out
its duties

Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 w
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Corporate governance continued

Corporate Responsibility Committee

Sir Richard Broadbent Corporate Responsibility Comnittee Chaimman

Corporate Responsibility Committee attendance

Number
of possib e Actual
meetngs meelings
attended attended
Members
Sir Richard Broadbent (Chairman) 4 4
Patrick Cescau 4 3
Deanna Oppenheimer 4 q
Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker 4 4

Introduction from the Chairman

Corporate responsibility 1s not new or optionat It reflects the inescapable
reality that If the values of a business fal to resonate with the values
of soviety, i1t 1s endangering its long-term prospenty For the Board
therefore, whose role 1t 1s to define and uphold the values of the
business, corporate responsibility 1s not just an ethical 1ssue Itis a
strategic 1ssue It 1s central to defining Tesco's identity, and defining
it 1n a way that inlegrates our customers’ values with our own The
establishment of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee reflects
Tesco's commitment to identifying and living by values which are
important to our colleagues and customers

The Corporate Responsibiity Commrttee was created by the Board

to ensure, reflecting thrs reakity, that the Board gives adequate attention
to this subject The fult ambt of the Commuttee's work can be gauged
by reading the Tesco and Society Report 2013 being published today

to accompany our Annual Report and Financial Statements This sets
out our thanking and our ambitions as they relate to our responsibility

in society and how we discharge it { commend it to you

Sir Richard Broadbent Corporate Responsibiity Commmittee Chairman

Corporate Responsl|bility Committee responsibilities

The Corporate Responsibility Committee was established in 2012

to ensure that the Board maintains an adequate focus on corporate
responsibiiity in its widest sense The Commuttee’s Terms of Reference
are avallable at www tescople com

The key responsibilities of the Commuttee are to

= define the Group's corporate and social obligations as a
responsible corporate atizen and oversee its conduct in the
context of those obligations,

approve a strategy for discharging the Group's corporate and social
responsibilities in such a way as to command respect and confidence,

identfy and monitor those external developments which are likely to
have a significant influence on the Group’s reputation andfor its abilny
to conduct its business appropriately as a good corporate citizen and
review how best to protect that reputation or that ability,

oversee the creation of appropnate polcies and supporting measures,

momtor the Group's engagement with external stakeholders and
other interested parties, and

* ensure that appropniate communications pohcies are in place and
working effectwely to builld and protect the Group's reputation both
internally and externally

During the year we introduced a new Core Purpose We make what
matters better, together Milkons of customers come to us for the food
and products they need for therr lves What matters to them 1s that we
make the hitle things better, providing milhions of great value products,
safely and conveniently every day Today, we have hundreds of thousands
of colleagues, tens of thousands of suppliers and distnibutors, and we are
sigreficant in thousands of communities around the world We have

also articulated a new Value to help us achieve our Core Purpose We use
our scale for good Our scale gives us an opportunity to make a positive
difference to some of the biggest challenges facing the world

The Committee spent time during the year considenng reputauonal
research and giving thought to where we are most relevant and where
we have an authentic contnbution to make The output was establishing
our three big ambitions

* to create new opportumties for milliens of young people around
the world,

* to help and encourage our colieagues and customers to live healthier
Iives and through this help to tackle the global obesity crisss, and

* 1o lead in reducing food waste globally

The Commuttee has regularly been updated on the work in these areas
and discussed the proposed approach to developing targets to measure
progress against these ambitions

Further snformation is available in our Tesco and Society Repart 2013,
which s avatlable on our website at www tescoplc com



Nominations Committee

| Nominations Committee attendance

Number of
possible Actual
meelings mee'mgs
attended atiended
Members
Sir Richard Broadbent (Chairman) 5 5
Patrick Cescau 5 5
Stuart Chambers 5 5
Ken Hanna 5 5

Introduction from the Chairman

The Normimations Committee has developed its role aver the past year

in hine with the broader terms of reference that were put in place at the
beginning of the year In a year of planned but rapid change in both
executive management and on the Board, the Commuttee has been very
conscous of the need to assess and manage the nisks that such change
brings and to ensure that where nsk is taken on, 1t 1s because it offers
the optimal way forward

In relation to executive management, an excepuonally leng period

of stability inevitably meant that change, when 1t came, would be broadly
based The Committee supported the CEO n developing his executive
team through the year, a process which 1s now substantially complete

In relation to the Board, the Committee oversaw a substanuial change
N its composition, to an overall smaller size, and its balance, with a
proportionally greater representation of Non-executive Directors than
Executive Direciors

Aside from these changes, the Committee, supported by the CEQ, has
mstituted a cycle of reviews of bench strength, succession and talent
development to ensure that Tesco maxirmises the considerable value
of its human capita! which has a breadth of skilfand expenence not
commanly available

Sir Richard Broadbent Nominatiens Committee Chairrman

Nominations Committee responsibilities

The Committee’s Terms of Reference are avallable at www tescoplc com
Where matters discussed relate to the Chairman, the Serior Independent
Non-executive Director chairs the meeting

The key responsibibties of the Committee include
* reviewing the Board's structure, size and composition,

* identifying, norminating and reviewing candidates for appointment
to the Board,

putting in place plans for succession,

-

reviewing the leadership needs of the organisation, both Executive
and Non-executive,

reviewing the Group's talent planning programmes,

reviewing Board successton over the longer term, in order to mamntain
an appropriate balance of skills and expenence and to ensure
progressive refresh of the Board, and

monitoring the Group's comphance with corporate governance
gutdelines
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Bunng the year consideration was given to finding a new Non-executive
Director ahead of the retrement of Ken Hydon and Karen Cook from
the Board on 23 February 2013 Olwia Garfield joined the Board as

a Non-executive Director on 1 April 2013 A biography 15 avallable on

page 25

The Commutiee considers a number of factors when making new
appointments, ncluding what the new Director will add to the balance
of skills and experience on the Board, and whether the Director witl be
able to allocate sufficrent time to the Company to discharge his or her
responsibilities We work with a number of independent externat
executive search companies, as well as using our own networks to
wdentify candidates with the nght skills and expenence to fulfil our needs

The Commuttee also discussed the challenges and actions relating

to succession and leadership and reviewed the management’s
development and succession plans to ensure the business has the nght
capabidities and capacities for the futwe, with a focus on areas such
as increasing the number of women in senior roles, the under 355
and increasing the number of locat nationals in senioy roles

Diversity

Tesco approaches diversity Inits broadest sense, recognisimng that
successful world-class businesses flounsh through embracng intelleciual,
expenential, geographical and skills diversity as well as other factors such
as age, disability, gender, race and sexual onentation With regard to
gender dversity, which 1s the focus of significant current attention, we
accept the spint and aspirations of the Davies Report, including the
representation of women at the highest levels in the organisatton

There are currently three women on our Board (30%), three women

on the Executive Commuttee (19%) and women in senior management
positions across the Group account for 31% as a whole We believe that
the focus must reman firmly on understanding what 1t takes to develop
women and to retain them in senior positions Semior roles are very
demanding for alf — vegardless of gender — and we are determined to
develop a culture and an environment where cur people can advance
whilst having the time tc be good partners, parents and active members
of thewr local community

Our policy 1s to find, develop and keep a diverse workforce at all levels
within our Company and we are committed to increasing the percentage
of female leaders We set a target in September 2011 for women to
represent 32% of seruor managers and 20% of business leaders and
Drectors We are close to achieving this target with 31% of senior
managers and 19% of busmess leaders and Directors being women
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Corporate governance continued

Effectiveness of risk management and interna! controls

A successful risk management process balances nisks and rewards and
relies on sound judgement of their hkelihood and impact Accepting that
nsk 1s an inherent part of doing business, our nsk management processes
are designed to encourage entrepreneurat spint and also provide
assurance that nisk is fully understood and managed

Akey part of an effective risk management process 1s ensuring that

our colleagues have a good understanding of the Group's strategy and
our polictes, procedures, values and expected performance We have a
structured communications programme that provides colleagues with
clanty on these matters This ensures that all our colleagues understand
what 15 expected of them and that decision-making 1akes place at the
appropriate level

The Beard has averall responsibility for ensuring the Group has
appropnate nsk management and internal controls in place and that
they continue to work effectively The key arrangements putin place to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibility and for all the members
of the Board to sausfy themselves with the integnty of the Group's
financiahinformation, financial controls and nsk management systems
are detaled below

Risk management

There 15 a comprehensive process for the review and consideration

of nsk at Tesco Risk Registers are in place for all businesses and some
key Group functions also maintain a speafic Risk Register Risk Registers
are considered regularly by the management of relevant businesses

Pancipalnsks

The Group also mamtains a Group Key Risk Register which descrnibes
the key nsks faced by the Group and assesses therr likelihood and
impact, as well as the controls and procedures implemented 1o
mitigate them The Group nsks are determned by discussion with
senior management and are reviewed by the Group Executive
Commuttee and then agreed by the Board In addition to reviewng
the Group Risk Register, the Board carries out in-depth reviews

of key sk areas each year

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk 1s an accepted part of doing business The real challenge for
any business is to identfy the principal nisks 1t faces and to develop
and monitor appropriate controls

The table below sets out the pnrneipal nisks faced by the Group, and
examples of relevant key controls and mitigating factors The Board
considers these to be the most stgnificant risks faced by the Group They
do not compnse all the risks associated with the Group and they are not
set out In any arder of prionity Additiona! nsks not presently known to
management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also have

an adverse effect on the business

There has been a trend towards tncreasing net nisk dunng the year,
and in particular the fikelihood of nisks occuring, dnven in the majonty
of cases by the giobal economi¢ and regulatory environment in which
the business operates Political, regulatory and economic nisks have
therefore seen an increase in net risk rating, whilst the risks relating

o business strategy and property are considered to have decreased
as a result of the Group’s strateqic changes duning the year

Key controts and miigating factors

Business strategy

if our strategy follows the wrong direction or 1s not effectively
communicated or implemented, the business may suffer

Diversification and pursuit of growth In emerging markets under
our strategy continues to reduce reliance on limited business areas
Regqular review of strategic matters by Board and Executive
Committee, Board dedicates two full days a year to Group strategy
Decisive action 1s taken on strateqy as appropriate, including recent
decisions regarding operations i Japan and the US - see the Report
from the Cheef Executive for more details

* New structure of Executive sub-commuttees 1s designed to focus on
key risks through the work of the Group Commercial, Comphance,
Drgrtal Retailing, Technolegy, People Matters Group, Property
Strategy and Social Responsibility Committees

Sigruficant resource invested to communicate strategy effectively

to those deiivermg it

Consistent Operational Plans developed throughout the Group

to ensure debivery

Steering Wheel balanced scorecard system helps mormtor delivery
Structured stakeholder engagement programmes

Financial strategy

Risks relate to an incorrect or unclear financial strategy and the
failure to achieve financial plans

Regular review of strategy, risks and financial performance by Board
and Executive Commuitee, with external advice as required

Balance Sheet Committee regularly reviews gearing and net debt
management

Consistent Operational Plans and Budgets developed throughout
the Group to ensure delivery

Steering Wheel balanced scorecard system helps monitor dehivery
Structured stakehotder engagement programmes

.

Eompetltion and consolidation

Fatlure to compete on areas ncluding price, product range, quahty
and service in increasingly competitive UK and overseas retail
markets could impact our market share and adversely affect

the Group's financial results

The consolidation of competitors, key geographical areas or markets
through mergers or trade agreements could also adversely impact
our market share

Strategy to have broad appeal on price, range and store format

to altow us to compete Iin different markets

Regular review of markets, trading opportumties and compeutor

actmities, including online, by Executive Commuittee, Digital

Commuttee and Trading Groups

Increased global marketing effort to maxirmise the impact of our

brand and intellectual property

* Performance tracked against relevant KPls and measures that
customers tell us are critical to ther shopping expernence

+ Constant monitorng of customner perceptions of Tesco and

cormnpetiors to ensure we can respond quickly as appropriate

Monitoring of legistative changes, legal framework and comphance




Prmaipal nsks
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Key controls and mitigating factars

Reputational risk

Failure to protect the Group’s reputation and brand in the face of
ethical, legal or moral challenges could lead to a loss of trust and
confidence, a dechne in customer base and affect our ability to
recruit and retain good people

* Tesco Values embedded i how we do business at every levet

¢ Qur embedded Group Code of Business Conduct and Bribery Act
Guidelines guide our behaviour in dealing with customers,
employees and supplers

« Stakeholder commumnicauon and engagement to understand ther
views and reflect them in our strategy

* Commitment to tackhng societal and environmental 1ssues through
our Community Plan and activiies Ournew Value —We use our scale
for good — aims to tackle some of the most important issues for society
- see our Tesco and Socety Report 2013 for more details

* Comprehensive supplier auditing and product survelllance
programmes In place to minimise nsks associated with labour
standards and product ntegnty

+ Governance committees, ncluding Executive, Group Commeraial,
Corporate Responsibility, Social Responsibihity, Comphance and
Information Secunty Committees, guide and monitor policies

Performance nsk in the busmess

Risk that business units (including the UK) underperform agamst
plan and against competiters and our business fails to meet
the stated strategy in full

+ Board, Executive Committee and vanous operational committees,
mcluding the UK Operating Beard, meet regularly to review
performance nsks

+ All business umits have stretching targets based on the Steering
Wheel balanced scorecard system, performance agamnst budgets
and KPls are monitored continually and reported regularly to Board

* Clear budgets, goals and objectives set for subsidiary CEOs, with
3 high proportion of reward based on achievernent

+ Dwversification strategy mmimises impact of changes in economic
chmate

E’roperty

Continuimg acguisition and development of property sites carries
inherent nsk, targets to deliver new space may not be achieved,
challenges may arise in relation to finding suitable sites, obtainmg
planning or other consents and comphance with varying country
design and construction standards

+ Group Praoperty Strategy, Property Acgquisttion and related
commuttees reqularly review, and closely contraol, all aspects
of property acquisition, planming and construction processes
to ensure standards are met and nisks are mentmised
+ Group Property blueprints adopted to ensure consistency
of approach
* Group and country Comphance Commuttees monitor legal and
regulatory comphance i property actmties
Mall management systems in place to assist tenant management

Economic risks

In each country where we operate, we are impacted by the
underlying economic environment and the fiscal measures
that apply to the retail sector

Externaf econormic outlook 1s carefully considered when developing
strategy and continuously monitored through the Executive
Committee's review of performance

A central Eurg Disaster Committee monitors developrments

in the Eurozone

Ongoing monitoring of country developments through local CEOs
We try to anticipate and contnibute to important changes in public
policy wherever we operate

Pohtical and regulatory nsks

In each country where we operate, we may be impacted by legal
and regulatory changes, increased scrutiny by competiion
authorities and political developments relevant to domestic
trade and the retait sector

= Engagement with governmental and non-governmental

arganisations to represent views of our customers and employees

Ongomg monitonng of country developments through local CEOs

Group and country Cormphiance Committeas monitor legal and

regulatory compliance

The Tesco Bank Executive and Treating Customers Fairly Board

oversee Tesco Bank's compliance with regulatory requirernents

* Compliance with the UK Groceries Supply Code of Pracuice (‘Code’)
15 carefully momitored by our Code Comphance Officer

* We try to anticipate and contribute to important changes in public
policy wherever we operate

» Business development follows thorough due diligence work
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Corporate governance continued

Prncipal nsks

Key controls and matigating factors

LProduct safety

Failures could damage customer trust and confidence, impacung our
customer base and therefore financial results

Group Product Policy adopted, implemented and monitored across
the business by our technical teams

Centrols in place around key risks including product integnty,
approval and management of suppler sites, standards in store and
dsstnbution centres, competency of our people, management of
crises, ermnergmg 1ssues and changes in regulatory standards
Detailed, established procedures, operating globally, ta ensure
product integrity

Product surveillance programmes in place including our new DNA
traceabihty programme

Regular reporting to local and Group Comphance Committees

on managerment of nisks associated with products, supplers

and operations

lﬂ' systems and infrastructure

Any sigraficant failure in the IT processes of our retail operations would
impact our abiity to trade Failure to invest appropriately m IT could
increase our vulnerability to attack, constrain the growth of the
busimess and fait to safequard personnel, supplier or customer data

fT strategy 1s approved and reviewed by the Executive Commuttee
to ensure that mvestments in 1T systems and innovations improve
business efficiency and customers' shopping experience

Group Technology Committee monitors controls to mamtain
mtegnity and efficiency of IT infrastructure and data

Information Secunty Committee meets regularly to review the
developrment and implementation of policies

Rigorous governance processes for new and modified systems
implementations

Processes to deal with sigrificant IT secunty incidents

Shaning of systemns across international operations to ensure
consistency of delivery

People

Failure to attract, retan, develop and motivate the best people with
the night capabihities at all levels could imit our ability to succeed

People Matters Group {'PMG') regularly meets to review and
monitor all people pelicies, procedures and risks

Clear processes to understand and respond to employees’ needs
through our PMG, colleague surveys, regular performance reviews,
involvement of trade unions in relevant markets and regular
communication of business develepments

Talent planning and people development 1s a key abjective for each
member of the Executive Commuttee

Significant mvestment in traimng, development and incentives,
mciuding Executive Committee Talent Cycle, Talent Planming,
Leadership Development and succession planring for future needs
of the business

Fay, pension and share plan arrangements help us o attract and
retamn good people

Group Treasury

-

Failure to ensure the avatlability of funds to meet the needs of the
business or to manage interest or exchange rate fluctuations could
Itrrut our abibty to trade profitably Further detait on the management
of financial nsks can be found in the ‘Financial nisks review’ table on
page 42 and in Note 22 of the finanuial statements

An annual Fimance Plan and General Board Authonty set out
the controls and authonty limits for alt Treasury matters

The Balance Sheet Committee meets regularly to monitor
Treasury nsks and manage the iquidity needs of the busmess
An annual Treasury Review is carred out by the Executive
Committee

Comprehensive Treasury Policies set out processes and controls
around the use of financal instruments, hedging, hquidity, bank
account managermment and the segregation of duties required
between our back and front offices




Principal risks
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Key cont ofs and mutrgating factors

Tesco Bank

The impact on the Group of financial risks taken by Tesco Bank

The Bank has a defined ‘Risk Appetite', approved and regutarly
reviewed by both the Bank's Board and the Tesco PLC Beard,
which sets out the key risks, their optimum ranges, alert hmits
and the controls required to manage them withen their approved
tolerance limits

There 15 a comprehensive structure of governance and oversight
in place to ensure the Bank complies with all applicable laws
and regulations

.

U’ensions

Qur IAS 19 deficit could increase if there 1s a fall in corporate bond
yrelds which is not offset by an mcrease in the pension scheme's
assets There are also increasing nisks of legal and regulatory changes
introducing more burdensome requirements

Diversified investment strategy with increased control and visibrlity
through the appointment of an in-house investment team
Changes to benefits were introduced in 2012 to reduce the
scherne's hfe expectancy and inflation risks

Appointment of a new Audit and Risk Pensions Commuttee to
provide greater visibility and internal controls of pension and
investment risks

+ Monthly review by Pensions and Treasury Directors

External advisors and penston fund trustees fully engaged to
consider defiat and fund performance and legistative and requlatory
changes and their impact

Fraud, comphance and internal controis

As the business develops new platforms and grows 1n both size and
geographical scope, the potential for fraud and dishonest activity by
our supplers, customers and employees increases

Appropnate procedures and cantrols mcluding Group Accounting
Policy, key financial controls, IT access controls and segregation of
duties are set out across the business to reduce fraud nsks
Comphance Commttee monitors implementation of, and
complance with, relevant policies and procedures

+ An annual governance return is completed by each business unit

* Clear behavioural gurdance given to empioyees through traming on
Tesco Values, the Group Code of Business Conduct, the UK Bribery
Act and our Whistleblowing service — Protector Line

Internal Audit undertakes risk-based programmes and detailed
investigations mte all business areas and reports its findings to the
Audit Committee

« Group Loss Prevention & Secunty monitors fraud, bribery and
business continuity across the Group and reports its findings to the
Audit Commuttee

Store and distribution compliance and technical law and trading
reviews conducted regularly to reinforce comphiance across

the estate

Information Secunty Commuttee regularly reviews 1T incidents
External Audit rotational coverage of areas and assessment

of controls

Business continuity and cnsis management

A major incident or activism could impact on colleague safety or the
Group's ability to trade

* Appropriate business continuity plans and cnsis management plans
are mn place for each business area
¢ Disaster recovery plans are in place for key IT systems and
data centres
s Secunty systems and processes that reflect best practice are
also m place to review the nisks of inaidents or activism across
the Group ncluding haison with the UK National Co-ordinator
for Counterterrorsm
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Corporate governance continued

Financial risks review

The man finarcial nsks faced by the Group relate to the avajlabihity of funds to meet business needs, fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange
rates and credit risks relating to the risk of default by parties to financial transactions The management of these risks Is set out below Details of
the main financiat risks relating to Tesco Bank and the management of those nsks can be found n Note 22 to the financial statements on page 108

Financiab sk Risk management
Funding and The Group finances its operations by a combmnation of retamed profits, disposals of property assets, debt capital market ssues,
hquidity commercial paper, bank borrowings and leases The objective 1s to ensure continuity of funding The pelicy 1s to smooth the

debt matunty profile, to arrange funding ahead of requirements and to maintain sufficient undrawn committed bank faalities
and a strong credit rating so that matuning debt may be refinanced as 1t falls due The Group has a long-term rating of BBB+
{stable) from Fitch, Baal {stable) from Moody’s and BBB+ (stable) from Standard & Poor's New funding of £1 4 billion was
raised duning the year from property disposais At the year end, net debt was £6 6 billion (2012 £6 8 bithon)

Interest rate risk
management

Our ebjective 1s to imit the impact to our profit and loss from nsing interest rates Forward rate agreements, mterest rate
swaps, caps and floors may be used to achieve the desired mux of fixed and floating rate debt

Qur policy 15 to fix mterest rates for the year on a mmimurm of 40% of actual and projected debt interest costs of the Group
excluding Tesco Bank At the year end, the percentage of interest bearing debt at fixed rates was 75% (2012 90%) The
remaining balance of our debt 1s m floating rate form The average rate of interest paid on an hustoric cost basis this year,
excluding joint ventures and associates, was 4 8% (2012 4 8%)

Foreign currency
nsk management

Our principal objective 1s to reduce the effect of exchange rate volatility on operating margins  Transacuonal currency
exposures that could significantly impact the Group Income Statement are managed, typically using forward purchases or
sales of foreign currencies and purchased currency options At the year end, forward foreign currency transactions, designated
as cash flow hedges, equivalent to £1,835 mullion were outstanding (2012 £1,944 mullion) as detailed in Note 21 We translate
overseas profits at average foreign exchange rates

We only hedge a proportion of the investment in our international subsidhanies as well as ensunng that each subsidiary s
appropnately hedged in respect of its nen-functional currency assets Ouring the year, currency movernents increased the
net value, after the effects of hedging, of the Group’s overseas assets by £420 mullion {last year decrease of £22 million)

Credit risk

The objective 15 to reduce the nisk of loss anising from default by parties to financal transachons  The Group holds posiions
with an approved hst of counterparties of good credit quahty and these counterparties and therr credit raings are routinely
monitored

Insurance

We purchased assets, earmings and combined liabihty protection from the apen insurance market for higher value losses only
The risk not transferred to the msurance market 1s retained within the business with some cover besng provided by our captve
insurance companies, ELH Insurance Limited in Guernsey and Vahant insurance Company Limited in the Republic of Ireland

ELH Insurance Limited covers Assets, Earnings and Combined Liability, while Valiant Insurance Company Limited covers

Combined Liability only

Internal controls

The Board i1s responsible for the Company’s system of interna! controls
and for reviewing therr effectiveness As part of the year end process,
the CEQs of all internationat businesses, the UK core business and other
relevant matenal busmesses 1n the UK, are required to certify that therr
business has operated in comphance with apphcable governance and
compliance requirernents, policies and legislation during the year

The detaiks of any incidences of non-compliance must be disclosed and
areport of the responses 1s reviewed by Internal Audit and the Group
Coemphance Committee

Colleagues are required to confirm annually that they have comphed
with the Code of Business Conduct which sets out the indvdual
obiigations and responstbilittes for anyone working at Tesco More
details on this code can be found on page 30

Group Finance 1s responsible for preparing the Group financial
statements, using a well-controlled consobdation process Group
Finance contains a technical accounting team, which reviews external
techmcal accounting developments, financial reporting and accounting
pohcy issues Itis also responsible for maintaining a mandatory Group
accountng policy manual, which 1s 1In accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards Group Finance mamntains its own

Risk Regrster and assesses 1ts own controls systems During the year
Group Finance has taken steps to make 1ts processes more robust by
developing a key financial control framework to describe a mandatory
suite of controls across key business processes Comphance 1s being
monitored by management by means of an annual self-assessment
programme which 1s being rolled out across the Group

The Internal Audit programmes covening key financal controls have
been aligned with this framework to ensure consistency of approach

There are a number of key comrmittess which play a role in monitoring
comphance with intemal controls

The Group Comphance Commuttee 1s responsible for monitonng
compliance across the Group, ncluding receving reports from the
indiwidual business unit compliance committees It also reviews local
pohaes and approves changes and exceptions to those policies
During the year it met six tmes and covered topics on soaal,
environmental, ethical, operational, commercial and corporate,
property and financial matters

TFhe Audit Commuttee reports to the Board each year on its assessment
of the effectiveness of the nsk management and internat control systems
for the financial year and the period to the date of approval of the
financial statements Throughout the year the Commuttee receves
regular reports from the external auditors covering topics such as quahty
of earnings and technicat accounting developments Internal Aucht and
semor management also regularly provide updates to the Committee

All systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material statement or loss The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of internal controls and 15 satisfied that the
controfs in place remain appropriate



internal Audit

The Internal Audrt funcuon s Independent of business operations and
has a Group-wide mandate It undertakes a continuous programme to
address internal control and nsk management processes with partcular
reference to the Code It operates a nsk-based methodology, ensunng
that the Group's key nsks receive appropnate regular exarmination Its
responsibilities nclude

mamtairing the Key Risk Register,

fac:itating oversight of sk and controls across the Group through
nisk committees in Asia, Europe and a number of our businesses
and jomnt ventures, and

reviewing and reporung on the effectiveness of nsk management
systems and internal control with the Executive Commuttee, the
Audit Commuittee and ultimately to the Board

External Audit

PwC, the Company's external auditors, contnibutes a further
ndependent perspective on certatn aspects of our internal financial
control systerms ansing from its work, and reports to both the Board
and the Audit Commitiee The engagement and independence of the
external auditoss s considered annually by the Audit Committee before
it recommends its selection to the Board

The Company has a Non-audit Services Policy for work carned out by
PwC This s spht mio three categones as explained below

pre-approved for the external auditors — i predominantly the audit
of subsidiary undertakings' statutery accounts and 15 audit-related
n nature,

-

work for which Committee approval is specificatly required —
transaction work and corporate tax services, and certain advisory
services, and

work from which the external auditors are prohibited

The Audit Commuttee concluded that it was in the best interests

of the Company for the external auditers to provide a number of
non-audit services during the year due to their expenence, expertise,
and knowledge of the Group's operation Auditor objectivity and
independence was achieved by ensuring that personnel involved in the
nen-audit work were not svolved in the audit, and by ensuring that
management ook responsibility for all deasions made Pw( follows its
own ethical gurdefines and continually reviews its audif team o ensure
its mdependence Is not compromised Pw('s Independence 1s also
considered by the Audit Commuttee reqularly

The fees paid to the auditors in the year are disclosed in Note 3 to the
Group financial statements

Engagement

Relations with shareholders

We are commutted to having a constructive diafogue with shareholders
to ensure that we understand what 1s important to them and enable
clear communication of our position The Chairman, CEQ and CFQ
hold regular meetings with shareholders and update the Board on

the outcornes of those meetings Investor Relations keep the Board
informed of broker and analyst views and reports and present formally
to the Board twice each year In addition we carry out a survey each
year of a cross section of shareholders in order to assess shareholder
perceptions of the Company The results of this survey are reviewed
by the Board

We support greater engagement with nstitutionat shareholders

as envisaged by the Stewardship Code We are also keen to develop

our engagement with private shareholders through vanous channels
of communicatron, including the AGM, the Company’s website, and

social media
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Stakeholder engagement

We engage regularly with our colleagues to invite them to give us their
thoughts on how the business i1s run and how they feel about working
for Tesco We also engage with umions i the UK and our other markets
to discuss employee matters and business developments Duning the
year we also carned out over 50 high-level stakeholder interviews —
including supranational organisations, NGOs, chanties, feading
academics, politicians and activists They gave us valuable msight into
how we are currently perceved, what they think of our ambition to

use our scale for good and their future expectations of Tesco Further
informatron s avallable i our Tesco and Society Report 2013, which

1s available on our website at www lescople com

Corporate governance discusstons and consultations

We take an active part in the debate on corporate governance and
rernuneration issues and during the year we responded to a number
of consuliations, including those camed out by the Department of
Business, Innovation and Skills in refation to Revised Remuneration
Reporting Requlations and Enhanced Shareholder Voting Rights
and the Finanval Reporting Counal consultation on revisions to the
UK Corporate Governance Code and Guidance on Audit Committees

Cur Annual General Meeting

The AGM is seen as a good opportunity for the Board to communicate
the Company’s progress directly to shareholders Qur 2013 AGM will be
held s London at 11am on 28 june 2013

The whole Board is expected to attend the AGM and be available

to answer questions from shareholders present To encourage
shareholder participation, we offer electronic proxy voting and voting
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service At our AGM
all resclutions are proposed and voted upon mdividually by shareholders
or their proxtes All votes taken dunng the AGM are by way of electronic
poll This follows best practice guidelines and allows the Company to
count all votes, not just those of shareholders attending the meeting
The Chairman announces the prowvisional voting results at the meeting,
and the final results are announced the same day through a Regulatory
Information Service and the Tesco PLC website In 2012 shareholders
supported all of the resolutions put to them by the Board with votes

of over 90% mn favour on all resolutions Full details of the votes are
available on our website www tescoplc com
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Directors’ remuneration report

Stuart Chambers Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee

This report sets out the remuneration policy for the Executive and
Non-executive Directors of Tesco PLC and describes the ndmadual
remuneratien of the Directors for the year ended 23 February 2013

In this section

44 Introduction from Stuart Chambers, Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee

Remuneration strategy

45 Linking executive pay with strategy
45 Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group

Remuneration policy
46
47 " Remuneration pohcy for Executive Directors for 2013/14
48 ati
48 Share ownership guidelines

Remuneration framework

Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenarios

49 Service contracts and ieaver provisions

How remuneration policy will be applied in 2013/14

50 Fixed remuneration for 2013/14
50 Performance related remuneration for 2013/14

Remuneration outcomes for Executive Directars in 2012/13
52 Salanes for 201213

53 Performance refated remuneration for 2012M3
55 Algning pay with performance

Other information

56 Leaving arrangements for Executive Directors

56 Qutside appointments

Non-executive Directors

56 Non-executive Director responsibilities

57 Non-executive Director fees

57 Chairman fees

Corporate qovernance

57 Governanceincluding the role, membership and advisors
to the Commitiee

Audited information
60 Datatables

Dear Shareholder

In an iImperiant year for Tesco, the Rermuneration Commuttee has
sought to ensure that the Company's remuneration arrangements
continue to support the strategic direction of the business, and that
the remuneration decisions we have made are fair and comprehensible
to the outside world

This repart sets out in full how we have approached this and the specific
decisions we have reached | would like to highlight two areas

¢ Firstly, the year just ended was a challenging one A number of
important decisions were taken durng the year, such as remvesting
profits backinto the UK business to improve the shopping expenence
for customers, and deciding to exit the US and write down the value
of the Fresh & Easy business These decisions have had financial
consequences this year but were necessary to set the business on the
right track to deliver realistic, sustanable and attractive returns over
the long term We also faced external challenges which impacted our
performance, most notably the regulatory restrnictions on opening hours
in South Korea and the difficult economic conditions in Central Europe

As a consequence, our finangial performance fell short of where we
wanted it to be, which in turn resulted in no annual bonus being paid
to the senior management team for 2012/13 The long-term incentives
that were due to vest this year also lapsed as performance targets
were not met The Remuneration Committee believes that this
demonstrates that our remuneration policy s effective in aligning

pay with performance

Secondly, as set out n more detail in this report and at the tme

of our Preiminary Results announcement, we have clearly articulated
our business prionttes for the foreseeable future and the financial
performance that shareholders can expect us to deliver in the
current economic environment We have conseguently amended
the management incentives for 2013/14 to align them wath the
new strategic prionities and financal parameters

The changes for 2013/14 are summansed below

Annual bonus

» The annual bonus will be fess heavily weighted towards short-term
profits but inked to a more balanced scorecard of financial, strategic
and operational measures However, bonuses witl only be paid 1f
profits have grown

The profit measure used will be based on Trading Profit rather than
Underlying Profit Trading Profit does not include property profits, which
reflects our fundamentally different approach to space going forward

* We have replaced UK ROCE with Group Working Capital The
Committee feels that ROCE 1s an important capital efficiency measure
but is better suited to tong-term incentives Management have more
line-of-sight and controd of Working Capital over the short term

* The measures for customer service and colleague engagement will
reflect overall Group performance rather than just the UK as used in
previous years

Long Term Performance Share Plan

* We have amended the performance targets on the long-term
Performance Share Plan to align with the new financial parameters
described in this report and at our Preliminary Results announcement
To reflect the lower performance threshold at which awards may
vest, we have also lowered the amount of the award that vests This
ensures incentives remain aligned with the strategy while striking
a balance between creating long-term vailue for shareholders and
rewarding management fairly

The calculation of underlying Earnings Per Share used to assess
performance wilt exclude property profits to reflect our different
approach to space

Whilst it has been a difficult year, we are making progress agamst our
plan to ‘Build a Better Tesco' The Remunerauon Commuttee 1s confident
that the changes above will better support the business strategy leaving
the management team to get on with the job at hand and make what
matters better, together

I hope you find this report informative

Stuart Chambers Chairman of the Remuneration Committee



Remuneration strategy

Tesco's most important asset 1s its people Business success depends on the performance and contribution of each indvidual colleague but
outstanding performance comes from teamwork Therefore, our approach to remuneration throughout Tesco 15 guided by a framework of
common objectives and principles which are outlned in the table below
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| Reward ocbjectives

Attract
* Enable Tesco to recruit the
nght people

Motivate

= Incentivise colleagues to
deliver our business goals
together

Recognise
* Acknowledge individual
contribution and performance

Algn

* Create shareholder value by
focusing colleagues on making
what matters better

Retain

* Foster loyalty and pniden
Tesco 50 that colleagues want
to stay with us and strive to do
their best

Reward principles

Competitive

* We assess competitiveness on
a total reward basis including
financial and non-financial
rewards

* Reward reflects an individual’s
rale, experience, performance
and contribution

* Reward i1s set with reference to
external market practice and
internal relatwnty

Simple

* Reward 1s simple, clear, and
easy to understand

* We avord unnecessary
complexity

* Reward 15 delivered accurately

Linking executive pay with strategy

The wortd has changed from a culture of 'more Is better® to ‘better s
better’ Thus 1s why we have changed our Core Purpose this year We can’t
solve the world’s problems but we want to always do the nght thing 10
earn grust and loyalty from all our stakeholders Qur new Core Purpose
18 a statement of what we do and what we stand for — *We make what

matters better, together’

Our Values help us 10 understand how to put our Core Purpose into
practice Qur Values are No one tnies harder for customers, We treat
everyone how we like to be treated and We use our scale for good

Qur Vision has five elements — each of them describes the sort of

company Tesco aspires to be

* Wanted and needed around the world

» A growing busimess, full of opportunities

* Modern, innovative and full of 1deas

* Winners locally whilst applying our skills globaily

* Inspiring, earning trust and loyalty from customers, our colleagues

and commurnities

Our seven-part long-term strategy (outhned below) aims to broaden the
scope of the busmess to enable it to dehver strong, sustamable long-term

growth for all stakeholders

1 To grow the UK core

2 To be an outstanding mternational retarder in stores and online

3 To be as strong in everything we sell as we are m food

4 To grow retail services in all our markets

5 To put our responsibilities to the communmbies we serve

at the heart of what we do

6 To be a creator of highly valued brands

7 To buld our teamn so that we create more value

Further detalls of this strategy are set out on page 13

Remuneration s one of our key tools to support the delivery of our
Vision, Care Purpose, Strategy and long-term value creation

Fair

» Policies are transparent, and
applied consistently and
equitably

* Reward decisions are trusted
and properly governed

* Reward is legal and complant

Sustamnable

* Reward is aligned to the
business strateqy, reflects our
performance, and 15 affordable

* Qur reward framework 1s
flexible to meet the changing
needs of the business

= We reward in a responsible way

Executive remuneration has been designed to support our strategy
within the framework above The key features are

« Algnment with strategy — The majonty of our reward 1s linked
to the delivery of stretching performance gver the short and long
term and 1s delivered in shares Our medium-term strategic focus
15 to build a stronger business thatis sustainable and eqguipped to
compete in the future The mimor changes made to remuneration
arrangements this year reflect our Vision, new Core Purpose, Values
and Strategy

Qur short-term performance 15 measured i relation to profit growth
and the delivery of other strategtc financial and non-financial objectives
Qur long-term performance 1s measured by assessing the growthin
our earrungs per share and the level of our return on capital These
metrics are a key measure of the success of the delivery of our long-
term strategy

Simple, collegiate approach to remuneration — Qur remuneration
arrangements are destgned to be smple to provide clarity to both
our Executives and to shareholders Executive Directors and other
managerment participate i a common mcentive framework to ensure
teamwork in deliverning our key strategic goals

Creating alignment with shareholders by building a shareholding
in our business — We believe that it s important that our colleagues
are shareholders in the business to create ahgnment with our other
shareholders The CEO s required to hold shares with a value of four
times satary, the CFO is required to hold shares with a value of three
times safary and other senior managers are required to hold shares
with a value of one times salary

Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group

Tesco s one of the largest public company employers in the world

Our colleagues come from diverse backgrounds reflecting the countnes
we operate in and the range of skills we need to run our vanous
businesses (from stores to banking to telecoms)

Reward packages therefore differ taking into account appropnate factors
but they are all bult around the common reward objectives and
principles outlined above

» Annuaj bonus - Annuzl bonuses throughout the Group are linked to
local business performance and Group success in a structure that is
consistent with the Executive Directors’ annual bonus with a focus on
profit growth, strategic finanaial and strategic non-financial measures
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Share incentives — Our 5,000 strong management team across
the Group participates in the Performance Share Plan based on
similar performance conditions to those for the Executive Directors’
PSP This managernent team also receives some of their bonus In
Tesco shares deferred for a penod of two or three years

Colleagues as shareholders — It 1s animportant part of the Tesco
Values that ali colleagues, not just management, have the opportunity
to become Tesco shareholders QOver 200,000 of our colleagues
participate in our all-employee schemes and hold over 125 million
shares 1n our Share Incentive Plan and over 140 million options over
shares in our Save As You Earn schemne

When determining Executive Dwector remuneration atrrangements
the Committee takes into account pay conditions throughout the
Group to ensure that the structure and quantum of Executive pay
remamns appropriate it this context When considering salary increases
for the Executive Directors the Commuttee considers the general level
of salary increase across the Group Over the last four years Executive
Director salary increases have been at a similar level to the general
increase for colleagues across the Group

The remuneration arrangements for the Executive Commuttee fall within
the Remuneration Committee's remit ensunng a common approach te
the design of reward and determirung reward outcomes for the most
semor people within the organisation

Remuneration policy

In hight of our new Strategy, the Commuttee reviewed our remuneration
policy and concluded that it was broadly fit for purpose In the year
there has been very little change to our policy beyond adjusting certain
performance measures for the annual bonus and the performance
targets on the Long Term Performance Share Plan to reflect the new
strategic priorities for the Company

Remuneration framework

The followtng chart and accompanying table or page 47, provide a
summary of the different elements of pay, their purpose and linkage
to our strategy, and the key features of each component

Fixed pay

Base salary + Benefits + Pension

¢ 20% of total reward opporturuty

Performance related pay

Short-term performance Long-term performance

measures — 26%) and strategic
non-financial measures (24%}

Cash Share bonus Performance
bonus {deferred for Share Plan
3 years) {3 years)
E Finanaial — 76% (profitabibty — 5 E i
i 30%, strateqic financial 4 4 a4 o EPS growth and ROCE |

¢ 80% of total reward opportunity

Remuneration policy for new hires

Tesco has a strong history of succession planning and developing internal
Executive 1alent In the event that the Company recruited a new Executive

Director, the Committee would generally seek to align the remuneration

package offered with our broader remuneration policy

In determining appropnate remuneration arrangements, the Committee
wilt take into consideration all relevant factors {including but not hmited
to quantum, the type of remuneration being offered and the junsdiction
the candidate was recrunted from) to ensure that arrangements are in
the best interests of both Tesca and its shareholders without paying
more than 1S necessary to recruit an Executive of the required calibre

The Commuttee may make awards on hinng an external candidate to
‘buy out’ remuneration arrangemenits forfeited on leaving a previous
employer In doing so the Commuttee will take account of relevant
factors including any performance conditions attached to these awards,
the forrm in which they were granted {e g cash or shares) and the time
over which they would have vested Generally buy-out awards will be
made on a comparable basis to those forfeited

Risk management

Risk management 1s an important part of business process The
Committee considers that Tesco’s processes i this area provide the
necessary controls to prevent inappropnate nisk taking When reviewing
remuneration structures the Committee considered whether any aspect
of these might encourage behaviours that are ncompatible with our
Tesco Values and the long-term interests of shareholders If necessary,
the Commitiee would take appropnate steps tc address this

Consulting with sharehaolders
The Commuttee beheves that it 1s very mportant to mamtam open
dalogue with shareholders on remuneration matters

During the year under review the Committee consulted with
shareholders regarding some potential changes to remuneration
arrangements and the views of shareholders have been instrumental
In shaping the changes discussed in this report

Gomng forward the Committee will contnue to haise with shareholders

regardmg remuneratton matters more generatly and Tesco arrangernents
as appropnate Itis the Committee's intention te consult with shareholders
in advance of makeng any matenal changes to remuneration arrangements
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Remuneration policy for Executive Directors for 2013/14

Ii\t a glance
Operation and opportunity
Changes 1o the poYicy
Elemmen Link 1o strategy CEQ CFO Petformance measutes for 201314
Fixed pay Basesalary  « Therole of base salary * £1,122,000 * £869,040 » nfa * Nochanges to the policy
15 Lo support the recuitment
and retention of Executive * When determirenq pay the Commttee
Directors of the calibre examenes salary levels at the leading
required ta delrver the FTSE comparnes, other majorretasers
strategy and gives consideration to appropnate
intermahional competitors
* Next review 1 July 2013
* For the last four years the base salary
increases have been similar to the
mnecrease awarded to other colleagues
across the Group
Penston * To provide a marketdeading  * Current pension provision of *nla * No changes to the policy
(Cashin retirement benefit that will defined benefit pension of up to
retirement) foster loyally and retain two therds of base salary at retrement
expenenced Executives, with a 10% employee canmbuuen
which supports our culwre of Thus 15 provided through registered
developing talent ntemnally arrangements up to approved HMRC
+ Akeyincentive and retention s, wath the remamder prowided
100l throughout the through secured unfunded
organisaton arangements
Benefits * To prowide a market- *» Core benefits — Benefits nclude *nfa * Nochanges to the policy
competitrve level of benefits car aliowance, ife assurance, disability
for our Executve Directors andg health insurance, clisb
rmembership and staff discount
= Ali-employea share plans —
Executives are eligible to participate
n the Company’s alt employee
share schemes on the same terms
as UK colleagues
Performance Annual bonus = The role of the annualbonus  * Maximum * Maximum » 76% of bonusbasedon = it Aprll 2012, we setout
related pay {One- 15 Lo Incentivise Executwves to opportunity of opportunity of financial performance detalled plans to ‘Buitd a
me-year delver our annuat fmznoal, 250% of base 200% of base ~ 50% of bonus based Better Tesco', which included
performance)
strategic and operationat salary salary on Trading Profit investing in the UK business
{Cash and goals . 50% m cash performance 0 Improve :fhe shopping
shares) * The performance measures | 50% _26% based on experience for custormers and
have been selected as they tn shares which are deferred for . | some fundamenital changes
are considered 1o be closely three years straf( egic Tinancly to our approach .o capital
algned 1o the defiveryofour  * Clawback applies to deferred shares ]E’:e"a(:::;i“(e allocation - focusing on
seven-pont strategy, bulding  to allow the Commuttee to scale back improving returns through
a stronger undertying business deferred share awards pnortovesting  * 24% of bonus based on reducing space growth,
and long term shareholder In the event that results are materially performance agamst improving the petformance of
value creation misstated key strategic non- existing stores, and investing
financtal performance more n the digi.al revolution
measures focused on that s shaping the future of the
cus.omer, colleagueand  retailmng industry
community objecves  « To ensure that our meentives
* All objectives are are ahigred to our plans, the
specficand measurable  Commutiee has decded to
expand the su¢cess factors
agamst which annual
performance is assessed 1o
create a better balance
betwaen incentive payouts,
financial results, and the
strategtc drivers of sustainable
sharehoider value
Performance « Therole of the PSP & 1o * Maxmmum * Maxmum award  * Based an amatrixof * In hght of our business priorittes
Share Plan reward Executve Directors for -~ awardof2759% | of225%ofbase  ROCEJEPS growth for the foreseeable future and
achieving Tesco 5 long term of base salary salary performance the financial performance that
(Three-year
farmance) strategy and creating + Clawback provisions apply to awards sharehalders can expectius io
per sustamabie shareholder value " thp Comroalt ppt al baclz delrver inthe current economuc
(Shares) « To enhance shareholder value oL - es 0 environment, we have

by motvating Executives to
Qrow eamings over the long
term while maintaning a
sustanable level of retum
on capital

To ahgn the economic
interests of Executives and
shareholders

= To act as a retention ool

awards prior to vesting in the event
that results are matenally misstated

arnended the performance
targets for the 2013 PSP
award The calculation of
eamings growth performance
will also exclude property
profits to reflect owr
fundamentally different
approach to space growth
goung forward The revised
targets are set out on page 52
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration cutcomes in different performance scenarios
Tesco remuneration arrangements have been designed to ensure

that a sigmificant proportion of pay is dependent on the deiivery of
short-term and long-term goals that are aligned with our short-term
and long-term strategic objectives and the creation of shareholder value
The Commuttee considers the level of remuneration that may payout

in different performance scenanos to ensure that this 1s considered
appropriate in the context of the performance delivered and the

value added for shareholders

The charts below show hypothetical values of the remuneration package
for Executive Directors under three assumed performance scenaros

Below target * No bonus payout

performance * No vesting under the Performance Share Plan
On target + 50% annual bonus payout

performance * 50% vesting under the Performance Share Plan
Maximum * 100% annual bonus payout

performance + 100% Performance Share Plan vesting

For the purposes of these illustrations, no share price growth is assumed,
dividends are not included and pension and benefits are not included

Share ownership guidelines

At a glance

* Four times base salary for the CEQ

* Three umes base salary for the CFO

* The purpose Is to create alignment with the interests of shareholders

* This requirement s at the upper end of typical market practice for
similar sized compantes

The Remuneration Committee beleves that a sigreficant shareholding
by Executive Directors aligns their interests with shareholders and
demonstrates their ongoing comrmitment to the business

Policy for calculating shareholding

» Shares included — Shares held in plans which are not subject to
forferture will be mcluded {on a net basis) for the purposes of
calculating Executive Directors' shareholdings, as will shares held
by an Executive's spouse Vested but unexercised market value
share options are notincluded in the calculation

Five years for new appointees to build shareholdings — New
appointees will be expected to achieve this minimum level of
shareholding withun five years of appomntment

PSP participation may be subject to maintaming holding — Full
participation n the long-term Pesformance Share Plan will generally
be conditional upon mantaining the mimmum shareholding

Hoelding of 50% of vesting awards until requirement met — Where an
Executive Director does not meet the shareholding requirement they
will be required to hold, and not dispose of, at least 50% of the net
number of shares which vest under incentive arrangements until they
meet this requirement

Given the importance of owrung shares, the Executive Commuttee and !
over 100 other senior managers are also required to butld a helding of |
Tesco shares

Shares held by Executive Directors at 23 February 2013

The chart below iflustrates the value of Executive Directors’ shareholdings,
based on the three-month average share pnce to 23 February 2013 of
348p per share compared to the shareholding guideline

The shareholding guideline has been shown based on the full
requirement of four times salary for the CEQ and three tmes salary

for the CFQ When the shareholding guidelnes were increased 1n 2011,
Execuiives were given a period of five years to meet this enhanced
requirement and therefore should meet the requirement by June 2016

Share dealing pohcy

Tesco has a share dealing policy i place for Executive Ewrectors and

for members of the Executive Committee This policy prevents Executive
Directors and Executive Committee members and their connected
persons dealing in shares at tirmes when this would be prohibited by

the UK Listing Authonity’s Listing Rules At all tmes, Executive Directors
and Executive Committee members must seek advance clearance
before dealing in shares on their own behalf or in respect of their
connected persons
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At a glance

Provision

Current service Contracts

Notice period

12 months’ notice by the Company and six months' notice by the Executive

For new appomntments the Commuttee reserves the nght to vary this perniod 10 24 months for the imitial peniod

of appointment and for the notice penod 10 then revert to 12 months Mo Executive currently has a notice period
of greater than 12 months

Expiry date

Philip Clarke and Laurie Mcllwee entered into service agreements with Tesco PLC on 31 May 2011 and
27 January 2009 respectively

Rolling service contract

No fixed expiry date

Termination payments
(Does not apply If notice

15 provided, as per the
service agreement, or for
termination by reason of
resignation or unacceptable
performance or conduct)

*

CEQ - Termination payments tn keu of notice based on base salary and benefits only

CFO - Termination payments in lieu of notice based on base salary, benefits and the average annual bonus pad
for the last two years

Our policy for new appointments is that termination payments in heu of notice will be based on base salary and
benefits only

No account will be taken of pension

Termination payments will be subject to mingation and normally paid in instalments to facilitate this (other than
for long-serving Executives)

If the termination occurs within one year of retirement, the termination payment will be reduced accordingly

Other information

The Committee may determine that an Executive Director may receive a pro rata bonus in respect of the penod
they remained in employment in respect of the financial year in which they ceased empleyment Where an
Executive leaves by reason of death, disability or ill-heath they are entitied to a pro rata bonus for the year

of cessation

In the event that an Executive Director retires from the Company they shall be entitled to retain therr private
medical cover in retirement New Executive Directors will not be entitled to this benefit gong forward

The service agreements are available to shareholdears to view on request from the Company Secretary

Share plan rules - jeaver provisions

The treatment of outstanding share awards in the event that an Executive Director leaves is governed by the relevant share ptan rules The following
table summarises feaver provisions under the executrve share plans In specific arcumstances the Committee may exercise its discretion to modify
the policy outlined if the rules of the share plan allow such discretion

“‘Good leavers’ as determined by the Commitiee Leavers in other arcumstances {other than gross msconduct)
Executive Incentive Plan * Urwested awards vest at cessation * Unvested awards vest at the normal vesting date
* 12 months to exercise (if options) * 12 months to exercise {iIf options)

Performance Share Plan

Awards granted in the 12 months prior to leaving lapse ¢ Unvested awards lapse
Other unvested awards continue until the normal

vesting date and remain subject to performance

12 months to exercise (f options)

Share Option Plan

* Awards granted in the 12 months prior to leaving fapse  + Unvested awards lapse

Other unvested awards continue until the normal * 12 months fromleaving to exercise vested awards
vesting date and remarn subject to performance
Three years from leaving to exercise

All-employee share plans

Leaver provisions under all-employee share plans are determined in accordance with HMRC approved provisions
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

How remuneration policy will be applied in 2013/14

|Salary_

Policy

Base salary is designed to attract and retan talented indiiduals

It is set to reflect indmidual capability, responsibilities and market-competitive positioning

Benchmarking
group

The Commuttee reviews salary levels at the feading FTSE companies, other major retailers and ensures consideration is also
gtven to appropriate internatwonal compelitors

Relationship to
all-employee pay

*+ The Committee also takes into account pay conditions throughout the Group i deciding executive annual salary increases

The average increase for established Executive Directors last year was 2% This was the same as the 2% average increase
for other colieagues

Pay levels for all Group colleagues are deterrrined with consideration to a number of factors, including the prevailing
economic enviranment, discussions with employee representative groups, and current market practice

Review date

Base salaries are typically reviewed with effect from 1 July each year
The next salary review will be 1 July 2013 and salanes following this review will be disclosed in next year's report

Pension

Pohcy

Pension prowision 1s central to our ability 1o foster loyalty and retain experience, which 15 why Tesco wants to ensure
that pension is a fughly valued benefit

Both current Executive Directors are members of the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme, which provides a pension of up

10 two-thirds of base salary on retirerment, normally at age 60, dependent on service (Final Salary Scheme)

This Final Salary Scheme 1s now closed to new entrants and has been replaced in the UK by a defined benefit scheme
based on career average earnings New Executive Directors will be automatically enrolled into this scheme

From 1 June 2012, two changes were made in respect of the build-up of future benefits under the Pension Scheme
These changes applied to all partiapants in the Scheme indluding the Executive Directors Firstly, whilst the Normal
Pension Age remains unchanged, the age at which a full pension is paid was increased by two years from 60 to 62
Tius will be adjusted up or down to reflect any further unexpected changes in life expectancy Secondly, we will
Increase pensions, up to 5%, by CPlinstead of RPI

Pension accrued before 1 June 2012 and drawn before age 60 will be actuanally reduced to reflect early reurement
Pension accrued from 1 June 2012 will be actuanally reduced if it 1s drawn before the age at which a full pension 1s pard
{currently age 62 but subject to adjustment up or down to reflect unexpected changes in Iife expectancy)

Our defined benefit pension remains a key part of our total reward package for alt UK colleagues

SURBS

Since April 2006, followtng implementation of the regulations contained within the Finance Act 2004, and the subsequent
changes to the annual allowance in 2010, Executive Directors have been ehgible to recewe the maximum pension that can
be provided from the registered Pension Scheme without incurning additionat tax charges The balance of any pension
entitlement for Executive Directors 1s debivered through an unfunded retirement benefit scheme ('SURBS") The SURBS

1s secured by using a fixed charge over a cash deposit in a designated account

This SURBS 15 closed to new entrants

Employee
contrnbution

Executive Directors who are members of the Final Salary Scheme are required to contribute 10% of salary New Executive
Dwrectors will be required to contribute 7 75% of salary into the new career average pension scheme Both these rates are
in line with contribution levels by senior management below Board level

Further details of the pension benefits earned by the Directors can be found on page 60

| Short-term bonus I

The table below sets out a summary of the maximum opporturity under the shart-term bonus for 2013/14

] At a glance

I During the year the Commitiee reviewed the performance measures

* Maximum opportunity of 250% of salary for the CEQ

used for the short-term bonus plan in ight of our business prionties for
the foreseeable future and the financial performance that shareholders

* Maximum opportunity of 200% of salary for the CFQO

can expect us to deliverin the current economic environment The

* Half payable in cash and half payable in shares which are deferred

for three years

Committee decided to expand the success factors against which annual
performance 15 assessed to create a better balance between incentive

* Clawback prowvisions apply to the deferred shares element prior

to vesting

payouts, financal results, and the strategic drivers of sustamable
shareholder value
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The following short-term perfarmance measures apply for the 2013/14 bonus arrangerents

Short-term performance measures for 2013/14

Financizt {76% of short-term bonus}

Profitabiity (50% of

short 1erm performance) Strategic financial (26% of short-term performance)

Strategic non-financial (24% of short term performance)

Measured in relatron
to Trading Profit
performance

Based on performance against key strategic
financial measures For 2013/14 these
metrics wilt be

* Group internet sales — 10%
* UK lke-for-like — 8%
* Group working capital — 8%

Based on performance against key strategic operatronal measures
For 2013/14 these metnics will be

« Customer — Group customer service -~ 8%

« Colleague — Group colleague engagement - 8%

« Commurity — Group COz reducton - 8%

The strategic financial and non-financial elements of the bonus are subject to a profit underpin No portion that
relates to strategic measures can be earned unless profit growth has been achueved

Link to strategy — This
measure incentivises the
delivery of strategy by
encouraging the creation
of annual shareholder
value through improved
bottom-hne financial
results

Link to strategy — The selected strategic
financal measures allow for the Company
e more specifically incentivise the delivery
of key elements of our strategy

‘Chicks & Bricks' 1s animportant and exating
dimension of our strategy and a key focus
for 2013114

Another key prionty for 2013/14 1s delivering
ORn our commitments to build a better
business in the UK A focus on improving
like-for-like performance will support this

Aworking capital metnic has been introduced
this year to focus Executives on the effective
management of stock, cash and suppliers
The Commuttee believes that this working
capital 1s a measure that 1s better suited to
the short-term bonus than ROCE which
measures long-term capital efficiency

The profit measure

used will be based on
Trading Profit rather than
Underlying Profit Trading
Profit 15 wadely understood
throughout the business
but, unlike Underlying
Profit, does not include
property profits This
reflects our fundamentally
different approach to
space going forward

Link to strategy — At Tesco we believe that a focus on the enablers
of business performance will help us build a much more successful,
sustanable business for the long term which will ulimately yield
financial returns for all stakeholders

The Commuttee therefore considered that it was important the
2013/14 annual bonus framework focused on

—Improving our service to our customers

—Improving the engagement of all of our colleagues — f our
colleagues smule, our customers smile too

—Being a business that puts back more into our community
than we take out

Group custormer service and Group colleague engagement

15 objectvely measured through our management Steenng
Whee! which ensures that we manage 1n a balanced way across
our business

We are currently developing a new reputation scorecard and
envisage replacng the COz metnc from 2014/15 with this
new metric

The balance of measures is llustrated in the chart below

Given their commeraial sensitivity, we do not publish the detaits of
targets in advance However, targets are considered o be measurable
and appropnately stretching If they are achieved the Committee
considers that value will have been added for shareholders The
Comrmuttee will provide an explanation of the rationale for the level

of any bonus paid in the 2013/14 Directors’ Remuneration Report

to ensure transparency for shareholders regarding the level of reward
paid in the context of performance delivered

Clawback apples to deferred shares to allow the Commuittee to scale
back deferred share awards prior to vesting {(potentially to zero) in the
event that resufts are materially misstated

Long-term incentives

At a glance l
» Maximum award of 275% of salary for the CEQ
* Maximum award of 225% of salary for the CFO

+ Shares vest in three years time subject to performance targets
being met
* Clawback provisions apply to PSP awards prior to vesting

The ulumate goal of our strategy 1s to prowide long-term sustainable
returns for all of our shareholders Tesco beleves that the best way

to deliver enhanced value 1s to grow eamings over the long term while
mamtaining a sustamable level of retumn on capital employed — in other
words to keep growing the size of the business in an efficient way

2013 Performance Share Plan awards will continue to be subject to
performance against a matrix of stretching earnings growth targets

and sustamable return on capital performance The Committee behieves
that thus combination of EPS growth and ROCE performance 1s strongly
aligned with our strategic objectives and also reflects the drwers of long-
term shareholder value Achieving this performance will demonstrate the
successful implementation of our strategy

The economic environment, both i the UK and internationally,
continues to be challenging In January 2012, we announced our plans
1o repriontise our Group invesiment We have focused our invesiment
on the customer expenence, our mulichannel offering and targeted
consumer offers rather than new space expansion We are starting to see
positive returns from this strategy, with encouraging sales performance
beng achieved, particularly in the UK, however we are still at the start

of our jJourney to ‘Buid a Better Tesco’' 2013/14 will see us continuing

on this journey
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

In hght of our fundarmentally different approach to space going forward,
the Committee has determined that underlying EPS performance will
be measured excluding property profits The Committee also reviewed
the performance targets for the 2013 PSP awards to ensure that they
remained motivational for management while stilf representing long-
term value creation for shareholders Having carefully reviewed targets
In the context of this objective and having discussed proposals with
shareholders, the Committee determined that it was appropnate to
lower the EPS target range and broaden the ROCE target range Given
this 1t1s also proposed to reduce the proportion of the award that vests
for meeting threshold performance from 20% of maxinum opportunity
ta (% and to reduce the level of vestimg in the bottom night end of the
matrix from 85% to 70%

201314 award
The vesting matrix and targets for the three years to 2015/16 are
ustrated below

% of bl award vesting

EPS growthp a
Threshald Suetch
Targets 3% 10%
15% 45%, Straight hine 100%
ROCE 12% 0% “hewoome__70%

Performance targets for awards granted m 2011 and 2012 are set outin
a footnote to the Long Term Performance Share Plan table on page 64

The Remuneration Commuittee reserves the nght to make adyustments
to ROCE to take account of acquisitions which were not envisaged when
the targets were set but will only do so when the impact 1s matenat

Clawback provisions apply to awards, allowing the Committee to scale
back awards (potentially to zero) prior to vesting in the event that results
are materally misstated

Remuneration outcomes for Executive
Directors in 2012/13

Our strategy to ‘Build a Better Tesco’ focuses on improving returns
through reducing space growth, improving the performance of existing
stores, and investing more in developing different ways to reach
customers, for example, digital shopping

Over the Jast year we have made a significant investment in the
customer shopping tnip, particularly in the UK, developing warmer,
friendhier and more inviting stores The feedback so faris that
customers and cofleagues hike this focus on service and the format
of the new stores

Good trading over Chnstmas and New Year offers us encouragement
about progress against our new strategic plans but we are at the

start of our journey {0 ‘Buwild a Better Tesco' Our customer satisfaction
rating in the UK has improved foilowing through to an improvement

in UK like-for-like sales, we have dehvered strong growth in internet
sales, reduced CO:2 output and improved our feedback from colleagues
However, this pragress has yet to flow through imto profitability

and we have fallen short of where we need to be

Agarmnst this performance background, the mam aspects of remuneration
practice for the year were as follows

At a glance

Base salary » Salanes for Executive Directors were reviewed and
increased by 2% with effect from 3 July 2012, in line
with the general increase for other colieagues across
the Group

Next base salary review 15 with effect from ¥ July 2013

Annual .
bonus

Despite good progress aganst a number of strateqic
operational measures and encouragmg financat
performance in the latter part of the year, profitability
targets were not met and therefore no bonus witl be
paid to Executive Directors in respect of 2012/13

Long-term « Qur long-term rewards were assessed based on Group
Incentives and International ROCE and EPS delivered over the
past three years

Challenging Group and International ROCE targets
were not met and therefore PSP awards granted in
2010 wnll lapse EPS growth targets were not met

and therefore the share options granted in 2010 will
also lapse

The following provides further detail on these decisions

Salaries for 2012/13
The base salanes of the Executive Directors following the 2012
review were

Salaries 2012113

Buases‘al;rwjulymiﬂ - T S

CEQ £1,122,000
CFO £869,040

Salary increases for Executive Directors last year were 2%, which was
broadly the same as the increase for other Executives and colleagues
throughout the Group Salary mcreases over the last four years have been
ahgned with those of other colleagues




Short-term honus 2012/13
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Performance measures and payout

Performance measures Maxm_vum opporiunity 201213 payout
70% based on profitability Underlying profit performance * CEQ — Maxsimum bonus opportunity 0% payout
30% based on strategic performance * UK like-for-like sales growth of 230% of base salary
+ CFO - Maximum bonus opportunity
* UKROCE of 200% of base salary
» UK customer satisfaction
* (roup internet sales
* Group employee engagement
* Group CO: reduction
The following illustrates performance aganst targets for vanious objectives
Measures Performance
Below Threshold Target Stretch
Profitability  Underlying profit L
Strategic UK like-for-hke sales growth L 4
UK return on capital employed *
UK customer satisfaction L J
Group internet sales +*
Group CO: reduction *
Group employee engagement hd

Despite good progress against a number of strategec operational measures and encouraging financial performance in the latter part of the year,
annual profitability targets were not met There will therefore be no bonus paid in respect of 2012/13

Long-term incentives

Vesting of 2010/11 to 2012/13 awards

Awards vesting in the year were made under the previous long-term incentive framework, comprising both share options and performance related
shares The performance conditions applying to these awards and achievement against these targets are summansed below

Performance measures and payout |

Maximurn opportunity 2012113 payout

Earnings per share

First 100% subject to the achievernent of
underlying dituted EPS growth of at least
RPI plus 9% over three years and the
balance vesting for achieving growth of
at least RPI plus 15% over three years

+ Granted in 201011

Performance period ended 2012/13

The increase in underlying diluted EPS above RPI over the three years from 2010711 to 201213
was below threshold and therefore awards granted in 2010 will lapse

* Share options with a face 0% of maximum
value of 200% of salary  opportunity vested
at the date of grant

-
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

| Performance measures and payout

Maxmum epporunty 2012113 Payout
Return on capital employed - Group
* Maximum vesting for Group ROCE of * Maximum award * Group reported ROCE for
13 6% with threshold vesting (25%) for of 100% of salary 2012M3 was 127% Thisis
Group ROCE of 12 5% measured on a continuing basis
* 75% based on performance against and excludes the US operations
target with 25% based on the Committee and one-off itemns in respect
assessment of the quality of ROCE of the UK property write-down,
performance goodwill imparments in Central
* Granted in 2010711 Europe and the increased
= Performance penod ended 2012/13 provision for PPl at Tesco Bank
The Remuneration Committee
decided that undertying

perfarmance for incentive
purposes should include

these iterns and therefore
adjusted ROCE performance
down This resulted in Group
ROCE performance beng
below the threshold level

of performance required and
therefore 0% of the maximum
the award will vest

Return on capital employed — International

* Maximum vesting for Internationai * Maximum award = International ROCE for 2012113
ROCE of 7 5% with threshold vesting of 50% of salary was below the level required for
for International ROCE of 6% threshold levels of vesting and

* 75% based on performance agamst therefore 0% of the award
target with 25% based on the Commmuttee will vest
assessment of the quality of ROCE
performance

* Granted in 2010/11
¢ Performance period ended 2012/13
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Aligning pay with performance
The following charts dlustrate performance at Tesco against key performance indicators over the past five years

The graph above shows a companson between TSR for the Company's shares for the five
financial years 1o 23 February 2013 and the TSR for the comparves comprnising the FTSE
100 index over the some period This index has been selected to provide an established
and broad based comparator group of retall and non retal companies

For further details in relation to numbers set out in the charts above please see the five year record on page 136
The following chart illustrates remuneration arrangerments paid to Executive Directors over the last five years

Philip Clarke was promoted o the role of CEO with effect Laune Mcilwee was promsted to the Board durng 2008/09
from 1 March 2011 and therefore the first fulk year shown above is for 2009410
He waived his enutlemen to bonus fur 2011112
Notes
1 Base salary — The base salary paid in rhe year, as reported in the emoluments table for the relevant financial year
2 Annual banus (cash) ~ The cash bonus in respect of annual performance in that financlal year as reported in the emoluments table for the relevant financial year
3 Annual bonus (deferred shares) - The value of deferred bonus shares on award as reporied in the emoluments 1able for the relevant firancial year
4 PSP - The value of PSP awards that vested in respect of the performance period ending in the relevant financial year Awards valued based on the share price at the date of vesting
5 Share options — The 'gam’ i relatgn 1o share opiions rthas vested i respect of the performance period ending m the relevant fmancial year Gam calkkulated based on the share price

atthe date of vesting less the exercise price
Pension — Pension 1s not mcluded for the purpose of this analysis

o«
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Other information

Leaving arrangements for Executive Directors

Dawid Potts, Andrew Higginson, and Lucy Nevdle-Rolfe retired from the business after 68 years of combined service Richard Brasher and Tim Mason
left the business after 56 years of combined service They are entitfed to draw their accrued pension from the date of retirement Accrued pensions
are calcutated based on length of service since Joining the Company Pension Scheme and there has been no augmentatton of penston benefits
Further details on pension benefiis can be found in Table 2 (Pension) on page 60

The hquidated damages paid to Richard Brasher and Tim Mason were determined in accordance with their contracts Further details on these
payments can be found i Table 1 (Directors' emoluments) on page 60 All unvested long-term incentive awards previously granted to Richard Brasher
and Tim Mason will fapse Further detals can be found in Table 3 (Share Qpugns) on page 61 and Table 5 (Performance Share Plan) on page 63

Qutside appointments
Tesco recognises that its Executive Directors may be invited to becomne Non-executive Directors of other companies Such Non-executive dutses can
broaden expenence and knowledge which can benefit Tesco

Subject to approval by the Board, Executive Directors are allowed to accept Non-executive appontments, provided that these appomtments are not
Iikely to lead to conflicts of interest, and retain the fees received Executive Directors’ biographies which in¢lude details of any outside appointments
can be found on page 24 of this report

Fees retained for any Non-executive Directorships held by individuals who were Executive Direclors during the year are set out below

Non-executive Directorships

Name Company mwhkh Non executive Directorship held Feesretainedn 2012/13 £000
Andrew Higginson BSkyB plc 19
Lucy Neville-Rolfe The Carbon Trust ple 13

ITV plc 49

Non-executive Directors

I Non-executive Director responsibihities

Jacqueline
Sir Richard Gareth Patrick Stuart Karen Ken Ken Dearna Tammenoms
Broadbent Bullock Cescav Chambers Cook Hanna Hydon Oppenheimer Baxker
Senior Independent Director X
Remuneration Committee 0 [ ] o] 8] ]
Nomunations Commuittee [ [s] 0 [s)
Audit Commuttee o] 0 [ ®
Corporate Responstbility Comrmutiee ® [e) o} 2]

* Charman of Committee
O Member of Committee
X Senior Independent Director

Sir Richard Broadbent became a member of the Remuneration Commuttee on 5 October 2012 Ken Hanna took over from Ken Hydon as Chairman
of the Audit Committee on 5 October 2012
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There were no Increases to the Non-executive Director fee levels in the year The current Non-executive Director fees are as follows

| Non-executive Director fees |

Basic fees £70,000pa
Additional fees

Senior independent Director £26000pa
Chars of Audit and Remuneration Compmuttees £30,000pa
Membership of Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Nominations and Remuneration Committees £12,000 p a for each Committee

Gareth Bullock, Stuart Chambers and Deanna Oppenheimer were appointed to the Board of Tesco Personal Finance Group Limited in July 2012
They are paid a basic fee of £70,000 p a for this role and an additional fee for Commuttee membership of £12,000 p a in hne with other members
of the Board of Tesco Personal Ftnance Group Limited

*» Letters of appointment — Non-executive Directars have letters of appontment setting out therr duties and the time commutment expected
The letters are avallable to shareholders to view from the Company Secretary upon request

Review of performance — The Charman meets with each Non-executive Director separately (o review indnndual performance

Reappointment policy — In line with the UK Corporate Governance Cade, all Non-executive Directors will submit themselves for re-election
by sharehoiders every year at the Annual General Meeting All Non-executive Director appointments can be termuinated by either party
without notice

Pohlicy for determining Non-executive Director remuneration - The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors 15 determined by the Chairman
and the Executive Committee after considering external market research and indiwidual roles and responsibilities

Chairman fees
The Remuneration Cormmittee deterrmines the Chairman’s remuneration, having regard to tme commitment of the role and remuneration
arrangements for Chairmen of other companies of & similar size and complexity

Sir Richard Broadbent’s fee for his role as Non-executive Chairman s £625,000 p a and he has the benefit of a company car and driver This fee
was set at the time of hus appointment and has not been increased since He does not receive additienal commuttee fees

Corporate governance

Membership of the Numnber of Actual
Remuneration Commitiee possible meetings
and attendance at meetings meetings attended
Stuart Chambers {Committee Chairman) 4 4
Sir Richard Broadbent 1 1
Karen Cook 4 4
Ken Hanna 4 4
Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker 4 4

« The Commuttee also convenes on an ad hoc basis between formal meetings when necessary

* The Dwectors' biographies can be found on pages 24 and 25 of this report

+ No member of the Committee has any personal financral interest in the matters being decded, other than
as a shareholder, nor any day-to-day involvement in running the business of Tesco

Role of the Rermuneration  The Committee’s key responsibilities are
Committee

* To determine and recommend to the Board the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and the Chairman

* To ensure the level and structure of remuneration 1s designed to attract, retain, and motivate the Executive
Directors needed to run the Company while remaining appropnate in the context of the remuneration
arrangements throughout the Group

* To ensure that the structure of remuneration arrangernents is aligned with the creation of sustatnable returns
for shareholders and that the level of reward received by Executives reflects the value delivered for shareholders

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA"), Tesco Bank has a separate independent remuneration
commuttee The Group Remuneration Committee 1s consulted on, and makes recommendations in relation to
the rermuneratron arrangements for Tesco Bank cofleagues, with the aim of encouraging consistency with Group
remuneration policy, but it does not make decisions in relation to, or direct, how remuneration 15 managed within
Tesco Bank
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

‘ Corporate governance continued

Remuneration Committee activities 2012113
The following provides a summary of the Commuttee’s actmties during and shortly following the end of the financial year

Meeting Standing agenda itermys Other agendaiems
Apri 2012 *+ Review and agree payout outcomes for short-term annual bonus, » Professional development update on
long-term PSP and share option awards for 2011/12 Department for Business, innovation
* Approval of short-term bonus and tong-term PSP targets for and Skills {‘BIS') shareholder voting
2012/13 - 2014115 awards rights cansultation
* Sign off 2011/12 Directors’ Remuneration Report
* AGM communication plan
June 2012 * Report from the Tesco Bank Rermnuneration Commuttee ¢ Packages for new Executive Committee
* Update on shareholder feedback on Directors’ Remuneration members
Report + Update on pension arrangements
* Review of Executive Director base salary and total compensation * Response to BIS on shareholder nights
» Determine base salaries with effect from 1 July 2012 consultation
+ Consideration of the relationship between Executive Director and * Confirmed leaving arrangements for
Executive Commuttee reward and reward at the level below this Richard Brasher, Andrew Higgmson
¢ Benchrnarking of Chairman's pay against market and agreeing and Dawid Potts
hts pay for 201213
Octaber 2012 *+ Review of remuneration trends and developments in best practice * Response to BIS consultation
* Review of remuneration strategy for 2013/14 * Professional development update on
* Review approach to 2012/13 Directors' Remuneration Report Hermes discussion paper, FR lab project
¢+ Follow-up from Committee effectiveness review on single figure, Kay Review and Fidelity
* Remuneration Committee bible Principles of Qwnershp
February 2013 * Review of performance against short-term annual bonus, long-term ¢ Packages for new Executive Committee
PSP and share option awards for 2012/13 members
* Review of remuneration strateqy and policy for 201314 and review ¢ Information provided on the Company’s
of shareholder feedback in relation to proposed changes HR polices for the Commuttee to note
« Rewview of the first draft of the 2012/13 Directors’ Remuneration * Professional update on Asseciation of
Report British Insurers (*AB), ISS and NAPF
* Committee effectiveness review guidelnes, BIS response to the Kay Review,
FR Lab project and NAPF stewardship cade
¢+ Confirmed {eaving arrangements for
Tim Mason and Lucy Newiile-Rolfe
Apnl 2013 + Review and agree payout outcomes for short-term annual bonuss,

(Foliowing year end}

long-term PSP and share option awards for 2012113

Approval of short-term bonus and long-term PSP targets for 2013414
—2015/%6 awards

Sign off 2012113 Directors’ Remuneration Report

AGM communication plan

Number of meetings

-

Normally four meetings per year
Four meetings were held dunng 2012/13

External advisors

Deloitte LLP — Appomted by the Committee

Deloitte 15 one of the founding members of the Remuneration Consultants Code of Conduct and adheres to this Code
n1its dealings with the Committee The Committee is satisfied that the advice provided by Deloitte 1s independent

Deloitte also provided unrelated advisory services in respect of corporate tax planning, technology consulting, risk
management, share schemes, international 1axation, corporate finance and treasury to the Group durnng the year

Internal adwisors

Jonathan Lloyd, the Company Secretary, 1s Secretary to the Committee

Philip Clarke (Chief Executive of the Group) and Launie Mcilwee {Group (FQ) attend meetings at the mvitation

of the Committee They are not present when theirr own remuneration 1s being discussed

The Comrwttee 1s supported by Alison Horner (Group Personnel Director), Drew Matthews (Group Remuneration
Director) and Corporate Secretarrat and Finance functions

Terms of reference

Avallable from the Company Secretary upon request or can be viewed at www tescoplc com




Shareholder voting

Tesco remains committed to engoing shareholder dialogue and
carefully reviews voting cutcomes on remuneration matters In the
event of a substantial vote aganst a resolution in relation to Directors'
remuneration, Tesco would seek to understand the reasons for any
such vote, and would detall any actions m response to it in the Directors’
Remuneration Report

The following table sets out actual voting in respect of our last report
in 2012

9% of voles For Agamsi
2011112 Durectors’ Remuneration 96 85% 315%
Report (2012 AGM)

92,278,876 votes were withheld in relation to this resolution
{c 1% of shareholders)

Funding of equity awards

Executive incentive arrangements are funded by a mix of newly 1ssued
shares and shares purchased in the market Where shares are newly
1ssued the Company complies with ABI diution guidehnes on therr
1ssue The current diution usage of Executive plans 15 ¢ 4% of shares
in 1ssue Where shares are purchased in the market, these may be held
by Tesco Employees Share Schemes Trustees Limited, in which case
the voting nghts relating to the shares are exercisable by the trustees
in accordance with therr fiduciary duties

Change of control

Long-term mcentive awards may vest or become exercisable before
their normal vesting date 1n the event of a change of contro! of Tesco
PLC subject to the rules of the applicable plans

Compliance

In catryng out s dubies, the Remuneration Commutiee gves full
consideration to best practice The Committee was constituted and
operated throughout the period in accordance with the principles
outhned in the Listing Rules of the Finanaial Conduct Authority dernved
from the UK Corporate Governance Code The auditors' report, set
out on page 71, covers the disclosures referred to in this report that
are specified for audit by the Financial Conduct Authonity

The report has been drawn up in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, Schedute 8 of the Large and Medium-sized
Compantes and Groups {(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
and the Financial Conduct Authonty Listing Rules

Details of Dwectors’ emoluments and interests are set out on pages
60 to 66 of this report

Approved by the Board on 1 May 2013
Stuart Chambers Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

ot G
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Tables 1-9 are audited information

Table 1 Directors’ emoluments

Performance
Fixed emaoluments related emolsments  Loss of office
Short term
Short-term defened Jotal Total
Salary Benefits? cash shares 2M213 20112
{000 {008 £000 £000 1000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
Richard Brasher? - - - - 1,302 1,302 1,138
Philip Clarke 1,114 57 - - - 1171 1,155
Andrew Higginson! 459 29 - - 488 1,149
Fim Mason' 2 631 400 - - 1,682 2,773 1,634
Laurie Mcllwee 863 54 — - - 917 1,137
Lucy Neville-Rolfe' 613 67 - - - 680 895
Non-executive Directors
Sir Richard Broadbent 625 57 - - - 682 281
Gareth Bullock® 141 - - - - 141 82
Patnck Cescau 132 - - - - 132 120
Stuart Chambers® M - - - - 171 100
Karen Cook’ 82 - - - - 82 82
Ken Hanna 12 - - - - 112 94
Ken Hydon' 100 — - - - 100 100
Deanna Oppenheimer' 138 - - - - 138 -
Jacquebine Tammenoms Bakker 94 - - - - 94 82
Total 5,335 664 - - 2,984 8,983 8,049

Appointrments and leavers

the termination of quafifymg services

The higures m this table are fiom the dete of sppomtment or untl the date that each Director ceased to be o Dwector of Tesco PLC including any payrments recevable m cornection with

Sw Davd Resd etired from the Board in 2011/12 He continued to have the ongo ng benefit of health insurance and the use of a company carand chauffeur for one year after leaving with
a net value of £66,000 The gross value of these benefis 1s £132,000

Dawid Pouts stepped down from the Board in 201112 He did not receve any payments or benefits cutside his normal contraciual arrangements but continued to be employed by the
Group until 30 June 2012 and was paid a satary of £346,000 and received benefits of £15,000 dunng this penod

Richard B asher stepped down from the Bozrd on 15 March 2012 He dit not recenve any payments or benefits outside his narmal contractual arrangements but continded to be employed
by the Group until 31 July 2092 and was pad a salary of £386,000 and eceved benefits of £49,000 during this period In lme wath hus contract Richard Brasher was pa d hquidated
damages of £1 302 000 which are shown i the tabie above

Andrew Higgmson retired from the Board on 1 September 2012 He did not recenve any payments or benefits outside hrs ngrmal contractual arrangements

Tim Mason stepped down from the Board on 5 December 2012 He dvd not recewe any payments or benefits outside hrs normal contractual arrangements In ine with his contract Tien
Mason was paid hquidated damages of £1 682 000 as shown in the table above

Lucy Neville Rolfe retired from the Board on 2 January 2015 She did not receive any payments or benefits outside her normal contractual arangemen.s

DCeanna Oppenheirrer was appo nted on 1 March 2012

Karen Ceok and Ken Hydon retired from the Board on 23 February 2013

Benefits

2 Benefits are made up of car benefits chauffeurs disability and health insurance s1aff discount and rembership at chubs
Tim Mason's bene“its comprise 3 pro rata net expatniate allowance of £204 000, the gross value of which s £400,000 The Company will also pay epat ation Costs D 1o a total value of £100,000

NED fees

3 The frgures in this table include fees paid 1o Gareth Bullock, Stuart Chambers and Deanna Oppenheimer m respect of their membership of the Beard and Commutiees of Tesco

Personal Finance Group Lemited

Table 2 Pension details of the Directors

]

Increasen Transfer Transfer Transker
Inc ease in accrued  valeof(a)at  vake ofiotal value of total Inerease
Total accrued accrued pension 23 February accrued accrued m transfer
pension at pension durmg the 2003 (less pensionat penston at vakie (fess
Age at Yearsof 23 February duimgthe  year(net of Directors  25February 23 February Drectors
23 February Company 20132 year’ inflauon) {2}’ * comtnbutions) 2012 2013* contributions)

2013 service £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Richard Brasher 51 26 421 10 6 90 6,551 6,844 293
Philip Clarke 52 38 600 28 13 182 9,727 10,738 1,01
Andrew Higgimson 55 15 328 17 13 1,120 7,628 9,000 1,372
Tim Mason 55 31 379 20 " 843 9,005 10,363 1,358
Laurie Mdliwee 50 12 326 33 26 351 4,464 5,217 753
Lucy Newille-Rolfe 60 15 329 24 18 373 6,811 7,796 985
Dawid Potis 55 39 491 9 5 99 9,302 9,559 257

Notes

1 The acerued pension 1s that which would be pard annually on retirement at 60 based on service to 23 Febnsary 213 Where an Executive Director has left or retrred, the acerued pension is
based on thew pension date of leaving, o1 pension at retrement reduced for early reurement but before any pension is exchanged for cash respectvely

[PIN N

o

increase has been appled

Some of the Executrve Direttors’ benefits are payable from an unfunded pension airzngement This i3 secured by a fieed and floating charge on a cash deposit

The increase n accrued pension over the yearis additional pension accived duning the year Where Executrve Directors have retired dunng rhe year, the mcrease in accrued pension 15
shown befo e any reducuon for early retremen..

Inflation over the year has been allowed lor usmg the September 2012 suatutory CPI revahialion order of 2 5% Where members retued/left dur ng the year, a proportiona.e mnflatonary

5 Formembers who left or reured during the year 1he transter values are calculated as at the date of leaving or retirement, using market condit ons at 23 February 2013
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Table 3 Gains on share options and share options held by Directors and not exercised at 23 February 2013 |

Discretionary Share Option Plan (2004)

Opions ar Qpoons Oprions Options at Date from
25 February exercssed in bpsed n 23 February Exerce prce which
Date cfg ant 2012 year year 2013 {pence) exercsable Expiry date
Richard Brasher 08 05 2007 278,627 - - 278,627 47375 68052010 0805 2017
12 05 2008 353,114 — - 353,114 42700 12052011 12052018
06 05 2009 467,848 - - 467,848 33840 06052012 06052019
0705 2010 386,850 — - 386,850 41980 07052013 0705 2020
1,486,439 — - 1,486,439
Philip Clarke 22 04 2005 379,856 - - 379,856 31275 22042008 22042015
08 05 2006 404,896 - - 404,896 31860 08052009 08052016
08 05 2007 298,844 - — 298,844 47375 08052010 0BOS5 2017
12 05 2008 353,114 - — 353,114 42700 12052011 12052018
06 05 2009 467,848 - - 467,848 33840 06052012 0605 2019
0705 2010 386,850 - - 386,850 418380 07052013 0705 2020
2,291,408 - - 2,291,408
Andrew Higginson 22 04 2005 379,856 - — 379,856 31275 22042008 22042015
08 05 2006 404,896 - - 404,896 31860 08052009 0805 2016
08 05 2007 298,844 - - 298,844 47375 0B052010 0805 2017
12 05 2008 353,114 - - 353,114 42700 12052011 1205 2018
0605 2009 467,848 - - 467,848 33840 06052012 0605 2019
0705 2010 386,850 - - 386,850 41980 07052013 0705 2020
2,291,408 — - 2,291,408
Tim Mason 10 08 2007 333,319 - - 333,319 42475 1008 2010 1008 2017
12 05 2008 353114 - - 353,114 42700 12052011 1205 2018
06 05 2009 467,848 - - 467,848 33840 06052012 0605 2019
07 05 2010 386,850 — 386,850 - 419 BD — ~
1,541,131 — 386,850 1,154,281
Laune Mcllwee 08 05 2007 77,192 - - 77,192 47375 O0B052010 08052017
12 05 2008 91,335 - - 91,335 42700 12052011 1205 20%8
06 05 2009 325,059 - - 325,059 33840 0605202 06052019
0705 2010 290,138 - - 290,138 41980 07052013 07052020
783,724 - - 783,724
Lucy Neviile-Ralfe 08 05 2007 189,973 - — 189,973 47375 08052010 0805 2017
12 05 2008 231,850 - - 231,850 42700 12052011 1205 2018
06 05 2009 327,494 - - 327,494 33840 06052012 06052019
0705 2010 290,138 — - 290,138 41980 07052013 07052020
1,039,455 — - 1,039,455
Total 9,433,565 - 386,850 9,046,715

Duscretionary Share Option Plan
* Executive share options are subject to performance condinons measured over three years The first 100% 15 subject to the achievement of underlying dlfuted EPS growth of at least
RPI plus 9% over three years and the balance vests for achieving growth of at least RPI plus 15%

+ Executives have until the tenth anmiversary of the date of grant to exerose their opiions

* No options have been granted to Executive Directors under the Discretionary Share Gption Plan since 2010 Maximum awards of up to 200% of base salary can be granted under
the Discretionary Share Option Plan However 1% 1s not intended that this plan will be used and awards will only be granted in exceptional crcumstances

Perfermance against targets
* EPS growth for the peniod 2009710 1o 2011412 exceeded RPI by 17 19 and therefare the share oplions awarded in 2002 vested in “ull on 6 May 2012

= EPS growih for the peniod 2010/11 to 2012413 dad not meet the performance target and therefore the share options awarded in 2010 will lapse on 7 May 2013

Market prices of Tesco PLC shares
* The sha eprice asa 23 february 2013 was 372 25p The share pnce during the 52 weexs to 23 Feh uary 2013 ranged from 297 1p to 374 4p

Leaving provisions
» Where a Drec.or ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC i the year, the figures in this 1able are ar the date on which they ceased 1o be a Ditector of Tesco PLC

* Richard Brasher stepped down from the Board on 15 March 2012 and left the Company on 31 July 2012 His vested awards may be exercised for one year after leaving His unvested
award {2810) will lapse on 7 May 2013 a3 the perfo mance condiions have nol been met

+ Andrew Higginson retwed from the Board on 1 September 2012 Hrs ves ed awards may be exercised for three years after leaving His unvested award {2010} wall lapse on 7 May 2013
as the performance conditions have not been met

* Tun Mason stepped down from the Board on 5 December 2012 His vested awards may be exercised for one year alter leaving His unves ed award (2010} lapsed on leaving

* Lucy Neville Rotfe retired from the Board on 2 January 2013 Her vested awards may be exercised for thiee years after leaving Her unvested award (2010) will lapse on 7 May 2013
as the performance conditions have not been met
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Directors' remuneration report continued

| Table 4 Gains on share options and share options held by Directors and not exercised at 23 February 2013

Savings-related share option scheme (1981)

Value Value
Asat Options Opuons Options As at realisable reahisable
25 February granted exercned kpsed 23 February Ererase prce 201213 20112
Date of grany 2012 myear nyear Inyear 2013 (pence} £000 £000
Richard Brasher 0711 2007 819 - - - 819 4100 - -
0511 2008 1,077 - - - 1,077 10 - -
i1 11 2009 948 - - - 9438 3280 - -
10 11 2010 788 — - - 788 3860 - -
1611 2011 B24 - - = 824 3640 - -
4456 - - = 4,456 - 1
Phihp Clarke 0711 2007 819 - - — 819 4100 — -
0511 2008 1,077 - — - 1,077 310 —~ -
1111 2009 948 - — - 948 3280 = -
1011 2010 788 — - - 788 3860 - -
1611 2011 824 - - - 824 3640 ~ -
0711 2012 - 1,063 - - 1,063 2820 - —
4,456 1,063 - - 5,519 ~ 1
Andrew Higginson 0711 2007 819 - - - 819 4100 - -
(5 11 2008 1,077 - - - 1,077 310 - -
1111 2009 948 - - 948 — 3280 - -
1011 2010 788 - - 788 - 3860 - -
3,632 - - 1,736 1,896 - 1
Tirn Mason 0711 2007 819 - - 319 — 4100 - -
0511 2008 1,077 - - 1,077 - 3INM0Q - -
1111 2009 948 - = 948 - 3280 - —
10 11 2010 788 - — 788 - 3860 — =
16 11 2011 824 - - 824 - 3640 - =
0711 2012 - 1,063 — 1,063 - 2820 - —
4,456 1,063 - 5,519 - - 1
Laurie Mcliwee 07 11 2007 819 - - - 819 4100 — -
05 11 2008 1,077 — — - 1,077 3110 - -
1111 2009 948 = = — 948 3280 - —
1011 2010 788 - - - 788 3860 = -
16 11 2011 B24 - - - 324 3640 - -
07112012 - 1,063 - - 1,063 2820 - —
4,456 1,063 - - 5,519 - -
Lucy Neville-Rolfe 0711 2007 819 — - - 819 4100 - -
05 11 2008 1,077 - — - 1,077 3110 - -
1111 2009 948 - - - 948 3280 - -
1011 2010 788 - - - 788 3860 - -
1611201 824 - - - 824 3640 - -
4,456 - - - 4,456 - 1
Total 25,912 3189 - 7,255 21,846

Save As You Earm Scheme

* Save As You Earn s an HMRC approved all employee savings related share option scheme under which employees save up to a lmut of £250 on a four weekly basis via 3 bank/
buildmg society with an option to buy shares in Tesco PLC at the end of a (hree year of five year penod a1 a discount of up 1o 20% of the market value

Option exercises and lapses

* Opuons are not subject to performance conditions. All optiens are exercisable from 1 February m the year which 1s six years from the year of grant All oprions expire six months

from therr exercise date (1 @ on 1 August of the relevani year)
Leaving provisions

* Whe e a Director ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC in the year, the figures i this table are at the date on which they ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC

* Richard Brasher stepped down fram the Board on 15 March 2012 His options lapsed on feaving the Company on 31 July 2012

¢ Andrew Higgimson zetired from the Board on 1 September 2012 His options granted in 2009 and 2010 lapsed on leaving Lthe Company on 1 September 2012 His 2007 and 2008

opnions may be exercised with the savings available 31 the pount of leaving

* Tem Mason stepped down from the Board on 5 Dlecember 2012 Al hus ophions Ispsed on leaving the Company on 5 December 2012

¢ Lucy Neville Rolfe retired from the Beard on 2 Januz y 2013 Her options may be exercised with the savings available at the point of leavirg
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Table 5 Long Term Performance Share Plan !
Share Shares Share
price on awarded/ Shares prce on Date of
Date of award As at optons exercsed/ As at Dateof  exercsel  Value releasefdate
award! date 25 February granted  released Shares 23 February exercsef release realisable Irom which
grant {pence) 2012 nyear 0 year lapsed 2013 refease (pence)  £000 exercisable Expiry date
Richard Brasher 14112007 47110 229,221 - — - 229221 - - — 14072010 1411 2017
08072008 35376 284841 = - — 284,841 - - — Q8472011 08072018
15102009 37400 354,765 - — - 354,765 - - - 15072012 1510 2019
14102010 43390 302,671 - - - 302,671 — - — 14072013 1410 2020
11072011 40719 476,767 — - — 476,767 — - — 11072014 11072021
1,648,265 _ — — 1,648,265
Philip Clarke 08072008 35376 2848411 14,998 — - 299,839 — — — 08072011 08072018
15102009 37400 354,765 15,420 - 196,658 173,527 - — — 15072012 1510 2019
14102010 43390 302,671 15,936 — - 318,607 — - — 14072013 1410 2020
11072011 40719 7523 39,615 — - 791946 — — ~ 11072014 1107 2021
30072012 31710 - 989,162 — - 9B9162 — - — 30072015 30072022
1,694,608 1,075,131 ~ 196,658 2,573,081
Andrew Higginson 08 07 2008 35376 284,841 10,110 - - 294,951 — - - 0B072011 08072018
15102009 37400 354,765 12,592 — 196,658 170,699 - — — 15072012 1510 2019
14102010 43390 302,671 10,743 - - 313,414 - - -~ 14072013 1410 2020
11072011 40719 476,767 16,924 — — 493691 - - — 11072014 11072021
30072012 31710 - 604,541 — 604,541 - — - — 30072015 30072022
1,419,044 654,910 - 801,199 1,272,755
Tun Masan 15102009 37400 236,511 8,395 170699 74,207 - 160712 315475 539 - -
14102010 43390 201,781 7,162 - 208,943 - - - - - -
11072011 40719 476,767 16,924 — 493691 - — — — — —
30072012 31710 - 616,632 — 616,632 - - — - — -
915,058 649,113 170,699 1,393,473 =
Laurie Mcllwee 15102009 37400 266,072 11,565 — 147,493 130,144 - - — 15072012 1510 2019
1410 2010 43390 302,671 15,936 - - 318,607 — - — 14072013 1410 2020
11072011 40719 476,767 25,105 — - 501,872 - - - 11072014 1107 2021
30072012 31710 - 626,851 - - 626,851 — - — 30072015 3007 2022
1,045,510 679,457 — 147,493 1577474
Lucy Newlle-Rolfe 14112007 47110 150,499 7922 — — 158,421 — - — 14072010 14112017
0B 072008 35376 199,389 10,498 - - 209,887 - - — 08072011 08072018
15102009 37400 266,072 11,565 — 147,493 130,144 = - — 15072012 15102019
14102010 43390 227,002 11,952 - - 238954 - - — 14072013 1410 2020
11072011 40719 357,575 18,829 - - 376,404 - - - 11072014 11072021
30072012 31710 - 470,138 — 470,138 - - - — 30072015 30072022
1,200,537 530,904 - 617,631 1113810
Total 7,023,023 3,589,515 170,699 3156454 8,185,385

Performance Share Plan
* All awards except those awarded to Tim Mason have been made m the form of ml cost options Tim Mason®s awards have been made i the form of unfunded promises to deliver
shares

* Awards are In¢ eased (o reflect dvidend equivalents as each dendend is paid

Performance against targets
* Awards made before 2011 are subject to performance conditions based on ROCE targets

= As reporied in last year's report, 69 7% of the 2009 awards based on Group ROCE performante vested on 15 July 20i2 The balance of the Group award and whole award subject
to performance against International ROCE targets lapsed on 5 July 2012

* For PSP awards granted an 14 October 2010 the Greup ROCE target for the first 75% was 12 5% (25% vesting) to 13 6% {100% vesting) The Internatienal ROCE target for the
First 75% was 6 0% {25% vesting) to 7 5% (100% vesting) The remaining 25% of each portion of the award vests subject to the Commuttee's assessment of the guality of ROCE
performance Group and international ROCE performance was below the tevel requwed for threshold levels of vesting and therefore no portion of these awaids will vest
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

lTabIe 5 Long Term Performance Share Plan contnued

PSP targets 2011 and 2012

The 12 gets for the awards granted on 11 July 201 and 30 July 2012 are set out below Performance agamst these targets will be measured at the end of the 2013414 and 2014115 financal years

% of iniual award vesting

% of muak award vestung

EPS growthp a EPSgrowthp a
Threshoid Target Stretch Threshold Strerch
Targets for Targets for
2011 2011 awards 7% 10% 12% 2012 2012 awards 5% 12%
14 6% 45% 75% 100% 14 6% 45% Straight line 100%
ROCE ROCE ting bet
13 6% 20% 60% 85% 13 6% 0% hesepons 85%

Leaving provisions

* Where a Director ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC in the year, the figures in this table are at the date on which they ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC

* No new awards were made to former Directors in the year In ine with the plan rules existing awards held by former Di ectors will vest subject to performance in the same proportion
as the other Diectors’ awards above

* Richard Brasher stepped down from the Board on 15 March 2012 His last award (2011) lapsed on leaving the Company on 31 July 2012 His vested awards (2007, 2008 and 2009)
may be exertised for one year after leaving His 2010 award will lapse on 14 July 2013 as the pesformance Largets weve nol met

* Andrew Higginson retired from the Board on t September 2012 His last award {2012) lapsed an leaving His vested awards may be exercised for three years aftes leaving His 2010
award will lapse on 14 July 2013 as the performance targets were nat met His 2011 award will vest on 11 July 2014 subject to the achwevement of performance conditions and any
vesting portion will be available for exercise for one year

* Tem Mascn siepped down from the Board on § December 2012 Al of tis awards lapsed on leaving the Company on 5 December 2012

* Lucy Neville Rolfe retired from the Board on 7 January 2013 Her last award (2012} lapsed on leaving Her vested awards may be exercised for three years after leaving Her 2010

award will{apse on 14 July 2013 as the performance targets were ot met Her 2071 award will vest on 11 July 2014 subject to the achievement of performance conditions and any
vesting portion will be available for exercise for one year

|1abie 6 Group New Business Incentive Plan

Options
exercsed/
Date of Asat Shares shares Asat
award/ 25 February awarded released 23 February
grant 02 N year e year 013 Date from which exercsable Exprry date
Sir Terry Leahy 1411 2007 2,886,738 152,010 ~ 3,038,748 Fourtranches 2011-20t4 1411 2017

Group New Business Incentive Plan

* The award made under this plan will normally vest in four tranches four five, six and seven years after the date of award for mil consideraton The award 1s in the form of mil cost
optons Awards may be adjusted to take account of any dividends paid or that are payable in 1espect of the number of shares earned The former Group CEQ, Sir Terry Leahy, retired
on 2 March 2011 and his interest in these awards will continue unnk therr normal vesting dates

+ Awards are increased to refiect diwvtdends as each dwvidend 1s paid These will vest in hne with the undeslying award based on perfo mance

Performance against targets

* Thevesting of the award made to Si Terry Leahy under this plan s condrianal on achievement agamst Group and International ROCE performance condmons Once performance
against the Group and International targets has been determmed, the extent to which the award made under this plan 1s capable of vesting will be conditional on the financal
perfarmance of the US business venture The targets are set out below

* The third tranche (2012/13) of the award was subject 1o testing against US Return on Capital Employed FROCE ) and Farrngs Before Intetest and Tax ('EBIT ) targets and the targets
were not met The 2010/11 and 2011/12 targets were 250 not met so no part of this award has vested to date The next and last assessment of performance will be in respect of
2013/14 Itis yrdkely that any portion of the award will vest

Targets

* The extent 10 which the awards will vest 1s conditional on the financial perfarmance of the US business based on the achievement of stretching EBIT and ROCE targets A percentage
of the EBIT of the U5 business for the relevant years may be allocated to an EBIT pool which will be capped at 10% in any one year The porion of the award which may vest will be
detesmined by reference 10 the value of the EBIT pool as well as the ROCE targets

Summary of US business performance conditions

ROCE hurdle 201011 2011712 201243 2013414
Maximum 6% ROCE 9% ROCE 11% ROCE 12% ROCE
Target performance 4% ROCE 6% ROCE B% ROCE 10% ROCE
Vesting percentage (% of maximum award)

Vesting levels at maximum performance Up to 25% Up to 50% Upto75%  Upto 100%
Vesting levels at target performance Up 10 6 25% Uptoi0% Upio125% Upto1875%

Followng a strategic review, the Group has decided to dispose of 1ts US operations 1t 1s cansidered that it 1s highiy unlikely that the final
performance test for the Group New Business Incentive Plan will be met and therefore 1t 15 expected that this award wall fapse in full
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Ilab!e 7 Executive Incentive Plan J
Shares Shares Share pnce on Date of
Date of As at awarded/ refeased/ Asat exercse/ Velue release/date
award/  Shareprce on 25 February ophions opbons 23 February selease reafisable fromwhich
grant  award (pence) 22 granted exercsed 2013 {pence} £000 exercsable
Richard Brasher 1905 2009 35116 134,584 - - 134,584 — - 1905 2012
22 06 2010 38805 206,987 - = 206,987 — - 22052013
2705201 41175 155,518 - - 155,518 - - 13052014

497,089 = - 497,089 - -
Phiip Clarke 1905 2009 35116 134,584 4777 139,361 - 311125 434 1905 2012
22 06 2010 38805 206,987 10,899 - 217,886 — — 22052013
2705 2011 41175 155,518 8,188 — 163,706 - - 13052014

497,089 23,864 139,361 381,592 ~ -
Andrew Higgmson 1905 2009 35116 134,584 4777 139,361 - 311125 434 19052012
2206 2010 388 05 206,987 7,347 - 214,334 -~ - 22052013
2705201 41175 155,518 5,520 = 161,038 - - 13052014
2505 2012 308 25 - 37424 - 37,424 — - 25052015

497,089 55,068 139,361 412,796 - -
Frm Mason 19 05 2009 35116 276,849 9,827 286,676 - 311125 892 19052012
22 06 2010 38805 307,367 10,910 - 318,277 - - 22052013
27035 201 41175 197,979 7,027 - 205,006 - - 13052014
25052012 308 25 - 37,424 - 37,424 - ~ 2505 2015

782,195 65,188 286,676 560,707 - -
Laurne Mcllwee 2206 2010 38805 155,240 8,174 - 163,414 — — 22052013
2705 201 41175 155,518 8,188 - 163,706 — - 13052014
25052012 308 25 - 38,044 - 38,044 - - 25052015

310,758 54,406 = 365,164 — -
Lucy Neville-Rolfe 1905 2009 35116 94,207 3,344 97,551 - 311125 304 19052012
22 06 2010 388 05 155,240 8,174 - 163,414 — - 22052013
2705 2011 41175 116,638 6,141 - 122,779 - - 13052014
25052012 308 25 - 28,533 - 28,533 - - 25052015

366,085 46,192 97,551 314,726 - —

Total 2,950,305 244,718 662,949 2,532,074

Executive Incentive Plan
= Awards are normaily made in the form of it cost options with the exception of Tim Mason s awards which are in the foerm of an unfunded promise over shares Awards made in 2009
were In the form of restricted shares

* Awards are increased 1o refiect dindend equivatents as each dnadend is paid
+ No options lapsed i the year

Leaving prowvistons
* Where a Dwectos ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC in the year, the figures in this table sre at the date on which they ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC

+ As reperted in last year's report Richard Brasher and David Potts were awarded deferred share bonuses of 13 54% of salary on 25 May 2012 in respect of the performance against
targets in 2011/12

* Richard Brasher stepped dewn fram the Board on 15 March 2012 His awards may be exercised for one year from the date that the award s due to become exerasable, three years
after the date of grant

* Andrew Higginson retired from the Board on 1 September 2012 His awards may be exerused for ane year after leaving the Company on 1 September 2012
* Trm Mason stepped down from the Board on 5 December 2012 His awards wili be released at the date that the award is due 10 become avallable, three years zfter the date of grant
* Lucy Neville Rolfe retired from the Board on 2 January 2013 Her awards may be exercised for one year afte leaving the Company on 2 Januasy 2013
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

| Table 8 Directors’ interests in the Long Term Incentive Plan

Number Number
of shares of shares
Price on asat asat Share price
awand 25 February 23 February onrelease  Valoe reahsable
Award date {pence)} 2012 Shares awarded Shares released 2013 {pence) £000 Release date
Laurie Mcllwee 200509 356 05 50,596 1,612 52,208 — 311125 162 200512
* These shares were awarded to Laurie Mcliwee under the semier mznagement bonus scheme before he joined the Board
Table 9 Disclosable interests of the Directors, including family interests

23 February 2013 {orat date of 25 February 2012

retirernent/re<ignatton If eanliet)

{or on appo atment if later)

Options Options
o acqeure 1o acquire
Ordinary erdinary Ordinary ordinary
shares' shares? shares? shares?
Executive Directors
Richard Brasher® 1,258,619 3,501,665 1,258,585 3,501,665
Phalip Clarke 1,829,467 5,251,600 1,832,007 4,352977
Andrew Higginson® 572174 3,978,855 707,081 4,076,589
Tim Mason® 1,082,208 1,154,281 1,875,704 1,545,587
Laurie Mcllwee 76,390 2,731,881 75,506 2,144,448
Lucy Neville-Roife* 456,466 2,472,447 458,036 2,516,326
Non-executive Directors
Sir Richard Broadbent 53,996 - 53,996 -
Gareth Builock - - - -
Patrick Cescau 18,340 - 18,340 -
Stuart Chambers 25,000 - 5,500 -
Karen Cook® - — - -
Ken Hanna 25,000 - 25,000 -
Ken Hydon® 60,093 - 60,093 -
Deanna Oppenheimer’ 52,500 - - -
Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker 16,472 - 16,472 —
Total 5,526,725 19,090,729 6,486,320 18,137,592
Qrdinary shares

1 Ordinary shares shown in this table include shares awarded to Tim Mason under the Performance Share Plan shown 1n Table 5 which are subject to future performance conditions shares
held by T'm Mason under the Executive Incentwve Plan shown in Table 7 which are subject to a holding period, shares held under the Long Term Incentive Plan shown an Table 8 whch are
subject {0  holding pened and shares held under the all employee Share Incentive Plan which are subject 1o a holding period Deanna Oppenheimer holds 17 500 Tesco American

Depositary Receipts which is equvalent to 52 500 Tesco ordinary shares of 5p

Between 23 February 2013 and 30 Apnl 2013 88 shares were purchased by Executive Directors as part of the Buy As You £arn scheme Buy As You Ea n)1s an HMRC approved share
purchase scheme under which employees invest up to a it of £110 on a four weekly basis to buy shares i Tesco PLC at the maiket value On 25 Aprid 2013, Olvia Garfield a Non-
executive Director appointed on 1 Apnl 20113, purchased 4 D86 ordinary shares There have been no other changes in Directors Interests in Tesco PLC shares at the date of the publicanion

af this report
Options over shares

2 Opaons to acquire ordinary shares shown i this table comprise options held undes the Discretionary Share Option Plan shown in Table 3, Save As You Earn scheme shown i Table 4 and

ul cost options held under the Pesfarmance Shase Plan and Executive Incentve Plan shown in Tables 5 and 7 respectively
Appointments and leavers
3 Thefigures in this table are from the date of appointment or uni the date that each Director ceased to be a Director of Tesco PLC

Ruchard Brasher stepped down from the Board on 15 March 2012

Andrew Higgmnson retred from the Board on 1 September 2012

Tim Mason stepped down from the Board on 5 December 2012

Lucy Newille Roife retired from the Board on 2 Janwary 2013

Deanna Oppenhermer was appeinted on 1 March 2012

Karen Cook and Ken Hydon retired from the Board on 23 February 2013
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General information

Principal activity, business review and future developments The
prmoipal activity of the Group s retailing and associated actiwities

in the UK, China, the Czech Republic, Hungary, the Republic of
Irefand, india, Malaysia, Poland, Stovakia, South Korea, Thailand and
Turkey The Group also provides retaill banking and insurance services
through its subsidiary, Tesco Bank Following a strateqic review, the
Group has decided to dispose of its US operations

Group resufts Group revenue {excluding VAT) rose by £0 9 billion to
£64 8 billion, representing an increase of 1 4% Group profit before
tax decreased by £2,078 million to £1,960 mithon Profit for the year
was £120 million, of which £124 million was attributable to equity
holders of the parent company

Dividends The Directors recommend the payment of a final dvidend
of 10 13p per ordinary share, to be paid on 5 July 2013 to members
on the Register at the close of busmess on 26 Aprit 2013 Together
with the intenim dividend of 4 63p per ordinary share paid in December
2012, the full year dividend will be maintained at 14 76p per ordinary
share (201112 14 76p)

Fixed assets Capital expenditure {excluding business combinations)
amounted to £3 0 bilhion compared with £3 7 billion the previous year

In the Oirectors’ opinion, the properties of the Group have an open
rmarket value well m excess of the book value of £22 9 billion which
has been included in these financal statements

Share capital, control of the Company and significant agreements
Details of the Company’s share capital, including changes during the
year In the issued share capital and details of the nghts attaching to
the Company's ordinary shares, are set out in Note 27 on page 120
No shareholder holds securities carrying special nghts with regards
to control of the Company There are no restrictions en veting rights
or the transfer of secunities in the Company and the Company 1s not
aware of any agreements between holders of securities that result

in such restrictions

The Company was authonsed by shareholders at the 2012 AGM
to purchase its own shares i the market up to a maximum of
appraximately 10% of its issued share capital No shares were
purchased under that authonty during the financial year The
Cempany is seeking to renew the authority at the forthcorming
AGM, within the limits set out in the notice of that meeting

Shares held by the Company's Employee Share Incentive Plan Trust,
International Employee Benefit Trust, Tesco Ireland Share Bonus
Scheme Trust and Tesco Employee Share Scheme Trust rank pan
passu with the shares in1ssue and have no specizl ights Voting
rights and nghts of acceptance of any offer relating to the shares
held in these trusts rests with the trustees, who may take account
of any recommendation from the Company Voting rights are not
exerasable by the employees on whose behalf the shares are held
intrust

The Company 15 not party to any significant agreements that would
take effect, alter or terminate following a change of control of the
Company The Company does not have agreements with any
Director or Officer that would provide compensation for loss of office
or employment resulung from a takeover, except that provisions of
the Company’s share plsns may cause options and awards granted
under such plans to vest on a takeover

While the Company has contractual and other arangements with
nurmerous third parties in support of its business activities, none
of the arrangements 1s individually regarded as essential to the
Company's business

Company's shareholders The Company has been noufied of the
following significant holdings of votng rights in 1ts shares as at
23 February 2013 and as at the date of this report

% of ssued share % of Issued share

caputal as at capital as at the

23 February 2013 date of this report

Berksiure Hathaway Inc 508 508

Norges Bank 500 500

Biackrock, Inc 486 496
Legal & General Investment

Management Limited 399 399

Articles of Association The Company's Articles of Association
may only be amended by special resofution at a generat meeting
of the shareholders

Directors and their interests The Directors who served during the
year were Richard Brasher, Sir Richard Broadbent, Gareth Bullock,
Patnck Cescau, Stuart Chambers, Philip Clarke, Karen Cook, Ken
Hanna, Andrew Higginson, Ken Hydon, Tim Mason, Laurie Mcliwee,
Pame Lucy Neville-Rolfe CMG, Deanna Oppenhermer, David Potts,
and Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakker The biographical details

of the present Directors are set out on pages 24 and 25 of this
Annual Report

The interests of Directors and ther immediate famibies in the shares
of Tesco PLC, alang with details of Directors’ share options, are
contained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report set out on pages
44 to 66

At no time during the year did any of the Directors have a matenal
mterest in any sigreficant contract with the Company or any of its
subsichanes A qualfying third-party mdemnity provision as defined
in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 1s in force for the benefit
of each of the Drrectors and the Company Secretary (who 15 also

a Director of certan subsichanes of the Company) in respect of
habihties incurred as a resuit of therr office, to the extent permitted
by law In respect of those habilities for which directors may not be
indemnified, the Company maintained a directors’ and officers’
hability insurance pohcy throughout the financial year

Employment pohicies We know that our colieagues are key

to the delivery of our Core Purpose We make what matters better,
together We regularly isten and respond to our colleagues through
various channels to ensure that we know how they are feeling and
they are involved in key decisions that affect them Internal
communications are designed to ensure that employees are well
informed about the business of the Group

Everyone 1s welcomne at Tesco and this 1s essential 1o how we do
business Our Values undarpin the development of fair and inclusive
policies to encourage engagement and drive inspiring behavieurs
so that colleagues can be their best and contribute to really make
adifference We are committed to improving the skills, knowledge
and well-being of our colleagues The Group’s selection, traning,
development and promotion polices ensure equal opportunities
for all colleagues regardiess of factors such as gender, mantal status,
race, age, sexual preference and onentation, colour, creed, ethimc
ongm, religion or behef, disability or trade union affiiation Al of
our decisions are based on ment

Colleagues are encouraged to become involved in the financial
performance of the Group through a vanety of voluntary share schemes
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General information continued

Palitical and chantable donattons Cash donations to chanties in
the financial year amounted to £22,185,062 (201112 £25,646,209)
Total contnbutions to commurity projects including cash, cause-
refated marketing, gifts-in-kind, staff tame and management costs
amounted to £78,152,071 (2011112 £74,588,318)

There were no pohtical donations in the financal year (2011712 £nil)
During the year, the Group made contributions of £33,583 (2011/12
£28,137) 0 the form of sponsorship for pohtical events Conservative
Party £11,210, Labour Party £11,452, Liberal Democrat Party £6,921,
Scottish National Party £4,000

Suppher payment policy Tesco PLC 1s a signatory to the Prompt
Payment Code in the UK More information about the Code can

be found at www promptpaymentcode org uk Payrment terms and
conditions are agreed with suppliers in advance and the Group pays
its creditors in accordance with those terms Payment terms vary
according to the type of product and terntory in which the suppliers
operate Tesco PLC s a holding company and therefore has no trade
creditors on its Balance Sheet

Compliance with the Grocenes (Supply Chatn Practices) Market
Investigation Order 2009 and the Groceries Supply Code of
Practice (*Cade’) The Code places obligations on grocery retailers
with a turnover greater than £1 bilion to mamtain a Code comphance
programme, whach includes training staff and providing information
to the Office of Far Trading In addition, the Code sets out a number
of prowvistons which relate to different aspects of the relationship
between a retatfer and suppher

We are committed to treating our supphers farly and work in
collaboration with them wherever possible Itis in our nature to treat
compiiance with the Code very sentously

We have in place a Code Compliance Officer ('CCO’) supported by
a compliance team wicluding a dedicated Code auditor We have an
audit plan and our approach enables us to 1identify any gaps i our
processes so they can be quickly fixed

We also bave in place an ongoing compliance traming programme
for our buying teams, and a comprehensive tramning course Is
provided for relevant new starters We identified some non-compliance
with the Code this year relating to the tramning of some new starters
within the period mandated by the Code We responded immediately
by ensurmg that all refevant personnel were tramned by year end and
further strengthened internal processes to ensure that all starters are
tramed within Code timelines Annual refresher trainmg 15 provided
via a bespoke e-learning programme and our traiming processes in
ths regard were fully Code-compliant

Al alleged breaches of the Code raised by suppliers this year have
been dealt with internally We have had one instance of a supplier
initiating the Dispute Resolution Procedure set out in the Code
This chspute was resolved quickly

The CCO regularly reports to the Audit Committee, which considers
that it retains effective oversight of our compliance wath the Code

Going concern The Directors consider that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to reman in operation for the
foreseeable future and have therefore continued to adopt the going
concern basis n prepanng the finanaal statements

Events after the Balance Sheet date There were no matenal events
after the Balance Sheet date

Auditors A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as auditors of the Company and the Group will be proposed at the
2013 AGM

Directors’ statement of disclosure of information to auditers
Having made the requisite enquines, the Directors in office at the
date of this Annual Report and Financial Statements have each
confirmed that, so far as they are aware, there s no relevant audit
information {as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006}
of which the Group's auditors are unaware, and each of the Directors
has taken all the steps he/she ought o have taken as a Director to
make tumself/herself aware of any relevant aud:t informatron and
to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that information
Thus confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the prowisions of Section 418 of the Comparies Act 2006

By order of the Board

Jonathan Lioyd Company Secretary
1 May 2013

Fa
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2006 to prepare
financial statements for each finanaial year which give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for the
financial year Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the
Group financial statements in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards (1{FRS") as endorsed by the European Union (‘EU)
and have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards

In preparing the Group and Company financial statements, the Directors
are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,

* for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS, as endorsed by the EU,

for the Company financal statements state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, and

prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis, unless
it 1s iInappropnate to presurne that the Group and the Company will
continue i business

The Directors, whose names and functions are set out on pages
24 and 25 confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

* the Group financial staternents, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS, as endorsed by the ELJ, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group, and

-

the Business Review contained within this document includes a fair
review of the development and performance of the business and the
posttion of the Group, as well as a description of the prncipat risks
and uncertainties that it faces

The Directors are respansible for keeping proper accounting records,
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and the Company and which enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Comparues Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial staternents, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of the
Company's website Legislation in the UK concerming the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation

n gther jurisdictions

The Directors have generaf responsibility for taking such steps as are
reascnably gpen to them to safequard the assets of the Group and of
the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Tesco PLC

We have audited the Group finanoial statements of Tesco PLC for
the financial year ended 23 February 2013 which comprise the Group
ncorme statement, the Group statement of comprehensive tnicome,
the Group balance sheet, the Group statement of changes in equity,
the Group cash flow statement and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in ther preparation 1s
applicable law and International Financial Reperting Standards
('IFRS') as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Diectors’ responsibilities set
out on page 70, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view Qur responsibility is 1o audit and express an opinton on
the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Audrting (UK and lreland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, iIncluding the opintons, has been prepared for and only for
the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not,

in gnang these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whorn this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent In wnung

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaming ewidence about the amounts and disclosures
n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from materal misstaternent, whether
caused by fraud or error This inciudes an assessment of whether

the accounting pohcies are appropriate to the Group’s arcurmstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
Directors, and the overall presentation of the financral statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information

in the Annual Report and Financial Statements to identfy material
inconsistencies with the audited financal statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financial statements

qive a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at
23 February 2013 and of its profit and cash flows for the financial
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Union, and

*+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Comparnes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
I our opinion the mfarmation given n the Report of the Directors

for the financial year ended 23 February 2013 for which the Group
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent wath the Group
finanoial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to youf,
N .oUr OpINIon

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specfied by law are
not made, or

* we have notreceived all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

* the Directors’ statement, set out on page 68, 1n relation to
gong concem,

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Cempany’s comphiance with the nine prowisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specihied for our review, and

* certam elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
Directors’ remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial
staternents of Tesco PLC for the financal year ended 23 February 2013
and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is
described as having been audited

Mark Gill (Senlor Statutory Auditer)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

M=

1 May 2013
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Group income statement

52 weeks 52 weeks
2013 2012
Year ended 23 February 2013 notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 64,826 63,916
Cost of sales 60,737y  (58,519)
Gross profit 4,089 5,397
Admunistrative expenses (1,562) (1,612)
Profitsflosses anisng on property-related items (339) 397
Operating profit 2,188 4182
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures and associates 13 54 9N
Finance income 5 177 176
Finance costs s {459} {411}
Profit before tax 3 1,960 4,038
Taxation 6 (574) {874)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,386 3.164
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 7 (1,266) (350)
Profit for the year 120 2,814
Attnbutable to
Owners of the parent 124 2,806
Non-controlting interests ()] 8
120 2,814
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 9 1 54p 34 98p
Diluted 9 1 54p 34 B8p
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic 9 17 30p 39 35p
Diluted 3 17 30p 39 23p
Non-GAAP measure underlying profit before tax
52 weeks 52 weeks
2013 2012
notes £m {m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,960 4,038
Adjustments for
1AS 32 and I1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments' — fair value remeasurements 15 14 {443
1AS 19 'Employee Benefits' —non-cash Group Income Statement charge for pensions 1 (56) 17
1AS 17 'Leases’ —impact of annual uphfts in rent and rent-free penods ) 28 31
{FRS 3 '‘Business Combinations' — intangible asset amortisation charges and costs arnsing from acquisitions 1 19 22
IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty Programmes’ — fair value of awards 1 28 17
Restructuring and other one-off costs 1
tmpairment of PPE and onerous lease provisions 895 -
Impairment of goodwill 495 -
Provision for customer redress 115 57
Qther restructuring and one-off costs 51 11
Underlying profit before tax from coantinuing operations 1 3,549 4,149

The notes on pages 77 to 125 form part of these financial statements
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Group statement of comprehensive income

52 weeks 52 weeks
2013 2017
Year ended 23 February 2013 notes Em £m
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets and investments () 13
Currency transtation differences 420 (22)
Reclassificahion adjustment for movements in foreign exchange reserve and net investrment hedging
on subsidiary disposed 20 -
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 26 (735) (498)
Gamns/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Net fair value gams 84 241
Reclassified and reported in the Group Income Statermnent (63) (142)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income for the year [ 104 73
Total other comprehenswe income for the year (181) (335)
Profit for the year 120 2,814
Total comprehensive income for the year {61) 2,479
Attributable to
Owners of the parent {57) 2,466
Non-controlling interests (4) 13
(61) 2,479
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders anses from
Continuing operations 1,209 2,816
Discontinued operations (1,266) (350)
(57) 2,466

The notes on pages 77 to 125 form part of these financal statements
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Group balance sheet

23 February 25 February

2013 2012
notes £m £m

Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 1 4,362 4,618
Property, plant and equipment 1 24,870 25,710
Investment property 12 2,001 1,991
Investments in joint ventures and associates 13 494 423
Qther nvestments 14 818 1,526
Loans and advances to customers 17 2,465 1,901
Derivative financial instruments 1 1,965 1,726
Deferred tax assets 6 58 23

37,033 37,918

Current assets

Inventories 15 3,744 3,598
Trade and other receivables 16 2,525 2,657
Loans and advances 1o customers 17 3,004 2,502
Derwative financial instruments 21 58 41
Current tax assets 10 7
Short-term investments 522 1,243
(ash and cash equivalents 1B 2,512 2,305

12,465 12,353
Assets of the disposal group and non-current assets classified as held for sale 7 631 510

13,096 12,863

Current habilities

Trade and other payables 19 (11,099) {(11,234)
Finanaal liabilities
Borrowings 20 (766) (1,838)
Dernvative financial mstruments and other labilities 21 {121) (128)
Customer deposits and deposits by banks 23 (6,015) (5,465)
Current tax habilities (519) (416)
Provisions 24 (188) (99)
(18,703)  (15,180)
Lrabilities of the disposal group classified as held for sale 7 (282) (69)
Net current labilities (5,889) {6,386)

Non-current lrabilities
Financial habilities

Borrowings 20 (10,068) (9.911)

Derwvative financial instruments and other habilities 2 {759) (688)
Post-employment benefit obligations 26 {2,378) {1,872)
Deferred tax habilities [ (1,006) (1,160)
Provisions 24 (272) (100)

(14483)  (13,731)

Net assets 16,661 17,801
Equity
Share capital 27 403 402
Share premum 5,020 4,964
All other reserves 685 245
Retaned earmings 10,535 12,164
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 16,643 17,775
Non-controlling interests 18 26
Total equity 16,661 17,801
The notes on pages 125 form part of these financial statement

Philip Clarke .
Laurie Mcllwee

Directors
The financial statements on pages 72 to 125 were authonsed fors
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 28 June 2013

e by the Directors on/i May 2013 and are subject to the approval of the
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Group statement of changes in equity

All ctherreserves

Issued Capnal Non-
shae Share Other redempuon  Hedgng Translason  Treasury  Retaned controling Total
capital  prermiom TRSeTVES reserve Teserve reserve shares  ednings Total  interests equity
£m fm £m im £m m fm £m £m fm im
At 25 February 2012 402 4,964 40 16 73 134 (18) 12,164 17,775 26 17801
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 124 124 ) 120
Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
finangial assets and investments - - - - - - - (i1 (n - (1)
Currency translation differences - - - - - 420 - - 420 - 420
Reclassificatian adjustment on
subsidianes disposed - - - - - 20 — - 20 - 20
Actuanial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - — - - (735) (735) — (735)
Gains on cash flow hedges - - - - 4] - - - 21 - 21
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive Income - - - - (3 27) - 134 104 - 104
Total other comprehensive ncome - - — - 18 413 - 612) (181) - (181)
Total comprehensive income - - - — 18 413 — {488) 57 (4) {61)
Transactions with owners
Share-based payments - - - - - - 9 44 53 - 33
Issue of shares 1 56 - - - — - — 57 — 57
Purchase of non-contrelling mierests - - - - - - - 4 4 (4) -
Dwvidends authorised in the year - - - - - - - (1184) (1,1849) - {1,189
Tax onitems charged to equity - - — - — - - {5) {5) - {5)
Total transactions with owners 1 56 — - - - 9 {1,141} (1,075) @ (1,019
At 23 February 2043 403 5,020 40 16 91 547 {9) 10535 16,643 8 16,661
All pther reserves
Issued Capatal Non
share Share Other redemption Hedging Translation  Tieasury  Retaned controling Total
capital  premtun reserves reserve reserve reserve shares eaMINgs. Total INTerests equity
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m im fm £m £m
At 26 February 2011 402 4,896 40 13 (1) 155 (141} 13171 16,535 88 16,623
Profil for the year - - - - - - — 2806 2,806 8 2,814
Other comprehensive ncome
Change in farr value of available-for-sale
financial assets and imvestmenis - - - - - - — 13 13 — 13
Currency transtation differences - - - - - 27) — — 27 5 (22)
Actuartal losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - — — {498) {498) - (498)
Gans on cash flow hedges - - - - 99 - — - 99 - 99
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income - - - - (25) 6 — 92 73 - 73
Total other comprehensive income - - - - 74 21 - (393) (340) 5 (335)
Total comprehensive iIncome - - - - 74 (21) — 2413 2,466 13 2,479
Transactions with owners
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - - - (13 - (1% - (13)
Shares purchased for cancellation (3) - - 3 - - - {290) (290) - {290)
Share-based payments 2 - - - - - 136 (5] 125 - 125
Issue of shares 1 68 - - - - - — 69 - 69
Purchase of non-controlling intesests - - - - - - - 72 72 (72) -
Future purchase of non-controling interests  — - - - - - — (3) 3) - 3
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 3 3)
Dwidends authorised in the year - - - - - - - (1180 (1,180) - {1,180}
Tax on items charged 10 equity - - - - - - - 5) (6) - 6)
Total transactions with owners - 68 - 3 - - 123 (1420) (1,226) (75) (1,301}
At 25 February 2012 402 4964 40 16 73 134 18) 12,164 17775 6 17,801

The notes on pages 77 to 125 form part of these finanoal statements
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Group cash flow statement

52 weeks 52 weeks
2013 2012
Year ended 23 February 2013 notes £m im
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 3,873 5,688
Interest paid (457) (531)
Corporation tax paid (579) (749)
Net cash generated from operating actnties 2,837 4,408
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition/disposal of subsidianes, net of cash acquired/disposed (72 (65)
Proceeds from sale of joint ventures and associates 68 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and egquipment, investment property and non-current assets
classtfied as held for sale 1,351 1,141
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and non-current assets
classified as held for sale (2,619) {3,374)
Purchase of ntangible assets (368) (334)
Net {increase)/decrease in loans to jont ventures and associates (43) 122
Investments in jont ventures and associates (158) 49
Net proceeds from sale off(investments in) shori-term and other mvestments 1,427 (767)
Dwvidends receved from joint ventures and assgciates 51 40
Interest recewed 85 103
Net cash usedin Investing activities (278) {3,183)
Cash flows from fmancing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 27 57 69
Increase in borrowings 4,820 2,905
Repayment of borrowtngs {3,022) (2,720)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases {32) {(45)
Purchase of non-controlling interests 1G] &9
Dividends paid to equity owners 8 {1,184) (1,180)
Dividends paid to non-controfling interests - (3}
QOwn shares purchased - (303)
Net cash used in financing actwvities {2,365) (1,366)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 194 (141)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnmg of the year 2,31 2,428
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 26 24
Cash and cash equivalents including cash held i disposat group at the end of the year 2,531 2,31
Cash held in disposal group ? (19) 63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 2,512 2,305
Reconciliation of net cash flow
to movement in net debt note
52 weeks 52 weeks
2013 2012
Year ended 23 February 2013 note £m £m
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents 194 {141)
Elimination of net (increase)/decrease in Tesco Bank cash and cash equivalents 475) 126
Investment in Tesco Bank (45) {112)
Debt acquired on acquisition ()] (98)
Net cash outflow to repay debt and lease financing 1,589 262
Dividend received from Tesco Bank 105 100
(Decrease)/increase in Retail short-term invesiments {721) 221
fncreasel{decrease) in Retail joint venture loan receivables 36 (122)
Other non-cash movements {430) (330)
Elimination of other Tesco Bank non-cash movements an 46
Decreasel(increase) in net debt for the year 241 (48)
Opening net debt ic (6,838) (6,790)
Closing net debt 30 (6,597) (6,838)

NB The recancibation of net cash flow to movement in net debt note is At a primary staterment and does not form part of the cash flow statement but forms part of the notes to e
fingncial startements

The notes on pages 77 to 125 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Group financial statements

ante 1 Accounting polhicies j

General information

Tesco PLC (‘the Company’) 15 a pubhc imited company incorparated
and domicted in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006
{Registration number 445790} The address of the registered office 15
Tesco House, Delamare Road, Cheshunt, Hertfordshire, ENB 9SL, UK

The financial year represents the 52 weeks ended 23 February 2013
(prior financial year 52 weeks ended 25 February 2012} For the UK, the
Republic of ireland and the LS, the results are for the 52 weeks ended
23 February 2013 (prior financial year 52 weeks ended 25 February
2012) For all other operations, the results are for the calendar year
ended 28 February 2013 (prior financial year ended 29 February 2012)

The main actmities of the Company and its subsicianes (together, ‘the
Group') are those of retailling and retarl banking

Basis of preparation

The consolidated Group financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS")
andIFRS Interpretations Commuttee {'IFRIC’) mterpretations as endorsed
by the European Union, and those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to compames reporting under IFRS The consolidated Group
financial statements are presented in Pounds Stering, generally rounded
to the nearest milhlen They are prepared on the histonical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments, share-based payments, customer
loyalty programmes and pensions that have been measured at fair value

Discontinued operations

During the financial year, the Board appreved a plan to dispose of its
operations in the US which is consistent with the Group's long-term
strategic prionity to drive growth and improve returns The exit of the
Japan operations successfully completed on 1 January 2013 In
accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontmued Operations’, the net results for the year are presented
within discontinued operations in the Graup Income Statement (for
which the comparatives have been reclassified) and the assets and
labilities of the businesses are presented separately in the Group
Balance Sheet See Note 7 for further detarls

Presentation change to cash flow statement

The Group has reported the investment in and proceeds from the sale
of shori-term investments on a net basis for the year to reflect the
strategic management of such investments The previous year's gross
presentation {investment cash flow £1,972m and proceeds of £1,205m)
have been netted

Presentation change to reserves

'All other reserves’ in the Group Balance Sheet and Group Statement
of Changes in Equity includes several items of reserves including ‘Other
reserves’ In the previous year, ‘Other reserves’ was shown separately

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all perrods presented in these consolidated finanoal statements

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated Group finanaial statements consist of the financial
statements of the ultimate Parent Company (‘Tesco PLC"), all entities
controlled by the Company (1ts subsidianies) and the Group’s share
of its interests in joint ventures and assocrates

Subsidiaries

The financial statements of subsidianies are included in the consolidated
finanaial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and
expenses arnising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in preparning
the consoldated financial statements

Joint ventures and associates

The Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates is
included in the Group Income Statement using the equity method of
accounting Investments in jomt ventures and associates are camed in the
Group Balance Sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the net assets of the entity, less any imparment in value The
carrying values of investments in joint ventures and associates include
acquired goodwill

If the Group's share of lesses in a joint venture or assocrate equals or
exceeds s investment in the joint venture or associate, the Group does
not recogmse further losses, uniess it has incurred obligations to do

so or made payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate

Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with jomt ventures and
associates are eminated to the extent of the Group’s nterest in the entity

Use of assumptions and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated Group Ninanaial statements

requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumpuons
that affect the apphication of policies and reported amounts of assets
and habilities, income and expenses The estimates and assoaated
assumptions are based on histoncal experience and vanous other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual
results may differ from these estimates The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis

Critical estimates and assumptions that are apphed in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements inctude

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group exercises judgement to determine useful hves and residual
values of intangbles, property, plant and equipment and nvestment
property The assets are depreciated down to their residual values over
therr estimated usefut hves

Impairment

1) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impawrrment
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating uruts has been
determmed based on value i use caleulations These calculations
require the use of estimates as set outin Note 10

n) impairment of assets

The Group has determined each stere as a separate cash-generatmg
unit for imparment testing Where there are indicators for emparrment,
the Group performs an impairment test

Recoverable amounts for cash-generating units are based on the higher
of value 1n use and fair value less costs to sell Value in use 15 calculated
from cash flow projections for five years using data from the Group’s
latest internal forecasts These calculations require the use of estimates
as set outm Note 11

m} Impamrment of loans and advances to customers and banks
The Group’s loan impairment provisions are established to recognise
incurred impairment fosses inits portfolio of loans classified as loans
and recevables and carnied at amortised cost These calculations
require the use of estimates as sel outin the accounting policy note
for Financial instruments

Provisions

Provisions have been rmade for onerous leases, didapidations,
restructurnng, pensions, customer redress and claims These provisions
are estimates and the actual costs and tmeng of future cash flows are
dependent on future events The difference between expectations and
the actual future habnlity will be accounted for in the pened when such
determnation 1s made

The Group has provisions for potential customer redress in 2010411,

the Finangia! Conduct Authonty ('FCA") {(previously the Financa! Services
Authonty) formally 1ssued Policy Statement 10/12 ('PS 10/12"), which
mtroduced new gundance in respect of Payment Protection Insurance
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Notes to the Group financial statements

|Note 1 Accounting policies continued I

{'PPI') customer redress and ewdental provisions to the FCA Handbook
with an implementation date of 1 December 2010 The Group continues
to handle complaints and redress customers in accordance with PS
1012 This will include ongoing analysis of histoncal claims expenence
in accordance with the guidance

The calculation of these provisions invelves estimating a number of
vanables, principally the level of customer complants which may be
recerved and the level of any compensatton which may be payable to
custorners The number of cases on which compensation 1s ultimately
payable may also be influenced by the outcome of the analysis of
historical claims referred (o above A change in the estimate of any

of the key varables in this calculation could have the potential to
sigmificantly impact the prowisions recogrised

Insurance reserves

Until October 2010 all Tesco Bank branded products were underwrnitten
through the RBS Insurance partner From November 2011 zll general
insurance policies sold under thrs arrangement had expired A final
termination settlement agreement executed on 26 September 2012
prowided a final claims reserve determination and resuited in the full
and final agreement of a concluding commussion statermment The
consideration received by the Group fully sausfied any and all llabibiies
of RBS Insurance (subsidianes, affilates and agents) to the Group
Insurance reserves It relation to motor and insurance products sold

by the Group since October 2010 are held predormmantly within Tesco
Underwrniting Limited

Post-employment benefit cbhgations

The present value of the post-employment benefit cbligations depends
on a number of factors that are deterrined on an actuanal basis using
anumber of assumptions The assumptions used in determmning the

net cost (iIncome) for pensions include the discount rate Any changes in
these assumpuions will impact the carrying amount of post-employment
benefit obligations

Key assumptions for post-employment benefit obligations are disclosed
in Note 26

Adoption of amended International Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has adopted the following amended standards as of
26 February 2012

* IFRS 7 {amended) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’
* |1AS 12 {amended) ‘Income Taxes'

The adopuion of the above amendments has not had any significant
impact on the amounts reported in the Group financial statements but
may impact the disclosure for future transactions and arrangements

Revenue

Revenue compnses the fair value of consideration received or recewvable
for the sale of goods and services in the ardinary course of the Group's
activities

Sale of goods

Revenue 15 recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have transferred to the buyer and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably

Revenue 1s recorded net of returns, discountsfoffers and value added taxes

Provision of services

Revenue frarm the provision of services 1s recogrised when the service
15 provided and the revenue can be measured reliably, based on the
terms of the contract

Where the Group acts as an agent seling goeds or services, only
the commussion iIncome 15 incleded within revenue

Financial services
Revenue consists of interest, fees and income from the prowvision
of msurance

Interest ncome on financial assets that are classified as loans and
recevables 15 determined using the effective interest rate method

Calculation of the effective interest rate takes into account fees
recervable that are an integral part of the instrument’s yield, prermiums
or discounts on acquisition orssue, eady redemption fees and
transaction costs

Feesin respect of services (credit card interchange fees, late payment
and ATM revenue) are recognised as the nght to consideration accrues
through the prowision of the service to the customer The arrangements
are generally contractual and the cost of prowiding the service 1s incurred
as the service 15 rendered

The Group generates commussion from the sale and service of Motor
and Home insurance policies underwritten by Tesco Underwnting
Lirmited, orin a minonty of cases by a third party underwriter This is
based on commussion rates which are Independent of the profitability
of underlyting insurance pohicies Similar commuission income 15 also
generated from the sale of white label insurance products underwntten
by other third party prowiders

The Group continues to recewve INsurance commission ansing from
the sale of insurance policies sold under the Tesco brand through the
legacy arrangement with RBS This commussion income 15 vanable and
dependent upon the profitability of the underlying insurance policies

Clubcard, loyalty and other initiatives

The cost of Clubcard and loyalty initiatives 1s part of the far value of the
consideration received and 15 deferred and subsequently recogrised over
the period that the awards are redeemed The deferral is treated as

a deduction from revenue

The far value of the points awarded is determined with reference to the
fair value to the customer and considers factors such as redemption via
Clubcard deals versus money-off-in-store and redemption rate

Tesco for Schools & Clubs vouchers are 1ssued by Tesco for redemption
by parucipating schools/clubs and are part of our overall Community
Plan The cost of the redemption (1 e meeung the obhgaton attached
te the vouchers) 1s treated as a cost rather than a deductton from sales

Rental income
Rental ncome 1s recogmsed in the period in which i 15 earned,
m accordance with the terms of the lease

Finance income

Finance income, excluding inceme ansing from financial services,
15 recognised i the period to which it relates using the effective
interest rate method

Finance costs

Finance costs directly attnbutable to the acquisiion of construction

of qualfying assets are capitahsed Qualifying assets are those that
necessarily take a substantrat penod of time to prepare for their intended
use All other borrowing costs are recognised i the Group Income
Statement m finance costs, excluding those ansing from financial
services, in the perrod in which they occur For Tesco Bank, finance

cost on finanaal habdities i1s determined using the effective interest

rate method and 1s recognised in cost of sales



Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Business combinations and goodwill
The Group accounts for all business combinations by applying the
purchase method All acguisition-related costs are expensed

On acquisition, the assets {Including intangible assets), habihties and
contingent habilives of an acquired entity are measured at their fawr
value Non-controlling interest is stated at the non-controlling interest’s
proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised

Goodwill ansing on consolidauon represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the net fair value of the Group’s share

of the net assets, habiliies and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary, joint venture or associate and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree If the consideration 15 less than

the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets, labtites and
contingent habilittes of the acquired enuity {1 e a discount on acqussition),
the difference 1s credited to the Group Income Statement in the penod
of acquisition

At the acquisition date of a substdiary, goodwill acquired 1s recognised
as an asset and 1s allocated to each of the cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the business combination's synergies and to
the lowest level at which management monitors the goodwill Goodwaill
ansing on the acquisttion of joint ventures and assocates 15 ncluded
within the carrying value of the investment

On disposal of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate, the attnbutable
amount of goedwill 1s included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software, pharmacy
licences, customer relationships, contracts and brands are measured
instially at cost Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recogmised at fair value at the acquisiion date Intangible assets with
finite useful lves are carned at cost and are amorused on a straight-ine
basis aver therr estimated useful lives, at 2%-~-100% of cost per annum

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and development
expenditure

Research costs are expensed as mcurred Development expenditure
incurred on an indwidual project is capitalised only If specific cntena
are met including that the asset created will probably generate future
economic benefits

Followmng the imitiaf recognition of deveiopment expenditure, the cost
1s amortised over the asset’s estimated useful Iife a1 10%-25% of cost
perannum

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recogmsed rmparrment in value

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated on a straight-lme basis to
its residual value over ts anticipated useful economic ife The following
depreciation rates are apphed for the Group

freehold and leasehold buildings with greater than 40 years unexpired
—at2 5% of cost,

leasehold propertres with less than 40 years unexpired are depreciated
by equal annual instalments over the unexpired pentod of the lease,
and

+ plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings and moter vehicles - at rates
varying from 9% to 50%

Assets held under finance leases are deprecrated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, when shorter, over
the term of the relevant lease
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Impalrment of non-financial assets

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually by assessing the
recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates The recoverable amount 15 the hegher of farr value less costs

to sell, and value in use When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount, an imparment loss

15 recognised Any impamment 1S recogrused immediately i the Group
Income Statement and 15 not subsequently reversed

For all other non-finanaal assets {incuding mtangible assets and
property, plant and eqguipment) the Group performs impairment testing
where there are indicators of impairment If such an indicator exists,

the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (f any) Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 15 reduced to its
recoverable amount Animpairmentioss i1s recognised immediately

in the Group Income Statement

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unithis increased to the revised estimate
of the recoverable amount, but so that the ncreased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
if no iparment Joss had been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating umt) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s
recognised immediately as a credit to the Group Income Staternent

Investment property

Investment property assets are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised imparrment in value The depreciation
policies for mvestment property are consistent with those described for
owner-occupied property

Short-term and other investments
Short-term and other investments in the Group Balance Sheet compnise
receivables, laan recevables and avalable-for-sale financial assets

Recewables and Ioan receivables are recognised at amortised cost
Available-for-sale financal assets are recogrised at fair value

Refer to the financial instruments accounting policy for further detail

Inventories

Inventones comprise goods and properties held for resale and properties
held for, or in the course of, development with a view to sell Inventories
are valued at the lower of cost and farr value less costs to sell using the
weighted average cost basis

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Group Balance Sheet consist of cash
at bank, in hand, demand deposits with banks, leans and advances to
banks, ceruificate of deposits and other receivables together with short-
term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sate
if their carrying amount wifl be recovered through sale rather than
continuing use Non-current assets {and disposal groups) classified

as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases
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Notes to the Group financial statements

I Note 1 Accounting policies continued

The Group as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
recevables at the amount of the Group’s net nvestment in the leases
Finance lease incorne 15 allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant pertodsc rate of return on the Group's net investment in the
lease Rental mcome from operating leases i1s recognised on a straight-
hine basis aver the term of the lease

The Group as a lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value or, If lower, at the present value of the mmimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The
corresponding hability 1s included in the Group Balance Sheet as a
finance lease obligation Lease payments are apportoned between
finance charges and a reduction of the tease obligations so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability
Fmance charges are charged to the Group Income Staterment Rentals
payable under aperating leases are charged to the Group Income
Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Sale and ieaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction is one where the Group sells an asset
and immedsiately reacquires the use of the asset by entering into a lease
with the buyer

The accounting treatment of the sale and leaseback depends upon
the substance of the transacuion (by applying the lease classification
principles described above) and whether or not the sale was made at
the asset’s far value

For sale and finance leasebacks, any profit from the sale 15 deferred

and amortised over the lease terrm For sale and operating leasebacks,
generally the assets are sold at fair value, and accordingly the profit or loss
from the sale 1s recogrused immediately in the Group Income Staternent

Past-employment and similar obligations

For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted present
value {using the projected unit credit method) whilst plan assets are
recorded at fair value The operating and financing costs of such plans
are recognised separately in the Group Income Statement, service costs
are spread systematicatly over the expected service lives of employees
and finanaing costs are recogmised in the periods i which they arise
Actuariai gains and losses are recogrused immed:ately in the Group
Statemnent of Comprehensive Income

Payments to defined contrnbution schemes are recognised as an
expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

The farr value of employee share option plans s calculated at the grant
date using the Black-Scholes model The resulting cost s charged to
the Group Income Statement over the vesting peniod The value of the
charge 1s adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of vesting

Taxation
The tax expense included in the Group Incorme Statement consists
of current and deferred tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for

the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date Tax expense is recegnised in the Group Income
Statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income or directly m the Group
Statement of Changes i Equity, m which case it s recognised i the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income or directly in the Group
Statement of Changes in Equity, respectively

Deferred tax is prowided using the balance sheet lability method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabihttes for financial reparting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purpcses

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax is charged
or credited i the Group Income Statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive
ncome, n which case the deferred tax s also recognised 1n equity, or
other comprehensive iIncome, respectively

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it 1s probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets 1s rewewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the assets
to be recovered

Defarred tax assets and habdities are offset against each other when
there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set-off current taxation assets
against current taxation habilities and it ts the intention to settle these
onanet basis

Foreign currencies

Transactions n foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on
the date of the transaction At each balance sheet date, monetary assets
and labthties that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
atthe rates prevating on the balance sheet date All differences are
taken te the Group Income Statement

The assets and habilities of overseas subsidiaries denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Pound Sterling at exchange rates
prevating at the date of the Group Balance Sheet, profits and fosses are
translated at average exchange rates for the relevant accounting perieds
Exchange differences ansing are recognised in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income and are included in the Group’s translation
reserve Such translation differences are recognised as income or
expenses in the pertod in which the operation is disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and labilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate

Financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial iabiiues are recognised on the Group
Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provistons of the istrument

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non interest-bearmg and are recogrused inivally
at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less provision forimpairment

Investments

Investments are recogrised at trade date Investments are classified as
either held for trading or available-for-sale, and are recognised at farr
value For available-for-sale investments, gains and losses ansing from
changes n far value are recogrused diectly in the other comprehensive
income, untll the secunity 1s disposed of or is determined to be imparred,
at which time the cumulative gan or loss previously recegrised in other
comprehensive income 1s mcluded in the Group Income Statement for
the peniod Interest calculated using the effective interest rate metheod
15 recogrused in the Group Income Statement Dividends on an available-
for-sale equity instrument are recognised in the Group Income
Statement when the entity’s right 1o receive payment is established

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are not classified as held for trading
nor designated as fair value thraugh profit and loss Loans and advances
are imisally recognised at fair value plus directly related transaction costs
Subsequent to imtial recogmition, these assets are carped at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses
fncome from these finanaial assets 1s calculated on an effective yield
basis and i1s recognised in the Group Income Statement



[lvlote 1 Accounting policies continued —I

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying ameounts of
115 loans and advances to determine whether there 15 any indication that
those assets have suffered an rmpairment loss

If there 1s objective evidence that an imparment loss on a financial

asset or group of financial assets classified as loans and advances has
been incurred, the Group measures the amount of the loss as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset or group of assets
and the preseni value of estimated future cash flows from the asset or
group of assets discounted at the effective mterest rate of the instrument
atutial recognition Impairment losses are assessed imdidually for
finanoial assets that are individually significant and collectively for assets
that are not indnadually signtficant in making collective assessments

of impairment, financial assets are grouped into porifolios on the basis
of similar nsk charactensucs Future cash flows from these portfolios

are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows and historical
loss expenence for assets with similar credit nisk charactenstics Historical
loss expenence 15 adjusted, on the basis of current observable data, to
reflect the effects of current conditions not affecting the period of
historical expenence

Impairment losses are recagnised i the Group Income Statement and
the carrying amount of the financial asset or group of finanaal assets

15 reduced by establishing an allowance for impairment losses Hin a
subsequent peried the amount of the impairment loss reduces and

the reduction can be ascribed to an event after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised loss 1s reversed by adjusting the
allowance Once animpairment loss has been recognised on a firancial
asset o1 group of financial assets, interest ncome 15 recogmsed on the
carrying ameunt using the rate of nterest at which estimated future
cash flows were discounted in measuring impairment

Loan impairment provisions are established on a porifoho basis taking
inte account the level of arrears, security, past toss expenence, credit
scores and defaults based on portfolio trends The most significant
factors i estabhshing these provisions are the expected loss rates
The portfolios mclude credit card recevables and other personal
advances The future credit quality of these portfolios 1s subject to
uncertamties that could cause actual credit losses to differ matenafly
from reported fean impairment provisions These uncertainties include
the economic environment, notably interest rates and therr effect on
custormer spending, the unemployment level, payment behaviour and
bankruptcy trends

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafis are imtrally recorded at
farr value, net of attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent to insial
recognition, interest-beanng borrowings are stated at amoertised cost
with any difference between proceeds and redemption value being
recogmsed m the Group Income Statement over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis

Trade payables

Trade payables are non interest-bearing and are recognised inttially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

Equity mstruments
Equity mstruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
recewved, net of direct ssue costs

Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge its exposure
to foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity nsks ansing from
operating, financing and investing acivities The Group does not hold
orissue dervative financial instruments for trading purposes, however,
if derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting they are accounted
for as such
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Denvative financial instruments are recognised and stated at fair value
Where dervatives do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or
losses on remeasurement are immediately recognised in the Group
Income Statement Where dervatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recogrition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship and the stem being hedged In order to qualfy for
hedge accounting, the Group s required to document from inception
the relationship between the itemn being hedged and the hedging
nstrument The Group is also required to document and demonstrate
an assessment of the relationship between the hedged rtem and the
hedging mstrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective
on an cngoing basis This effectiveness testing 1s performed at each
periad end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Denvative financial instruments with maturity dates of more than one
year from the balance sheet date are disclosed as nen-current

Fair value hedging

Dervative financial instruments are dassified as fair value hedges
when they hedge the Group's exposure to changes n the fair value
of a recogrised asset or lability Changes in the fair value of denvatrves
that are designated and qualify as far value hedges are recorded in the
Group Income Staternent together with any changes in the farr value
of the hedged item that 15 atinbutable to the hedged nsk

Cash flow hedging

Dervative financial instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when
they hedge the Group's exposure to vanability in cash flows that are
either attnbutable to a particular nsk associated with a recogmsed asset
or hability, or a highly probable forecasted transaction The effective
elernent of any gain or loss from remeasunmng the denvative instrument
15 recogrised directly in the other comprehensive income

The associated cumulative gain or loss 1s reclassified from the other
comprehensive income and recognised in the Group Income Statement
n the same peniod or penods during which the hedged transaction
affects the Group Income Statement The classification of the effective
portron when recognised tn the Group Income Statement 1s the same
as the classification of the hedged transaction Any element of the
remeasurement of the dervative instrument which does not meet the
critena for an effective hedge 1s recognised immediately in the Group
Income Statement within finarice income or costs

Hedge accounting s discontmued when the hedging instrument expires
or 15 sold, terminated or exerased, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that peint in time, any cumutlative gain or loss on the
hedging 1nstrument recognised in equity 1s retained in the Group
Staterment of Changes in Equity until the forecasted transaction occurs
or the original hedged item affects the Group Income Statement If a
forecasted hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognssed in the Group Statement of Changes
in Equity 1s reclassified to the Group Income Statement

Net investment hedging

Derivative finanaal instruments are classified as net investment
hedges when they hedge the Group’s net investmentn an overseas
operaticn The effective element of any foreign exchange gam or loss
from remeasuring the dervative instrument is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income Any iseffective element 1s recogrused
immediately in the Group Income Statement Gams and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive iIncome are included i the
Group Income Statement when the foreign operatton 1s disposed of

Treatment of agreements to acquue non-controlling interests
The Group has entered mto a number of agreements to purchase
the remaining shares of subsidiaries with non-controling interests

The net present value of the expected future payments are shown as a
financial habilty At the end of each pertod, the vatuation of the ability s
reassessed with any changes recognised in the Group Income Statement
withun finance income or costs
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Notes to the Group financial statements

]Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settie the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation The mcrease in the provision due to passage
of time 1s recognised as interest expense

Provisions for onerous leases are recogmsed when the Group believes

that the unavoidable costs of meeting the fease obligations exceed the
economic benefits expected to be receved under the lease Prowisions
for dilapidation costs are recognised on a lease by lease basis

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for
sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction and a sale i1s considered highly probable They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fawr value less costs to sell

Standards 1ssued but not yet effective

As of the date of authorisation of these financial staternents,
the following standards were i 1ssue but not yet effective
The Group has not apphed these standards in the preparation
of the financial statements

IAS 1 {Amended) 'Financial statement presentation’ regarding
other comprehensive income ‘Presentation of financial statements’
15 effectwe from penods commencing on or after 1 July 2012 The
man change from thes amendment ss to require entibes to group
items presented in ‘other comprehensive mcome’ {OCE) on the
basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to the Group
Income Statement subsequently {reclassification adjustrnents) The
amendments do not address which items are presented in OC|

IAS 19 {Amended) ‘Employee benefits’ 1s effective from penods
commencing on or after 1 January 2013 It eliminates the corndor
approach and requires immediate recognition of all actuanal gans
and losses i other comprehensive income, immediate recognition
of ali past service costs and the replacement of interest cost and
expected return on plan assets with a net mterest amount thatis
calculated by appiying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
habihity/asset If this standard had been applied to the year ended
23 February 2013, 1t 1s estimated that interest income would have
been reduced by approximately £125m

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments' 1s effective from periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2015 It s the firsi standard 1ssued as part of

a wider project to replace IAS 39 it retams but simpiifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes two primary measurement
categonies for financial assets 1) amorused cost, and 1) farr value
The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model
and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial asset

* IFRS 10 ‘Consahdated financial statements’ 1s effective from periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2014 It builds on existing
princples by identifying the concept of control as the determining
factor n whether an entity shoutd be inctuded within the consolidated
finanoial statements of the parent company It also provides additional
guidance to assist In the determination of control where this 1s difficult
to assess

¢ [FRS 11 Joint arrangements’ s effective from penods commenang
onor after 1 January 2014 1t1s a more reafistic reflection of joint
arrangermnents by focusing on the nghts and obligations of the
arrangement rather than its legal form There are now only two
types of joint arrangement jomt operations, and joint ventures

+ |FRS 12 *Disclosures of nterests in other entities’ 1s effective from
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014 It includes the
disclosure requirernents for all forms of interests in other entities,
mcluding joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles

IFRS 13 ‘Farr value measurement’ is effective from periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2013 It aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing precise definition
of fair value and single source of farr value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs

1AS 27 (Amended) ‘Separate financal statements’ 1s effective from
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014 It includes the
provisions on separate financal statements that are left after the
control provisions of IAS 27 have been included in the new IFRS 10

tAS 28 (Amended) ‘Associates and joint ventures' 1s effective from
penods commenang on or after 1 January 2014 It includes the
requirermnents for jomnt ventures, as well as associates, to be equity
accounted following the issue of IFRS 11 This requirement will not
affect the Group because equity accounting s currently adopted
under the existing requirements of IAS 31

IFRS 7 (Amended) ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’ and IAS 32
{Amended) ‘Financial instruments Presentation' are effective from
1 January 2013 and 2014 respectively The |AS 32 amendment
clarifies some of the requirements feor offsetting financial assets
and financial habihties on the Group Balance Sheet while

the IFRS 7 amendment will require more extensive disclosures
than are required under IFRS

Annual Improverments 201t 15 effective from periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2013 It addresses six 1ssues in the 2009-2011
reporting cycle it indudes changes to I1AS 1 (‘Financial staternent
presentatron’), IAS 16 {'Property, plant and equipment’), 1AS 32
(‘Financial Instruments presentation’} and IAS 34 (‘Intenm
financial reporting’)

Theimpact on the Group’s financial statements of the future adeption
of these standards is stilt under review

Use of non-GAAP profit measure —underlying profit before tax
The Directors believe that underlying profit before tax and undertying
diluted earnings per share measures provide additional useful
informatron for shareholders on underlying trends and performance
These measures are used for performance analysis Underlying profit
1s not defined by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable
with other companies’ adjusted profit measures |t1s not intended

to be a substitute for, or supenor to IFRS measurements of profit

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax are

* |AS 32 and IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments’ — fair value
remeasurements Under [AS 32 and IAS 39, the Group applies hedge
accounting to 1ts various hedge relationships when allowed under
IAS 39 and when practical to do so Sometimes the Group 1s unable
to apply hedge accounting to the arrangements but continues to
enter nto these arrangements as they provide certainty or active
management of the exchange rates and interest rates applicable 1o
the Group The Group believes these arrangements remain effective
and economically and commeraally viable hedges despite the mability
to apply hedge accounting Where hedge accounting 15 not applied
to certain hedging arrangements, the reported results reflect the
movement in fair value of related denvatives due to changes i foreign
exchange and mterest rates In addiugn, at each year end, any gain
or loss accruing on open contracts is recognised m the Group Income
Statement for the financial year, regardless of the expected outcome
of the hedging contract on termunation This may mean that the
Group Income Statement charge 15 highly volaule, whilst the resulting
cash fiows may not be as volatile The underlying profit measure
removes this volatility to help better dentify underlying performance
of the Group




Note 1 Accounting policies continued

IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' — non-cash Group Income Statement
charge for pensions Under IAS 19, the cost of providing pension
benefits in the future 1s discounted 1o a present value at the corporate
bond yield rates applicable on the fast day of the previous financal
year Carporate bond yield rates vary over ime which in turn creates
volatlity in the Group Income Statement and Group Balance Sheet
IAS 19 also increases the charge for young pension schemes, such

as the Group's, by requiring the use of rates which do not take into
account the future expected returns on the assets held in the pension
scheme which will fund pension liabihities as they fall due The sum

of these two effects can make the 1AS 19 charge disproporticnately
higher and more volatile than the cash contnbutions the Group is
required to make in order to fund all future habibties Therefore,
within underlying profit the Group has included the ‘normal’ cash
contributions for pensions but excluded the volatile element of IAS 19
to represent what the Group believes to be a farer measure of the
cost of providing post-employment benefits

IAS 17 ‘Leases’ — impact of annual uplfts 1n rent and rent-free

periods The amount charged to the Group Income Statement In
respect of operating lease costs and mcentives is expected to Increase
significantly as the Group expands its mternational business The
leases have been structured n a way to ncrease annual lease costs

as the businesses expand 1AS 17 requires the total expected cost of

a lease to be recognised on a straight-lme basis over the term of the
lease, wrespective of the actual tming of the cost This adjustment
also impacts the Group's operating profit and rental income within
the share of past-tax profits of joint ventures and associates

[FRS 3 {Rewised) ‘Business Combinations’ — intangible asset
amortrsation charges and costs ansing from acquisitwons Under
IFRS 3 intangible assets are separately identified and far valued
The intangsble assets are required to be amortised on a straight-line
basis over their useful ives and as such is a non-cash charge that
does not reflect the underlying performance of the business acquired
Similarty, the standard requires all acquisition costs to be expensed

in the Group Income Statement Due to ther nature, these costs
have been excluded from underlying profit as they da not refiect
the underlying performance of the Group

IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ - fair value of awards

The interpretation requires the fair value of cusiomer loyalty awards
to be measured as a separate component of a sales transaction
The underlying profit measure removes this farr value allocation

to present undenlying business performance, and to reflect the
performance of the operating segments as measured by
management

Restructuning and other one-off costs These relate to certain costs
associated with the Group’s restructuning activities and certain
one-off costs incieding costs relating to fair valuing the assets of

a disposal group These have been excluded from underlying profit
as they do not reflect the underlying performance of the Group
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Notes to the Group financial statements

| Note 2 Segmental reporting

The Group’s reporting segments are deterruned based on the Group’s internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker {{CODM")

The CODM has been determimed 10 be the Executive Commuttee as it 1s pnmanly responsible for the allocation of resources to segments and

the assessment of performance of the segments

During the year, the Group completed the exit of Japan operations (previously reported as part of the Asia segment} The Group made its decision
to sell Fresh and Easy in the US on 12 February 2013 (previously reported in the US segment} Accardingly, these operations have been treated
as discantinued as described in more detail iIn notes 1 and 7 The segment results do notinclude any amounts for these discontinued operations

The segment assets and other segment information sets cut contnuing operations separately from discontinued operations

The CODM now considers the principal activittes of the Group to be

+ Retailing and associated activities in
—the UK,
— Asia — China, India, Malaysia, South Korea, Thailand, and

- Europe — Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Republic of Ireland, Slovakia, Turkey

* Retall banking and insurance services through Tesco Bank m the UK

The CODM wuses trading prolit, as reviewed at monthly Executive Committee meetings, as the key measure of the segments’ results as it reflects
the segments’ underlying trading perfermance for the financial year under evaluation Trading profit s a consistent measure within the Group

Segment trading profit 1s an adjusted measure of aperating profit and measures the performance of each segment before profits/losses ansing on
property-related items, the impact on leases of annual uplifts in rent and rent-free periods, intangible asset amortisation charges and costs arising
from acquisitions, and goodwill imparment and restructurmng and other one-off costs The IAS 19 pension charge s replaced with the ‘normal’ cash
contributions for pensions An adjustment i1s glse made for the fair value of customer loyalty awards

Inter-segment revenue between the operating segments s not matenal

The segment results, the reconciiation of the segment measures to the respective statutory items included i the Group Income Statement, the

segment assets and other segment infarmation are as follows

Totalat Total
Year ended 23 February 2013 UK Asia Europe TBE;:: ;‘::3?;; extz:gz e:il?;:\:ﬂ
At constant exchange rates” £m £m £m im £m £m {m
Continuing operations
Sates including VAT (exctuding IFRIC 13} 48,216 12,334 11,609 1,021 73,180 (817) 72,363
Revenue {excluding IFRIC 13} 43,579 11,498 10,005 1,024 66,103 (705) 65,398
Effect of IFRIC 13 (491) (36) (48) - {575) 3 {572)
Revenue 43,088 11,462 9,957 1,021 65,528 (702) 64,826
Trading profit 2,272 665 353 191 3,481 (28) 3,453
Trading margint 5 2% 5 8% 3 5% 18 7% 5 3% - 5 3%
Total
Year ended 23 February 2013 UK As1z Europe TBeas;: eii.?;#‘;il
At actual exchange rates™ £m £m fm £m £m
Continuing operations
Sales nchading VAT (excluding IFRIC 13) 48,216 12,317 10,809 1,024 72,363
Revenue {excluding IFRIC 13) 43,579 11,479 9,319 1,021 65,398
Effect of [FRIC 13 (491) (36) 45} - 572)
Revenue 43,088 11,443 9,274 1,021 64,826
Trading profit 2,272 661 329 191 3,453
Trading margin! 5 2% 5 8% 3 5% 18 7% 533%

** Actual exchange rates are the average actual penodic exchange rates for that financral year
t Trading margin 15 based on revenue excluding the accounting impact of IFRIC 13

Constant exchange rates are the average actual periodic exchange rates for the previcus financil year
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Note 2 Segmental reporting continued

Total
Year ended 25 February 2012 UK Asis Europe Le;;i eﬂ;;;ﬂ
At actual exchange rates™ £m im £m £n £m
Continuing operations
Sales ncluding VAT (excluding IFRIC 13) 47,360 11,627 11,371 1,044 71,402
Revenue {excluding IFRIC 13) 42,803 10,828 9,866 1,044 64,511
Effect of IFRIC 13 {550) {35) (40} — (625)
Revenue 42,253 10,793 9,826 1,044 63,916
Trading profit 2,478 737 529 225 3,969
Trading margint 5 8% 6 8% 5 4% 21 6% 6 1%
Reconciliation of trading profit to profit before tax
2013 2012
im £m
Trading profit 3,453 3,969
Adjustments
Profitsilosses ansing on property-related items
— Included in underlying profit 370 397
- Excluded from underlying profit (709 -
IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - non-cash Group Income Statement charge for pensions 4 (35)
1AS 17 ‘Leases’ — mpact of annuat uphfts in rent and rent-free periods (36) {42)
IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ - mtangible asset amortisation charges and costs arising from acquisitions 1% 22)
fFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ — fair value of awards {28) 17
Other restructunng and one-off costs
Qther property charges {186) -
Impairment of goodwill (495) -
Pravisions for customer redress (115) (57
Other restructuring and one-off items [&1)] (11
QOperating profit 2,188 4,182
Share of post-tax profits from joint ventures and associates 54 N
Finance ncome 177 176
Finance costs (439) (i1
Profit before tax 1,960 4038
Taxation (574) 874
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,386 3,164
Segment assets
Toral
Tesco Otherf  contmiing Discontinued
UK Asia Eusope Bank unallocated operations  operations Total
At 23 February 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m m £m
Total segment non-current assets 14,532 9,298 6,471 4,709 2,023 37,033 - 37033
Total segment non-current assets includes
Investments In Jjoint ventures and associates 104 294 1 95 — 494 - 494
Total
Tesco QOther/  continuing Drscontinued
UK Asia turope Bark unallotated  operabons OpRIBLONS" Towal
At 25 February 2012 £m £m £m £m fm £m £m £m
Total segment non-current assets 14,995 8,471 6,835 4,799 1,749 36,849 1,068 37918
Total segment non-current assets includes
Investments in Jjoint ventures and associates 134 217 - 72 - 423 - 423

* US55 mcluded i discon mued operatians for compartson purposes
** Actual exchange rates are the average actual penodic exchange rates for that financial year
§ Trading margin 1s based on revenue excluding the accounting impack of IFRIC 13
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Notes to the Group financial statements

|£ote 2 Segmental reporting continued

Other segment information

Tesco mntm-[:agl Disconunued
UK. Aswa Europe Baok. oferatons opeatans Toral
Year ended 23 February 2013 fm Em £m £m £m fm £m
Capital expenditure (including acquisitions thraugh business
combinations)
Property, plant and equipment 1,207 925 434 13 2,579 60 2,639
Investment property - 40 3 - 43 - 43
Goodwill and other intangible assets 207 29 39 97 372 - 372
Deprecation
Property, plant and equipment (630) (334) {288) (16) (1,268} (54) (1,322}
Investment property - 21) {15) - {36) - (36)
Amortisation of iIntangible assets (131) (18) (22) (61) (232) — (232)
Goodwill impairment losses - - (495) - (495) - (493)
Imparrment losses (654) (88) (92) ~ (834) (186) {850Q)
Reversal of prior year impairment losses 1 3 2 — 6 - 6
Total
Tesca contmwng  Dncontmued
UK Aska Europe Bank operations operaticns” Total
Year ended 25 February 2012 £m £ fm £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure (including acquisitions through business
combinations)
Property, plant and equipment 1,495 1,140 663 22 3,320 147 3,467
Investment property - 8 102 - 110 - 110
Goodwill and other intangible assets 201 29 68 143 441 - 441
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment (617) (306) (277} (16) {1,216) (49 (1,265)
Investment property - (15} (24) - (39 - 39
Amortisation of intangible assets (13 (12) 22) (44} (194} (3 (194)
Impairment losses 27 {5) (3) - (35) (86) (121
Reversal of prior year impairment losses 27 i 8 — 36 - 36
* US s included in discontnued operations for comparison purposes
Iﬁlote3 Income and expenses
2013 2012
Continuing operations Em Em
Profit before tax s stated after charging/(crediting) the following
Rental ncame, of which £493m {2012 £499m) relates to investrnent properties (620} (604)
Direct operating expenses ansing on rental earming investment properties 165 157
Costs of inventones recognised as an expense 48,671 48,422
Stock losses 1,193 1,118
Depredation, amortisation and impairment charged 2,364 1,445
Impairment of goodwill 495 -
Operating lease expense, of which £127m (2012 £133m) relates to hure of plant and machinery 1,400 1,206
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Note 3 Income and expenses continued

Duning the financial year the Group obtained the followtng services from the Group's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and network firms

2013 2012
£m £m
Audst services
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company and Group financial statements 08 07
The audit of the accounts of the Company’s subsidiaries 38 39
46 46
Non-audit services
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services
Taxation compliance services 01 02
Taxation advisory services 04 04
All other non-audit services 24 19
Total auditor remuneration 75 71

In addition to the amounts shown above, the auditors received fees of £0 1m (2012 £0 1m) for the audit of the main Group pension scheme

A description of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 34 and includes how objectivity and

independence is safequarded when non-audit services are prowided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

LNote 4 Employment costs, including Directors’ remuneration

2013 002
Continuing operations £m £m
Wages and salaries 5,980 5,594
Social secunty costs 480 459
Post-employment defined benefits (Note 26) 482 492
Post-employment defined contributions (Note 26) 19 20
Share-based payments expense (Note 25) 89 151

7,050 6,716

The average number of employees by operating segment during the financial year was

Average number Average number of

of employees full ume equivalents

2013 2002 2013 2012

UK 313,885 300,373 213,304 205,852
Asia 125,797 117,015 115,499 108,149
Europe 94,712 94,409 34,469 85,071
Tesco Bank 3,390 2,818 3,169 2,719
Total 537,784 514,615 416,441 401,791
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Notes to the Group financial statements

U‘lote 5 Finance income and costs

2013 2012
Continuing operations Em m
Finance income
Bank interest receable and simular income on cash and cash equivalents 125 114
Net pension finance income (Note 26) 52 18
IAS 32 and IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments’ — fair value remeasurements - 44
Total finance income 177 176
Finance costs
Interest payable on short-term bank loans and overdrafts repayable within five years (88) {57)
Finance charges payable under finance leases and hire purchase contracts Qo (10
GBP MTN (219) (226)
EUR MTN (157} (180)
USD MTN (88) (67)
Other MTNs (6) {11)
Capitalised Interest (Note 11) 123 140
1AS 32 & IAS 39 ‘Finanaal Instruments’ — fair value remeasurements (14 —
Total finance costs (459) 411
GBP MTNs
Interest payable on the 4% RPI GBP MTN 2016 includes £8m (2012 £13m) of Retad Price Index ('RPI ) related amortisation
Inreres: payable on the 3 322% LPI GBP MTN 2025 includes £9m {2012 £13m) of RPl related amortisation.
Interest payable on the 1 982% RP| GBP MTN 2036 includes £7m {2012 £11m) of RPl related amortisation
Note 6 Taxation J
Recognrsed in the Group Income Statement
2013 2012
Continuing operations £m £m
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax 507 579
Foreign tax 279 195
Adjustments In respect of prror years 99) {42)
687 732
Deferred tax expense
QOngmation and reversal of temporary differences 6) 226
Adjustments i respect of prior years (5) (12)
Change in tax rate (102) 72
(113} 142
Total ncome 1ax expense 574 874

The Finance Act 2012 included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 and to 23% from
1 Apnl 2013 The reduction from 24% to 23% was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and has therefore been reftected in these
Group financial statements

In addition to the changes in the rates of corporation tax disclosed above, it was announced in the December 2012 Budget Statement that the rate
would be reduced from 23% to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and in the March 2013 Budget Statement 1 was announced that the rate would be further
reduced to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 These further rate reductions had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are therefore
not reflected in these Group financal statements

The proposed reductions 10 the main rate of corporation tax of 2% {to 21%) by 1 Apnl 2014 and & further 1% (to 20%) by 1 Apnit 2015 are expected
to be enacted in 2013 The overall effect of these changes, if applied to the deferred tax balance at the balance sheet date, would be 1o reduce the
deferred tax hability by £96m (£162m increase in profit and £66m decrease in other comprehensive income)
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Note 6 Taxation continued

Reconciliation of effective tax charge

2013 2012
£fm fm
Profit before tax 1,960 4,038
Tax charge at 24 2% (2012 26 2%) (474) (1,058)
Effect of
Non-deductible expenses (357) 1
Differences in overseas taxation rates 38 43
Adjustments in respect of prior years 104 54
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates 13 14
Change in tax rate 102 72
Total mcome tax charge for the year (574) (874)
Effectve tax rate 29 3% 21 6%
Tax on items credited directly to the Group Statement of Changes in Equity
2013 2012
£fm £m
Current tax charge on
Share-based payments () 0]
Deferred tax credit/(charge) on
Share-based payments 1 {5)
Total tax on items charged to Group Statement of Changes m Equity {5) (6)
Tax relating to components of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2013 2012
£Em £m
Current tax credit/(charge) on
Pensions 43 -
Foreign exchange movements an 6
Fair value of movement on available-for-sale imvestments [ (2
Deferred tax credit/(charge) on
Pensions 85 94
Fair value movements on cash flow hedges {3) (25)
Total tax on items credited to Group Statement of Comprehensive Income 104 73

Deferred tax

The foliowing are the major deferred tax (habilities)/fassets recogrised by the Group and movements thereon dunng the current and prior financial years

Property Retmement Short term prgplti:
rela.ed benefit  Share based urming Financial taxtemparary
Iterns* obligation payments differerices. Taxlosses  Instruments differences Total
fm fm fm fm fm fm £m £m
At 26 February 2011 {1,592) 362 47 94 32 4 7 (1,046)
{Charge)/eredit to the Group income Staternent (93) 9 G0 (33) 3 () - (146)
Charge to Group Statement of Changes in Equity - - (5) - - - - (5)
Crediif{charge) to Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income - 94 - - - {25) - £9
Discontinued operations - - - - (14) - - {14)
Business combsnations (1) - - 3 1 — 1 4
Foreign exchange and other movements (3) - - - 2 - 2 1
At 25 February 2012 (1,689 465 1" 64 24 (22) 10 (1,137)
Credit/{charge) to the Group Income Statement 87 {12) 9 14 13 1 1 113
Credit to Group Statement of Changes in Equity - - 1 - - - - 1
Creditf{charge) to Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income - 85 - - - (3) - 82
Discontinued operations - - - — - - (3) (3)
Business combinations - - - 1 1 — (2) -
Foreign exchange and other movements * (20} 1 - 4 2 - 1 (2
At 23 February 2013 (1,622) 539 21 83 40 (24) 7 {956)

* Property related items include deferred rax liability on rolled over gamns of £340m (2012 £361m) and deferred tax assets on capital losses of £71m (2012 £7im) The rematming

batance celates 1o acceterated tax deprecation

** The deferred tax charge for foreign exchange and other movements of £12m (2012 £1m credit) relating to the retranstation of deferred tax batances at the balance sheet date
15 nchided within the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income under the heading curtency transtation differences.
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Notes to the Group financial statements

LNote 6 Taxation continued

Certain deferred tax assets and Labilities have been offset and analysed as follows

2013 2002
£m £m
Deferred tax assets 58 23
Deferred tax habihties {1,006) (1,160}
Deferred tax habilities relating to disposal group (8) -

(956) {1137)

No deferred tax hability is recognised on temporary differences of £3 6bn (2012 £3 4bn) relating to the unremetted earnings of overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures as the Group is able to control the urning of the reversal of these temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future The deferred tax on unremitted earmings at 23 February 2013 1s estimaled to be £159m (2012 £161m) which relates to
taxes payable on repatnation and dividend withhelding taxes levied by overseas tax junsdictions UK tax legislation relating to company distributions
prowides for exemption from tax for most repatnated profits, subject to certain exceptions

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets in relation to continuing eperations have not been recognised in respect of the following items (because u 1s not probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the Group can utihse the benefits)

2013 2012

£m £m

Deductible temporary differences ik 29
Tax losses 170 141
181 170

As at 23 February 2013, the Group has unused trading tax iosses from continuing operations of £858m {2012 £666m) avaiable for offset

against future profits A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £169m (2012 £110m) of such losses Mo deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaming £689m {2012 £556m) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams Included in unrecognised tax
fosses are losses of £544m that will expire in 2017 (2012 £479m in 2016) and £37en that will expire between 2018 and 2033 (2012 £21m between
2017 and 2032) Other losses will be carned forward indefinitely

Note 7 Discontinued operations and non-current assets classified as held for sale

2013 2012

£m Em

Assets of disposal groups” 307 65
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 324 445
Total assets of the disposal group and non-current assets classified as held for sale 631 510
Total liabihtres of the disposal group® (282) &9
Total net assets classified as held for sale 349 441

* The year ending 23 February 2013 represents the US while the year ending 25 February 2012 represents Japan

The non-current assets held for sale consist mainly of properties in the UK and China due to be sold within one year
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Note 7 Discontinued operations and non-current assets classified as held for sale continued

Discontinued operations

The deasion to sell the Group's operations in the US was taken in February 2013 An active programme 1o locate 2 buyer has been initiated
and the sale i1s expected to be completed by February 2014

The exit of the Japan operations was successfully completed on 1 January 2013

The tables below show the results of the discontinued operations in relation to the US and Japan which are mcluded in the Group Income
Statement, Group Balance Sheet and Group Cash Flow Statement respectively

us Japan Totat
2013 2012 2013+ 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £Em £m Em fm
Revenue 697 623 329 436 1,026 1,059
Cost of sales (1,567) (759) (360) (539) (1,927) (1,298)
Adrmunistratve expenses (50) {40) (20) (23) (70} (63)
Loss arising on property related tems {286) 21) - {n (286) 22)
Fiance costs (4) 6) - {1) 4) €]
Loss before (ax on discontinued operations (1,210) (203) {51) {128) (1,261) (331)
Taxation (3) (5) = (14) (5) (19
Loss for the year from discontinued operations {1,215) (208) {51) (142) {1,266) (350)
Loss per share impact from discontinued operations
Basic {1513p) {2 60p) (0 63p) 177p) {15 76p) 437p)
Dituted (15 13p) (2 59p) (0 63p) {176p) {15 76p) (4 35p)
* The resudts of Japan are for the 44 weeks ended t January 2013, when there was an exit from the operations
** Including operaung lease expense of £60m (2012 £68m)
us Japan Total
2013 2012 2013+ 2012 2013 2012
Em £m Em £m £m £m
Non-GAAP measure underlying loss before tax
Loss before tax on discontinued operations (1,210} (203 (51) (128) {1,261) (331)
Adjustments for
Restructunng and other one-off costs
Impairment of PPE and onerous lease provisions 812 9 - 57 812 66
Impairment of goodwill 80 - - - 80 -
QOther restructuring and one-off costs 113 10 (5) 13 108 53
1,005 19 (5) 100 1,000 19
IAS 17 'Leases’ - impact of annual uphfts in rent and rent-free periods 5 7 - - 5 7
Loss on disposal of Japan - - 35 - 35 -
Underlying loss before tax on discontinued operations (200) (177 {21) (28) (221) {205)

* Theresults of Japan are for the 44 weeks ended 1 January 2013 when there was an exit from the operations
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Notes to the Group financial statements

I Note 7 Discontinued operations and non-current assets classified as held for sale continued

Balance sheet
As the Group's operations in Japan were disposed of during the year, assets and habihies of the disposal group at 23 February 2013 comprise only
those of the US

Total US
2013
£m
Assets of the disposal group
Property, plant and equipment 241
Inventories 32
Trade and other receivables 15
Cash and cash equivalents 19
Total assets of the disposal group 307
Liabilities of the disposal group
Trade and other payables (192)
Borrowings €]
Other current labilities (83)
Total habtlities of the disposal group (282)
Total net assets of the disposal group 25

Future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operatmg leases associated with operations in the US amount to £684m

At 25 February 2012, the Group's US operations had not yet been classified as held for sale Assets and hiabilitres of the disposal group at this date
comprise only those of Japan

Toral Japan
2012
£m
Assets of the disposal group
Inventories 16
Trade and ather recevables 43
Cash and cash equivalents 6
Total assets of the disposal group 65
Liabilities of the disposat group
Trade and other payables (68)
Borrowings U]
Total habihties of the disposal group ()]
Total net habilities of the disposal group 4

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases associated with operations in Japan at 25 February 2012 amounted to £113m

Cash flow statement

us Japan Total

2013 2002 2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m fm fm £m

Net cash flows from operating actvities (145) (116} 2 (53) (143) (169)
Net cash flows from investing activities 123 95 {48) 6 75 101
Net cash flows from financing actvities 29 17 Ll 46 70 63

Net cash flows from discontinued operations 7 {4 (5) (1) 2 (5)
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Note 8 Dividends

2013 2012
pencelshare £m pencekhare fm

Amounis recognised as distnbutions to owners in the financtal year
Prior financial year final dwvidend 1013 813 10 09 811
Current financial year mtenm dividend 463 371 463 369
Didends paid to equity owners in the financial year 1476 1,184 1472 1180
Current financial year proposed final dividend 1013 815 1013 815

The proposed final dvidend was approved by the Board of Directors an 16 April 2013 and is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting The proposed dwvidend has not been included as a babiity as at 23 February 2013, in accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events After the
Balance Sheet Date' It will be paid on 5 July 2013 to shareholders who are on the Register of members at close of business on 26 Apnl 2013

lllote 9 Earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

Basic earrnngs per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attnbutable to owners of the parent by the werghted average number of

ordinary shares in issue dunng the financial year

Diluted earnings per share amounts are cafculated by dividing the profit attibutable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of
ordimary shares in 1ssue dunng the financial year adjusted for the effects of potentially dilutive options The dilutive effect is calcutated on the full
exerase of all potentially diutive erdinary share options granted by the Group, including performance-based options which the Group considers

to have been earmed

2013 2012
Potentiatly Potentially
dilutive dilyave
Basic share options Diluted Basic  share options Ditured
Profit/({loss) (£m)
Continuimg operations 1,390 - 1,390 3,156 - 3,156
Discontinued operations {1,266) - (1,266) {350) - (350)
Weighted average number of shares (nillions) 3,033 4 8,037 8,021 24 8,045
Earnings per share {pence)
Continuing operations 1730 - 17 30 39 35 ©12) 3923
Discontinued operations {15 76) - (15 76) (437) 002 (4 35)
Total 154 - 154 3498 (C10) 34 BB

There have been no transactions invelving ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of approval of these financial statements which

would significantly change the earnings per share calculations shown above

ReconcHiation of non-GAAP underlying diluted earnings per share

2013 2012
£m  pencelshare I{m  pencefshate
Profit from continuing operations (Diluted) 1,390 1730 3156 3923
Adjustments for
TAS 32 and IAS 39 ‘Financiat Instruments’ — fair value remeasurements 14 Q17 (44) {0 55)
IAS 19 '‘Employee Benefits’ — non-cash Group Income Statement charge for pensions {56) ©70) 17 021
IAS 17 ‘Leases’ - impact of annual uphfis in rent and rent-free penods 28 033 3 039
IFRS 3 ‘Bustness Combinations’ - intangible asset amortisation charges and
co5ts ansing from acquisitions 19 024 22 0 27
IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty Programmes’ — fair value of awards 28 035 17 021
Restructuring and other one-off costs
Impairment of PPE and onerous lease provisions 895 1114 - -
Impaurment of goodwill 495 616 - -
Provision for customer redress 115 143 57 071
Other restructunng and one-off items 51 063 11 014
Tax effect of adjustments at the effective rate of tax’ (2013 18 6%, 2012 21 6%) (88) (110) (24) 030
Underlying earnings from continuing operations 2,891 3597 3,243 40 31

* The effecuve tzx rate of 18 6% {2012 21 6%) excludes certain permanent differences on which tax relief 15 not avarable
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Notes to the Group financial statements

INote 10 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Intemnatly Pharmacy
generated and Other
developrment software intangible
osts Icences assets Goodwill Total
fm £m £m fm fm
Cost
At 25 February 2012 1,454 726 347 3,548 6,075
Foreign currency translatron 1 16 4 84 105
Additions 161 170 13 28 372
Reclassificatuon 40 97 2 - 139
Disposals [¢)] {5) - - (6)
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale - - - (80) {80)
At 23 February 2013 1,655 1,004 366 3,580 6,605
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 25 February 2012 777 340 241 99 1,457
Foresgn currency translation 2 9 - 32 43
Amortisation for the year 121 91 20 - 232
Impawment losses for the year 16 - - 495 511
At 23 February 2013 916 440 261 626 2,293
Net carrying value
At 23 February 2013 739 564 105 2,954 4,362
At 25 February 2012 677 386 106 3,449 4,618
Internally Pharmacy
generated and Qther
development software mrangible
costs Iwcences assets Geoodwill Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 26 February 2011 1,300 563 342 3,600 5,805
Forexgn currency translation (2) 2 - 34 34
Additions 261 77 3 100 441
Reclassification {104) 120 3 — 19
Disposals - (4} i - (5}
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale ()] (32) - (186) (219)
At 25 February 2012 1,454 726 347 3,548 6,075
Accumulated amortisation and impairrment fosses
At 26 February 2011 672 288 223 284 1,467
Forexgn currency translation (1) - - 1 -
Amortisation for the year 106 69 19 - 194
Impairment losses for the year ] 19 - - 20
Disposals - (43 () - (5)
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale (1) (32) - {186) (219)

At 25 February 2012 777 340 241 99 1,457
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Note 10 Goodwill and other intangible assets continued |

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill anising on business combinations 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed for imparment on an annual basis, or more frequently i there are
indications that goodwill may be impared Goodwill acquired in a business combsnation is allocated to groups of cash-generating units according
to the level at which management monitor that goodwill

Recoverable amounts for cash-generating units are based on the hugher of value in use and fair value Jess costs to sell Value in use is calculated
from cash flow projections for generally five vears using data from the Group's latest internal forecasts, the results of which are reviewed by the
Board The key assurnptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes in margins
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reffect the current market assessment of the time value of money and the nisks
speafic to the cash-generating umits Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future changes
in the market Gwven the current econorme cimate, a sensitivety analysis has been performed in assessing the recoverable amounts of goodwill

The pre-tax discount rates used to calculate vatue it use range from 7% to 12% (2012 6% to 17%) On a post-tax basis, the discount rates range
from 5% to 10% (2012 5% to 13%) These discount rates are denved from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital, as adjusted for
the specific risks refating to each geographical region

The forecasts are extrapolated beyond five years based on estimated long-term average growth rates of 1% to 5% (2012 1% to 5%)

In February 2013 and 2012 imparment reviews were performed by comparing the carrying value of goodwill with the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated

The components of goodwll are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

China 649 622
Czech Repubhc - 73
Malaysia 86 86
Poland - 388
South Korea 514 479
Tesco Bank 802 802
Thailand 173 165
Turkey - 46
UK 701 681
us - 102
Other 29 5
2,954 3,449

An impairment charge of £495m (2012 £nil) arose in the year in Poland (£373m), Czech Republic (£69m) and Turkey (£53m) CGUs (all included in
the European operating segment) following a penod of difficult economic and trading conditions This loss has been recognised in the cost of sales
line 1n the Group Income Statement The pre-tax discount rates used to cafculate the value m use for Poland, Czech Republic and Turkey CGUs were
9% (2012 11%), 7% (2012 9%) and 12% (2012 16%) respectively
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Notes to the Group financial statements

| Note 11 Property, plant and equipment

]

Land and

buddings Other® Total
£m £m fm '

Cost
As 25 February 2012 24,761 10,01 34,772
Foreign currency translaton 428 173 601
Additions® 1,525 1,109 2,634
Acquired through busmess combmations 4 1 5
Reclassification (104) (28) (132)
Classified as held for sale (125) (4) (129)
Disposals (734) {116) (850}
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale {938) (320) {1,258)
At 23 February 2013 24,817 10,826 35,643
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 25 February 2012 2,951 6,111 9,062
Foreign currency translation 64 98 162
Charge for the year 448 B74 1,322
Impairment losses for the year 831 2 833
Reversal of imparment losses for the year (5) 1) ()]
Reclassificanon (6) 1 (5}
Classified as held for sale (25) [¢3] 27
Disposals {182) (98) (280) |
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale (115) {173) (288)
At 23 February 2013 3961 6,812 10,773
Net carrying value®©i®
At 23 February 2013 20,856 4,014 24 870
At 25 February 2012 21,810 3,900 25,710
Construction n progress included above'®
At 23 February 2013 584 96 680
At 25 February 2012 1,246 44 1,290

(@) Ouher assets consist of plant, equrpment, fixtures and fittngs and motor vehicles

(b Includes £12 5m (2032 £140m) in respect of mterest capitahsed, principally relating
to land and building assets The capitalisation rase used 1o determine the amount
of [mance costs capitabised dunng the fmancal yeas was 5 1% (2012 S1%) interest
capitahsed 1s deducted in determining taxable profit in the financial year in which

wis incurred

(c} Net carrymg value includes
(1 Capitahsed mterest at 23 February 2013 of £1,195m (2012 £1,185m)
() Assets held under finance leases which are analysed below

2013 2012
Land and Land and
buildings Other build ngs Other®
£m £m £m £m
Cost 157 559 149 574
Accumulated depreciation
and imparment losses (45) (514) (37 (495)
Net carrying value 112 45 112 79
These assets are pledged as secunty for the finance lease labilitres
{d) The net canrying value of land and buiddings comprises.
2003 2012
£m £m
Freehaold 18,335 19,016
Long leasehold - 50 years or more 623 676
Short leasehold — less than 50 years 1,898 2,118
Net carrying value 20,856 21,810

{e) Construction i pregress does not inctude land
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LNote 11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Land and
buddings Other® Total
£m £m £fm

Cost
At 26 February 2011 23,479 9,091 32,570
Foreign currency translation (14) an 25)
Additions™ 2,286 1,172 3,458
Acquisitions through busiess combinations 3 6 9
Reclassification 63) - (63)
Classified as held for sale {53) {11 (64)
Disposals {843) (198) {1,041}
Transfer to disposal group classified as held for sale {34) (38) (72)
At 25 February 2012 24,761 10,011 34,772
Accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 26 February 2011 2,705 5,467 8172
Foreign currency translation {10) (11) 21
Charge for the year 429 836 1,265
Imparrment losses for the year 74 25 99
Reversal of impairment losses for the year {36) - (36)
Reclassification 5 - 5
Classified as held for sale (5} &) a2)
Disposals 77 (161) {338)
Transfer to disposal aroup ¢lassified as held for sale {34) (38) an
At 25 February 2012 2,951 6,111 9,062

{a) (b) See page 96 for footnotes

impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group has determined that for the purposes of impairment testing, each store 15 a cash-generatng unit Cash-generating units are tested for
impairment If there are ndications of imparment at the balance sheet date

Recoverabte amounts for cash-generating units are mainty based on value in use, which 1s generally calculated from cash flow projections for five
to twenty years using data from the Group's latest internal forecasts, the results of which are reviewed by the Board The key assumptions for the
value m use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes in margins Management estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect the current market assessment of the trme value of money and the nisks specific to the cash-generating umits Changes
in sellimg prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market

The forecasts are extrapolated beyond five years based on estimated long-term growth rates of 1% to 5% (2012 1% to 5%)

The pre-tax discount rates used to calculate value in use range from 7% o 12% (2012 6% to 17%)} depending on the speafic conditions m which
each store operates On a post-tax basis, the discount rates range from 5% to 10% {2012 5% to 13%) These discount rates are derwed from the
Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital, as adjusted for the specific nisks relating to each geographical region

The impairment losses relate to stores, distnbution centres and work-in-progress sites The losses mamnty arose following a review of work-m-progress
sites which focused on ensunng sites achieve an appropniate return on capital and which resulted in some sites no longer being planned for developrnent

The reversal of previous impairment losses arose prnaipally due to improvements i stores’ performances over the last year, which increased the net
present value of future cash flows
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Notes to the Group financial statements

mote 12 Investment property

013 2012
£m fm

Cost
At beginning of the year 2,253 2,092
Foreign currency translation 80 9)
Additions 43 14
Acgquisitions through business combinations - 96
Reclassification 7 44
Classified as held for sale 21) 23
Disposals 45) 7
At end of the year 2,317 2,253

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

At beginning of the year 262 229
Foreign currency translation 10 {2)
Charge for the year 36 39
Impairment losses for the year 1 2
Reclassification 18 (6}
Classified as held for sale {6) -
Disposals (5) -
At end of the year 316 262
Net carrying value at end of the year 2,001 1,991

The estimated fair value of the Group's investment property 1s £4 1bn (2012 £4 3bn) This fair value has been determined by applying an appropriate
rental yreld to the rentals earned by the investment property A valuation has not been performed by an independent valuer

Note 13 Group entities

Principal subsidiaries
The Group consolidates its subsidiary undertakings and its pancipal subsidiaries are

Share of 1ssued

Country of ncorporation

orgmary share cap tal and pringipai country

Business activity and voting nghts. of operation

Tesco Stores Limited Retail 100% England
One Stop Stores Limited” Ratail 100% England
Tesco lreland Limited Retail 100% Republic of Ireland
Tesco-Global Stores Privately Held Co Limited Retaill 100% Hungary
Tesco Polska Sp zo o Retail 100% Poland
Tesco Stores CRas Retail 100% Czech Republie
Tesco Stores SR as Retail 100% Slovakia
Tesco Kipa Kitle Pazarlama Ticaret ve Gida Sanay A§” Retail 95% Turkey
Homeplus Co, Lumited Retail 100% South Korea
Homeplus Tesco Co, Limited Retait 100% South Korea
Ek-Cha) Distnibution System Co Limsted Retail B6%" Thailand
Tesco Stores (Malaysia) Sdn Bhn Retail 70% Malaysia
Tesco Holdings (China) Co Limited Retail 100% People’s Republic of Chuina
Dobbies Garden Centres Limited Retall 100% Scotland
Fresh & Easy Neighborhood Market Inc Retall 100% us
Tesco Personal Finance Group Limited (trading as Tesco Bank} Financial Services 100% Scotland
Tesco Distnbution Limited Distribution 100% England
Tesco Property Holdings Limited Property 100% England
Tesco International Sourcing Linited Purchasing 100% Hong Kong
dunnhumby Limited Data Analysis 100% England
ELH Insurance Limited Self-insurance 100% Guernsey
Vahant Insurance Company Limited Self-insurance 100% Republic of Ireland

* Held by the Parent Company (all ather princpal subsidianes a e held by anintermediate subsidiary)

** The Group has 86% of voting nghts and 39% of 1ssued ordinary share capnal in Ek Char Dsstribution Sysiemn Co Limited

The accounting period ends of the subsidiary undertakings consofidated in these financial statements are on or around 23 February 2013 A list
of the Group's subsidrary undertakings will be annexed 10 the next Annual Return filed at Compames House There are no sigruficant restrictions
on the ability of substdiary undertakings to transfer funds to the parent, other than those imposed by the Companies Act 2006
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u\lote 13 Group entities continued

Interests in joint ventures and associates

The Group uses the equnty method of accounting for its imterest in joint ventures and associates The following table shows the aggregate

movemeni in the Group's nvestment in jomt venatures and associates

M3IIAYIAD

—

MIIATY SSINISNE

—

MIIATY IINVINHOJHAd

—

Jomtventures Associates Total
£m fm £m
At 26 February 2011 224 92 316
Additions 49 - 49
Disposals (8) - (8)
Foreign currency translation 12 - 12
Share of post-tax profits of join ventures and associates 71 20 91
Other movements in reserves — 3 3
Diwvidends receved from joint ventures and associates {40) - (40
At 25 February 2012 308 115 423
Additions 11 87 98
Disposals m {43) (44)
foreign currency translation 10 6 16
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures and associates 35 19 54
Qther movementis in reserves - {2) (2
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates (46} (5) (51
At 23 February 2013 317 177 494
Sigmificant joint ventures
The Group's principal joint ventures are
Share of 1ssued share Country of incorporaaon
capital, loan capitat and and poncipal country
Business ac mity debt seanmties of operation
Shopping Centres Limited” Property Investment 50% England
BLT Properties Limited” Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco British Land Property Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Red Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Aqua Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Coral Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Blue Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Atrato Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Property Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Passaic Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Navona Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Sarum Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% England
The Tesco Dorney Limited Partnership Property Investrment 50% England
Tesco BL Properties Limited Property Investment 50% England
Fushun Splendor Real Estate Development Co Limited Property Investment 50% People’s Republic of China
Anshan Tesco Real Estate Development Co Limited Property Investment 50% People's Republic of China
Tesco Qinhuangdo Property Limited Property Investment 50% People’s Republic of China
Xiamen Hete Property Co Limited Property Investment 50% People’s Republic of China
Tesco Fupan Property Limited Property Investment 50% People’s Republic of China
Tesco (Fupan) Industry Limited Property Investment 50% People's Republic of China

Tesco Shenyang Property Co Limited Property Investment 50% People’s Republic of China
Tesco Nanjing Zhongshan Real Estate Development Co Limited Property investment 50% People’s Republic of China
Arena (Jersey) Management Lirted Property Investment 50% Jersey
The Tesco Property (No 2) Limited Partnership Property Investment 50% Jersey
Aeon Every Co, Ltd Reta:l 50% Japan
Tesco Mobile Limited Telecommunications 50% England

* Held by the Parent Company (all other sigmificant ymnt ventures are held by an intermediote subsidiary)

The accounting period ends of the joint ventures consolidated in these financial staternents range from 31 December 2012 to 28 February 2013
The accounting period end dates differ from those of the Group for commeraial reasons and depend upon the requirements of the jont venture
partner as well as those of the Group There are no significant restrictions on the ability of jomnt ventures to transfer funds to the parent, other than
those imposed by the Companies Act 2006
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Notes to the Group financial statements

! Note 13 Group entities continued

The share of the assets, habiliues, revenue and profit of the joint ventures, which are included in the Group financial statements, are as foliows

2013 02

£m £fm
Non-current assets 3,384 3,173
Current assets 821 868

Current habilities

(2,233) (2,180)

Non-current habilities

{1,837) (1,678)

Goodwill 7 7
Net assets 142 190
Cumulative unrecognised losses 175 118
Interests In joint ventures 317 308
Revenue 551 492
Profit for the year 35 71

Associates
The Group's pnngipal associates are

Share of issued share capiial
loan capr.al and debt

Country of mcorperaticn
and prinopal country

Business attmily secunties of operation
Tesco Underwniting Lirnited” Insurance 49 9% England
Tesco Lotus Retail Growth Freehold and Leasehoid Property Fund Property Investment 25% Thaland

* Held by an intermedsate subsidiary

In August 2012, the Group disposed of its interest in Greenergy Internationat Limited

The share of the assets, liabilitres, revenue and profit of the Group's associates, which are ncluded in the Group financial statements, are as foltows

2013 2072

£m £fm

Assets 568 782
Liabiliues (397) (673)
Goodwill 6 6
Interests i associates 177 115
Revenue 2,370 3,791
Profit for the year 19 20

The accounting penod ends of the associates consolidated in these financial statements range from 31 December 2012 to 28 February 2013 The
accounting penod end dates of the associates are different from those of the Group as they depend upon the requirements of the parent companies

of those entities

There are no significant restnctions on the abibity of associated undertakings to transfer funds to the parent, other than those imposed by the

Companies Act 2006

Note 14 Other investments

2013 2012
£fm £m
Loan receivable - 259
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 818 1,267
818 1,526

Available-for-sale financial assets compnse mnvestments in bonds with vaned maturities of which £57m {2012 £158m) s current

Note 15 inventories

2013 2012
£m fm
Goods held for resale 3,643 3,537
Development properties 101 61

3,744 3,598
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Note 16 Trade and other receivables l
2013 2012
£m fm
Prepayments and accrued income 417 420
Other recevables 1,636 1,848
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates {Note 28) 472 389
2,525 2,657

Included wrthin trade and other recetvables are the following amounts recevable after more than one year

2013 2012
£m £m
Prepayments and accrued income 22 36
Other recevables 472 377
Amounts owed by Jjoint ventures and associates 335 269
829 682

Trade and other recevables are generally non interest-bearing Credit terms vary by country and the nature of the debt, ranging from seven to sixty days

As at 23 February 2013, trade and other receivables of £33m (2012 £30m) were past due and impaired The amount of the provision was £51m

(2012 £50m) The ageing analysts of these recevables is as follows

2013 012
£m £m
Up te three months past due 6 5
Three to six months past due 3 3
Over six months past due 24 22
33 30
As at 23 February 2013, trade and other receivables of £153m (2012 £415m) were past due but notimpaired The ageing analysis of these
receivables 15 as follows
2013 2012
Em £m
Up to three months past due 107 194
Three to six months past due 15 114
Over six months past due 3 107
153 415
No recevables have been renegotiated in the current or prior financial years
Note 17 Loans and advances to customers
Tesco Bank has loans and advances to customers
2013 2012
£m £m
Non-current 2,465 1,901
Current 3,094 2,502
5,559 4,403
The matunty of these loans and advances 15 as follows
2013 2012
At 23 February 2013 £m £m
Repayable on demand or at short notice 3 t
Within three months 3,019 2,557
Greater than three ronths but less than one year 175 46
Greater than one year but less than five vears 1,803 1,396
After five years 731 588
5,731 4,588
Provision for impairment of loans and advances {172) (185
5,559 4,403

At 23 February 2013, £1 2bn of the credit card portfolio had its beneficial interest assigned to a special purpose entity for use as collaterat in

secuntisation transactions (2012 £1 2bn) Included within the unsecured lending balance 1s £1 3bn (2012 £rul) that has been prepositioned with

the Bank of England for the purposes of contingent hquidity wia the discount window facility and consequently s eligible for future participation

in the funding for Lending Scheme
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Iﬂote 17 Loans and advances to customers continued

Provision for impairment of loans and advances

£m
At 26 February 2011 {182)
Charge for the year (119)
Amounts wntten off 120
Recovenies of amounts previously written off (8)
Unwind of discount 4
At 25 February 2012 (185)
Charge for the year (73}
Amounts written off 94
Recoveries of amounts previously wntten off {11)
Unwind of discount 3
At 23 February 2013 (172)
At 23 February 2013, Tesco Bank’s non-accrual loans were £185m {2012 £194m) Dunng the financial year ended 23 February 2013, the gross
income not recogmised but which would have been recognised under the origimal terms of non-accrual loans was £12m (2012 £13m)
Note 18 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 2,309 1,995
Short-term deposits 63 182
Certificates of deposit 130 35
Loans and advances to banks - 93
Cash and cash equivalents 2,512 2,305
Cash of £522m (2012 £1,243m) held on money market funds Is classed as short-term investments
Note 19 Trade and other payables
2013 2012
Em £fm
Trade payables 6,036 5971
Other taxation and sociat secunity 440 462
Other payables 2,750 2,651
Amounts payable to jont veriures and associates (Note 28) 33 404
Accruals and deferred mcome 1,835 1,746
11,094 11,234

Included in other payables are amounts of £262m (2012 £223m) which are non-current
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Note 20 Borrowings I z
Current
Matunty 2013 2012
Par value year £m fm
Bank loans and overdrafts - - 730 399
Loan from joint ventures (Note 28) - - 16 16
5 625% MTN €1,500m 2012 - 1,304
Other MTNs - - 14 B7
Finance {eases {Note 34) - — 6 32
766 1,838
-]
&
Non-current E
Matunty 2013 2012 =
Par value year £m fm :
5% MTN E600m 2014 642 619 g
2% USD Bond $500m 2014 328 317
5125% MTN €600m 2015 566 526
4% RPI MTN® £290m 2016 295 288
5 875% MTN €1,039m 2016 1,071 1,042
2 7% USD Bond $500m 2017 328 318
5 5% USD Bond $850m 2017 674 659
S 2% Tesco Bank Reta! Bond £125m 2018 141 138
3 375% MTN €750m 2018 653 638
5 5% MTN £350m 2019 352 352 ﬁ
1% RPI Tesco Bank Retall Bond"* £60m 2019 60 59 3
5% Tesco Bank Retail Bond £200m 2020 206 — g
6125% MTN £900m 2022 948 892 z
5% MTN E389m 2023 404 401 i
3 322% LPI MTN? £296m 2025 299 290 g
6% MTN £200m 2029 255 251 E
55% MTN £200m 2033 251 249
1982% RPI MTN! £247m 2036 248 242
6 15% USD Bond $1,150m 2037 911 897
4 B75% MTN £173m 2042 174 174
5125% MTN £600m 2047 641 635
5 2% MTN £279m 2057 274 274
Other MTNs - - 146 162
Other loans - - 79 354
Finance leases (Note 34) - - 122 134 9
10,068 9,911 E
Z
* The 4% RPIMTN s redeemable at par, including indexaton for increases i the Retail Price Index ('RPY’) over the hife of he MTN :‘z’
** The 1% RPI Tesco Bank Retad Bond is redeemable at par, including indexatron for increases in the RPI over the kife of the Bond [a}
t The 3 322% Linited Prce Inflation ( LPI'Y MTN )5 redeemable at par, mcluding indexation for increases in the RP1 over the life of the MTN The maxmum indexauor of the p incipal
m any one year 1s 5%, with a meinimum of 0%
4 The 1382% RPIMTN 15 redeemable at par, including indexaticn for mcreases in the RPI over the life of the MTN
Borrowmg facilities
The Group has the following undrawn committed facthties avaidable at 23 February 2013, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met
as ai that date
203 2012
£m Lm
Expiring between one and two years 1,600 - -
Expiring n more than two years 1,225 2,825 E
2,825 2,825 H
B
All facihttes incur commitment fees at market rates and would provide funding at floating rates 4
A
z
m
z
=
wv

e
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l Note 21 Financial instruments

Derwvatives are used 1o hedge exposure to market nisks and those that are held as hedging instruments are formally designated as hedges as
defined in 1AS 39 Dervatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purpases and the Group's hedging polictes are further described below

Net finance cost of £19m (2012 Net finance income of £3m) resutted from hedge ineffectiveness

Faw value hedges

The Group maintains interest rate and cross currency swap contracts as far value hedges of the interest rate and currency risk on fixed rate debt
1ssued by the Group Changes in the fair value of dervatives that are designated and qualfy as farr value hedges are recorded n the Group Income
Statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged nisk The gam or loss on
the hedging instrument and hedged item is recogrused in the Group Income Statement within finance income or costs If the hedge no fonger
meets the critena for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying value of the hedged item 1s amortised to the Group income Statement under
the effectve interest rate method

A gain of £52m on hedging instruments was recognised during the year, offset by a loss of £65m on hedged items {2012 a gamn of £263m
on hedging instruments was offset by a loss of £260m on hedged items)

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the cost of future purchases of goods for resale where those purchases are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the purchasing company Where these contracts qualify for hedge accounting,
mark-to-market gains and losses are deferred in equity These hedging instruments are pnmanly used to hedge purchases in Euros and US Dollars
The cash flows hedged will occur and will affect the Group Income Statement within one year of the balance sheet date

The Group also uses mdex-linked swaps to hedge cash flows on index-linked debt, interest rate swaps to hedge interest cash flows on debt and
€ross currency swaps to hedge intercompany loan cash flows denominated in foreign currencies

Net investment hedges

The Group uses forward foreign currency contracts, currency denominated borrowings and currency swaps to hedge the exposure of a portion
of its non-Sterling denomunated assets aganst changes in value due to changes in foreign exchange rates A net finance cost of £6m (2012 £ni)
was recorded resulting from net investment meffectiveness

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the Group Income Statement on disposal of the overseas operation
Financial instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
The Group's policy 1s not to use derivatives for trading purposes However, some derivatves do not qualfy for hedge accounting or are specifically

not designated as a hedge where gains and losses on the hedging instrument and the hedged item naturally offset in the Group Income Statement

These instruments include cross currency mterest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts Changes inthe farr vatue of any derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the Group Incorme Statement within finance income or costs

The farr value of denvative financial instruments have been disclosed i the Group Balance Sheet as follows

2013 2012

Asset Liability Asset Liabthry

£m £m £m £m

Current 58 {121 41 {128)
Non-current 1,965 (759) 1,726 (688)

2,023 (880) 1,767 (816)
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Note 21 Financial instruments continued

The fair value and noticnal amounts of derivatives analysed by hedge type are as follows
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2013 2012
Asset Liability Asset Liabiity
Farrvalue Notional Far value Notional Fau value Nononal Farvalue Nononal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps and similar mstrurmnents 125 1,601 (59) 1,924 96 1,751 (68) 2,034
Cross currency swaps 890 2,749 (34) 249 818 2,686 (8) 269
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments 5 60 (126) 480 - - {132) 400
Cross cutrency swaps 237 642 (32) 531 233 304 {41) 988
Index-linked swaps 80 833 - - 30 809 - -
Forward foreign currency contracts 43 1,138 19 697 23 733 {21) 1,24
Net nvestment hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts — - - - - (7 969
Cash flow hedges and net tnvestment hedges
Cross currency swaps - - (10) 325 - - (N 318
Dervatives not in a formal hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - - - - 3 25 [4}] 25
Cross currency swaps 2 49 (3) 89 3 146 4 56
Index-hinked swaps 627 3,604 (539) 3,589 539 3,149 (468) 3,149
Forward foreign currency contracts 14 397 (58) 1121 22 923 (62) 1,282
Future purchases of non-contiolling interests - — - - - = 3 -
Total 2,023 11,073 (880) 9,005 1,767 10,526 (816) 10,698
The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and hiabiities are as follows
2013 2012
Carrying Faw Carrying Fanr
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,512 2,512 2,305 2,305
Loans and advances to customers — Tesco Bank 5,559 5,581 4,403 4,440
Short-term investments 522 522 1,243 1,243
Other investments — Tesco Bank 818 818 1,526 1,524
Joint venture and associates loan receivables (Note 28) 459 459 384 384
Other recevables 17 17 10 10
Denwvative financial assets
Interest rate swaps and simifar mstrurments 130 130 99 99
Cross currency swaps 1,129 1129 1,054 1,054
Index-hnked swaps 707 707 569 569
Forward foreign currency contracts 57 57 45 45
Total financial assets 11,910 11,932 11,638 11,673
Liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Amortised cost (535) (535) {1,806y {1,841
Bonds in fair value hedge relationships (225) (221} - -
Long-term borrowings
Amortised cost (4,450) (4,899 4,575) (4,966)
Bonds in fair value hedge relationships {5,496) (5,114) (5,202) (5,140)
Finance leases (Note 34) (128) {128) (166) (166)
Customner deposits — Tesco Bank (6,000} (5,997) (5,387) (5,210
Deposits by banks = Tesco Bank (4] {15) (73 (€]
Derivative and other financial labilities
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments (185) (185) (201 {201)
Cross currency swaps {79 {79) (54) (€L)]
Index-Iinked swaps (539) {539 (468) {468)
Forward foreign currency contracts (77) 7 Q0 {90)
Future purchases of non-controlling mterests - — 3) (3)
Total financial liabilities 17,729  {17,789) (18,030)  (18.417)
Total (5,819)  (5,857) (6,392) (6,744)

/
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INote 21 Finanaal nstruments continued

The fair values of financial nstruments and dervatives have been determined by reference to prices available from the markets on which the

instruments are traded, where they are available Where market prices are not availlable, the fair value has been calculated by discounting expected
future cash flows at prevailing interest rates The above table excludes other recevables/payables, which have fair values equal to therr carrying values

Financial assets and liabilities by category
The accounting classifications of each dass of financial assets and habilities as at 23 February 2013 and 25 February 2012 are as follows

Loansand
1eceivables/ Far value
Availzble  other financial through
for sale habliwes  profizorloss Total
At 23 February 2013 £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 140 2,372 - 2,512
Loans and advances to customers - Tesco Bank - 5,559 - 5,559
Short-term investments - 522 — 522
Other investments — Tesco Bank 818 — — 818
Jomnt venture and associates loan recewvables (Note 28) — 459 - 459
Other recewvables - 17 - 17
Customer deposits — Tesco Bank - (6,000) — {6,000)
Deposits by banks - Tesco Bank - {15} - (15)
Short-term borrewings — (760) - (760)
Long-term borrowings - (9,946} - (9,946)
Finance leases {Note 34) - {128) - {128)
Derwvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - - {55) {55)
Cross currency swaps - - 1,050 1,050
Index-linked swaps - - 168 168
Forward foreign currency contracts - - (20} (20)
958 {7,920) 1,143 (5,819)
Loans and
receivables/ Fairvalue
Avalable otherfinancal th ough
for sale lisbilities  profit or loss Toral
At 25 February 2012 £m £m {m £m
Cash and cash eguivalents 35 2,270 — 2,305
Loans and advances to customers — Tesco Bank - 4,403 - 4,403
Short-term investments - 1,243 - 1,243
Other investments - Tesco Bank 1,267 259 - 1,526
Joint venture and associates loan receivables {Note 28) - 384 - 384
Other recevables - 10 - 10
Customer deposits — Tesco Bank - (5,387) — {5,387)
Deposits by bariks — Tesco Bank — (78) — (78}
Short-term berrowings - {1,806) - (1,806}
Long-term borrowings - (9,777 - (9,777)
Finance leases (Note 34) - (166) - {166}
Derwvative financial iInstruments
Interest rate swaps and simular instruments - - {102) (102)
Cross currency swaps - - 1,000 1,000
Index-inked swaps - - 101 101
Forward foreign currency contracts - - (45) (45)
Future purchases of non-controlling interests - - (3) (3)
1,302 (8,645) 951 (6,392}
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Note 21 Financial instruments continued

Fair value measurement

The following table presents the Group’s financiat assets and habilities that are measured at fair value at 23 February 2013, by level of fair value hierarchy

* guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (Level 1),

* inputs other than quoted prices mcluded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labihity, either directly {that 1s, as prices) or indirectly

(that s, derived from prices) (Level 2), and

* nputs for the asset or liabihty that are not based on observable market data (that s, unobservable inputs) (Level 3)

Level 1

Llevel2 Levet3

Total

At 23 February 2013 £m £m £m £m
Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 808 150 - 958
Dernvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps and simifar instruments - 130 - 130
Cross currency swaps - 1,129 - 1129
Index-hinked swaps - 707 - 707
Forward foreign currency contracts - 57 - 57
Total assets 808 2,173 - 2,981
Liabihties
Denwvative finanaial instruments
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - (185) — (185)
Cross currency swaps - (79 - {79
Index-hnked swaps - {539) - (539
Forward foreign currency contracts - (7 - an
Total habiities - {BBO) - (880)
Total 808 1,293 — 2,101
Levell Level 2 Leve!3 Total
At 25 February 2012 £m £m £m £m
Assets
Available-for-sale financal assets 542 760 - 1,302
Dernwvative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps and similar instruments - 99 - 99
Cross currency swaps - 1,054 - 1,054
Index-linked swaps - 569 - 569
Forward foretgn currency contracts - 45 - 45
Total assets 542 2,527 - 3,069
Liabilities
Dervative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps and similar nstruments - (201) - (201
Cross currency swaps - (54} - (54
Index-linked swaps - {468) - {468)
Forward foreign currency contracts - (90) - (90)
Future purchases of non-controlling interests - - (3) 3
Total liabilities - (813) (3) (816)
Total 542 1,714 (3) 2,253
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ending 23 February 2013
2013 2012
£m £m
At beginning of the year (3) (106)
Gains/{losses) recognised in finance costs in the Group Income Statement - 33
Gans/{losses) recognised in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity - (3)
Purchase of non-controlling interests 3 73
At end of the year - (3)

Duning the financial year, £431m (2012 £m) of Level 2 assets were transferred to Level 1 due to improved valuation systems, and there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 far value measurements At the start of the year the Group had a lability {classified as Level 3} relating to the future
purchase of the mmonty shareholding of its subsidiary blinkbox entertainment imited This option was exercised duning the year
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I Note 22 Financial nisk factors

The main financal risks faced by the Group refate to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates, the nisk of default by counterparties
to financial transactions and the availabiity of funds to meet business needs The management of these nisks 1s set out below

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors The Board prowides written
pancples for nsk management, as described in the Pnncipal nsks and uncertaintses on pages 38 to 42

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings Debtissued at variable rates as well as cash deposits and short term investments exposes

the Group to cash flow interest rate nisk Debt 1ssued at fixed rates exposes the Group to fair value nsk Qur interest rate management policy

1s explained on page 42

The Group has Retai Price Index (‘RPI) debt where the principal is indexed to increases i the RPI RPI debt is treated as floating rate debt
The Group also has Limited Price inflation (‘LPP) debt, where the prinapal 1s iIndexed to RPE, with an annual maximum mcrease of 5% and

a miimum of 0% LPI debts treated as fixed rate debt

For interest rate nsk relating to Tesco Bank, refer to the separate section on Tesco Bank financial nsk factors below

Duning 2013 and 2012, net debt was managed using dervative mstruments to hedge interest rate nisk as follows

2013 2012
Fixed Floaung Total Fixed Flpating Total
£fm £m £m {m im im
Cash and cash equivalents 140 2,372 2,512 35 2,270 2,305
Loans and advances to customers — Tesco Bank 2739 2,820 5,559 1,956 2,447 4,403
Short-term investments - 522 522 - 1,243 1,243
Other investments 707 111 818 1,335 191 1,526
Joint venture and associate, loan receivables (Note 28) - 459 459 - 384 384
Other receivables — 17 17 - 10 10
Finance leases (Note 34) (104) (24) (128) (111) (55) (166)
Bank and other borrowings (9,569) (1,137)  (10,706) (10,729) (854) (11,583)
Customer deposits — Tesco Bank {2,399} (3,601) {6,000} (1,470) {3,917} {5,387)
Deposits by banks ~ Tesco Bank (15) - (15} (78) - (78)
Future purchases of non-controlling interests - - - (3} - (3)
Derivative aeffect
Interest rate swaps (1,156) 1,156 - (1,402) 1,402 -
Cross currency swaps 2,436 (2,436) —~ 2,635 (2,635) -
Index-linked swaps (537} 537 — (522) 522 -
Caps and collars — — [4))] 1 —
Total (7,758) 796 (6,962) (8,355) 1,009 {7,346)
Credit risk

Credit sk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, customer deposits, financial instruments and deposits with banks

and finanaizhinstitutions The Group policy on credit risk 1s described on page 42

The counterpariy exposure under denvative contracts 1s £2 Obn (2012 £1 8bn} The Group considers its maxemum credit nisk to be £11 9bn

{2012 £11 6bn), being the Group’s total financial assets

For credit nsk relating to Tesco Bank, refer to the separate section on Tesco Bank financial risk factors below

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s managed by short-term and long-term cash flow forecasts In addition, the Group has commutted facility agreements for £2 8bn

(2012 £2 8bn), which mature between 2014 and 2015

The Group has a Eurgpean Medium Term Note programme of £15 0bn, of which £6 2bn was in 1ssue at 23 February 2013 (2012 £7 4bn), plus

a Eure Commercial Paper programme of £2 Obn, of which £0 1bn was in 1ssue at 23 February 2013 (2012 £nil}, and a US Commeraial Paper

programme of $4 Obn, of which £0 1bn was (0 issue at 23 February 2013 (2012 £nil)

On 12 September 2012 the Group repaid £1 5bn of long-term debt

For hquudity nsk relating to Tesco Bank, refer to the separate section on Tesco Bank financial sk factors below
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MNote 22 Financial risk factors continued

|

The followtng 15 an analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows payable under financial habilties and denvatives The potential cash outflow
of £17 4bn 1s considered acceptable as it 15 of fset by financial assets and trade recevables of £14 4bn (2012 £18 6bn offset by financial assets and

trade recewables of £14 3bn)

The undiscounted cash flows will differ from both the carrying values and fair value Floating rate interest 1s estimated using the prevailing rate
at the balance sheet date Cash flows In foretgn currencies are translated usimg spot rates at the balance sheet date For ndex-inked habihves,

inflation 15 estimated at 3% for the life of the habihty

Due Due Due Due
Due between between between between Due

within 1and2 2and 3 Jand4 4and 5 beyond

1 year years years years years 5 years
At 23 February 2013 £m £m Em £m £m £m
Non-dernvative financial habibties
Bank and other borrowings {711) (1,081) (553) {1,550) {575) (5,805)
Interest payments on borrowings {451) (441) (402) {375) (301) (3.511)
Customer deposits — Tesco Bank (5,323) (577) (100} - - -
Deposits by banks — Tesco Bank )] (&) - - - -
Finance leases {13) {13) {13) {13) {13) (212)
Trade and other payables (10,865) {93) (31 {19) {12) (74)
Denvative and other financial habilities
Net settled derivative contracts - receipts 63 62 27 71 20 608
Net settled denwvative contracts — payments {106} {78) (71) {50) @7 (362)
Gross settled dervative contracts — receipts 3,610 1,588 157 1,057 1,369 1,008
Gross settled derivative contracts — payments (3,564) (1,485) (57) (916) (1,000) (531)
Total (17,369) (2,124) {1,043) {1,795) (559) (8,879}

Due Due Due Bue
Due between between between between Due

withm iand2 2and3 Sand 4 dand5 beyorud
At 25 February 2012 em Y i i e e
Non-dervative financial liabilities
Bank and other borrowings (1,734) {B67) (1,005} (5) (1,524) {6,124)
Interest payments on borrowings (557} {431) (395) (359) (359) {3,716}
Customer deposits — Tesco Bank {5,087} (249) (51 — — —
Deposits by banks - Tesco Bank {(78) — - — - -
Finance leases {39) [4F))] (15) {13 13 (222)
Trade and other payables (11,611} (105) (22) {35) (9) (52)
Derwvative and other financial habihities
Net settled derivative contracts — receipts 67 54 56 21 60 470
Net setiled dervative contracts - payments (122) (80) {69) 61) (43) (342)
Gross settled dervative contracts — receipts 3,905 735 1,416 166 1,047 3,757
Gross settled denvative contracts — payments (3,900) (652) {1,328) n (935) (2,685)
Future purchases of non-controlling interests (3) — - - - -
Total {18,559) (1,612) {1,413) {363) (1,776) (8,914)

Foreign exchange risk
The Group s exposed to forergn exchange nisk panapally wa

* Transactional exposure anses from the cost of future purchases of goeds for resale, where those purchases are deneminated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the purchasing company Transactiona! exposures that could signrficantly impact the Group income Statement
are hedged These exposures are hedged wa forward foreign currency contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges The notional and far

vafue of these contracts 1s shown i Note 21

+ Net investment exposure anses from changes in the value of net investments denominated in currencies other than Pounds Sterhng The Group
hedges a part of its Investments in its international substdiaries via foretgn currency transactions and borrowings in matching currencies which

are formally designated as net investment hedges

* Loans to non-UK subsidianes are hedged wia foreign currency transactions and borrowings in matching currencies These are not formally

designated as hedges as gains and losses on hedges and hedged loans will naturally offset
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| Note 22 Financial risk factors continued

The impact on Group financial staternents from foreign currency volatility 1s shown in the sensitevity analysis below

Sensitivity analysis

The analysis excludes the impact of movermnents in market variables on the carrymg value of pension and other post-employment obligations and
on the retranslation of overseas net assets as requued by 1AS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' However, it dees include the
fareign exchange sensitivity resulting from all local entity non-functional currency financial mstruments

The sensitrvity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and
derwvatives portfolio, and the proportion of financial instruments in foraign currencies are alf constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in
place at 23 February 2013 It should be noted that the sensiivity analysis reflects the impact on incorne and equity due to all finanaial instruments
held at the balance sheet date It does not reflect any change in sales or costs that may result from changing interest or exchange rates

The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis
+ the sensitivity of mterest payable to movements in mterest rates s calculated on net floating rate exposures on debt, deposits and denvative

nstruments with no sensitvity assumed for RPI-linked debt which has been swapped to fixed rates,

+ changes in the carrying value of derivatwve financial instruments designated as fair value hedges from movernents in interest rates or foreign
exchange rates have an immatenal effect on the Group Income Statement and equity due to compensating adjustments in the carrying value
of debt,

* changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments designated as net investment hedges from movements in foreign exchange rates
are recorded directly in the Group Statement of Comprehensive ncome,

+ changes in the carrying value of denivative financial instrurnents not designated as hedging mstruments only affect the Group Income Statement,

+ all other changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments designated as hedging mstruments are fully effective with o impact
on the Group Income Statement, and

* the floating leg of any swap or any floating rate debt 15 treated as not having any interest rate already set, therefore a change in interest rates
affects a full 12-month pened for the interest payable portion of the sensitivity calculations

Using the above assumphions, the following table shows the illustrative effect on the Group Income Statement and equity that woutd result from
changes in UK interest rates and in exchange rates

2013 2012

Income Equuy Income Equity

gan/(koss)y gam/{loss) gaini{loss} gain/(loss)

£m £m £m £m

1% mcrease in GBP nterest rates (2012 1%) 8 - {3) —
5% appreciation of the Euro (2012 59%) {12) 43) [{)] 1G]]
5% apprectation of the South Korean Won (2012 5%) — 56 - 59
5% appreciation of the US Dollar (2012 5%) {13) 52 10 50
5% appreciation of the Czech Koruna {2012 5%) (N 21 1 17

A decrease in interest rates and a depreciation of foreign currencies would have the opposite effect to the impact in the table above

The impact on the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income from changing exchange rates results from the revaluation of financial liabilues
used as net Investment hedges The impact on the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income will fargely be offset by the revaluation in equity
of the hedged assets

Capital nsk

The Group’s objectives when managing capital {defined as net debt pius equity) are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, while mamtaming a strong creditrating and headroom whilst
optirmsing return to shareholders through an appropriate balance of debt and equity funding The Group manages its capttal structure and makes
adjustrnents to it, m hight of changes to economic conditions and the strategic objectives of the Group

To maintam or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, buy back shares and cancet them, or 1ssue
new shares Durning 2013, the Group purchased and cancelled £nil of ordinary shares (2012 £290m)

The pohicy for debt s to ensure a smooth debt matunity profile with the objective of ensunng continuity of funding This pohicy continued during the
financeal year with bonds redeemed of £1,285m (2012 £521m) and no new bonds were issued (2012 £1,358m) except those 1ssued by Tesco Bank
The Group borrows centrally and locally, using a vaniety of capital market instruments and borroweng fackuies to meet the Group’s business
requirements of each local business
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Note 22 Financial rnisk factors continued l

Tesco Bank

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk anses where assets and habikities in Tesco Bank’s banking activities have different repricing dates Tesco Bank policy seeks to
minimise the sensitivity of net interest income to changes inanterest rates Potential exposures to interest rate movernents n the medium to

long term are measured and controlled through position and sensitivity hrrits Short-term exposures are measured and controlied 10 terms of net
interest Income sensitivity over 12 months to a 1% parallel moverment m interest rates Tesco Bank also use Economic Vatue Equity (‘EVE'} for nisk
management purposes with focus on the value of Tesco Bank in today's interest rate environment and its sensitivity to changes mn nterest rates
interest rate risk i1s managed using interest rate swaps as the main hedging instrument

Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk is the nsk that Tesce Bank 1s unable to meet its payment cbligations as they fall due Liguidity risk 1s managed within Tesco Bank’s
banking activizies and adheres to the hquidity requirements set by the Prudential Regulation Authonty {‘PRA'} Tesco Bank'’s Board has set a defined
hquidity nsk policy and contingency funding which 1s prudent and in excess of the minimum requirements as set cut by the PRA and by Tesco Bank
A dwersified portfolio of high-quality iquid and marketable assets 1s maintained Cash flow commitments and marketable asset holdings are
measured and managed on a darly basis Tesco Bank has sufficent hquidity to meet all foreseeable cutflow requirernents as they fall due and its
hqurdity risk is further mitigated by its well dwersified retail deposit base and a pool of surplus cash resources that are invested in a range of
marketable assets

Credit risk

Credit nisk s the potential that a bank borrower or counterparty will fall to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms Credit nsk principally
anises from the Bank's retail lending activities but also from the placement of surplus funds with other banks and money market funds, investments
i transferable securities and interest rate and forergn exchange denvatives In addrtion, credit sk anses from contractual arrangements with third
parties where payments and commusstons are due to the Bank for short periods of time

Retail credit policy is managed through the credit nsk policy framework with standards and hmits defined at all stages of the customer ifecycle,
including new account sanctioning, customer management and collections and recovery activity Customer lending decisions are managed
principally through the deployment of bespoke credit scorecard models and credit pohicy rules, which exclude specific areas of lending, and an
affordability assessment which deterrmines a customer’s ability to repay an outstanding credit amount Wholesale credit nsk 1s managed using
a hrmit-based framework, with limits determined by counterparty credit worthiness, instrument type and remaining tenor A hmits framework

15 also in place for the management of third party credit exposures

Ineffective management and controfs over the emerging asset quality of the Group’s lending portfolios could expose the Group to unacceptable
levels of bad debt The Group's asset quality 1s reflected through the level of its impairment by lending type Asset quality profiles are regularly
monttored and reported to the appropriate senior management team and risk committees

The table below presents an analysis of credit exposure by Impairment status across the different exposure classes The table predomunantly relates
10 banking assets, the retail instalment lending applies to credit agreements in the insurance business

Credit quahty of loans and advances Retal Retasi Retal
unsecured morigage instalment
lendmg lending lending TForal
As at 23 February 2013 £m £m £Em £m
Past due and defaulted
Less than 90 days past due 30 - - 30
90-179 days past due 42 — - 42
180 days plus past due 76 - - 76

Past due but not defaulted

0-29 days past due 41 - 1 42
30-59 days past due 11 - - 1
60-119 days past due 9 - - 9

Neither past due nor defaulted

Low nisk 4,935 258 202 5,395
High nsk™ 126 - - 126
Tota) 5,270 258 203 5,731

* Low fisk 1s defined as an asset with a probabiliry of default of less than 10%
** High nisk 1s defened as an asset with a probability of default of 10% or more
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INote 22 Financial nsk factors continued

Credit quality of loans and advances Retad Retarl Retail

unsecuted morgage instalment

lendmg lending lendmyg' Total

As at 25 February 2012 £m £m £m £m
Past due and defaulted
Less than 90 days past due 27 - - 27
90-179 days past due 45 - - 45
180 days plus past due 81 - — 81
Past due but not defaulted
0-29 days past due 50 - 1 51
30-59 days past due 14 - - 14
60-119 days past due 10 - - 10
Neither past due nor defaulted
Low risk” 4,202 - 247 4,449
Hegh risk™ 159 - - 159
Total 4,588 — 248 4,836

* Lownsk s defined as an s3set with a probabibity of default of less than 10%
** High nsk 15 delined as an asset with 2 probability of default of 10% or more

T Prioryear retail instalment lending of £248m was classified as trade and other recavables

Dunng the year ended 28 February 2013 there was a change to the methodology by which the Group measures credit nsk in relaton to outstanding
loan balances The new methodology i1s considered to provide a more appropriate disciosure for reporting and monitoning purposes The Group has

prepared a prior year comparator ustng this new methodology

The credit risk exposure from off balance sheet items, mainty undrawn credit card faohties and mortgage offers, was £8 5bn (2012 £7 4bn)

Insurance risk

Tesco Bank 1s indirectly exposed to insurance risks through its ownership of 49 9% of Tesco Underwnting Lirmited ((TU"), an authorised insurance
company Since late 2010 the majonty of new business poltcies for Home and Mator Insurance products sold by Tesco Bank have been underwritten
by TU The key msurance risks within TU relate to Underwnting Risk and speafically the potential for a major weather event 1o generate significant
claims on Home insurance or on Motor insurance the cost of settling bodily injury claims Exposure to this risk is actively managed within TU with
close monitoring of performance metnics and the use of reinsurance to et TU’ exposure above predetermined imits

During the year the relattonship with RBS Insurance was terminated and the Group has no exposure to insurance nsk ansing from this

historic relationship

Note 23 Customer deposits and deposits by banks

2013 2012

£m £m

Customer deposits 6,000 5,387
Deposits by banks 15 78
6,015 5,465

Included above s £677m (2012 £300m) non-current customer deposits and £6m (2012 £nil) non-current deposits by banks
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LNote 24 Provisions

Property Other

ProvISIOns Provisians. Total

£fm fm fm

At 26 February 2011 138 39 177
Foreign currency translation 2 - 2
Amount refeased in the year (45) - 45)
Amount provided In the year 28 3] 29
Amount utihised in the year 4 (22) (26)
Others 2 - 2
At 25 February 2012 121 78 199
Foreign currency translaton 6 - 6
Amount released m the year (12) - (i2)
Amount provided In the year 254 116 370
Amount utiised in the year (11} (92) (103)
At 23 February 2013 358 102 460

The balances are analysed as follows

2013 2012

Em £m

Current 188 99
Non-current 272 100
460 199

Property provisions compnise ebligatrons for future rents payable net of rents receivable on onerous leases including on vacant property and

unprofitable stores, termunat dilapidations and other onerous contracts relating to property The majonty of these provisions are expected to be

utthsed over the peniod to 2020

The other provisions balance relates manly to a provision for Tesco Bank customer redress in respect of potential complaints arising from the histonc
sales of Payment Protection Insurance (*PPI") Durmg the year, a full-scale proactive customer contact programme was initiated for customers who
were sold PPl over a specific time period As a result of this activity and the contact receved directly from customers, an increase in the provision
was made The PPi provision may be used over several years although the tirung of utihsation 1s uncertain The balance s classified as current at

the year end
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Iﬂlote 25 Share-based payments

for continuing operations, the Group Income Statement charge for the year recognised in respect of share-based payments s £89m (2012 £151m),
which 1s made up of share option schemes and share bonus payments OFf this amount, £65m (2012 £124m) will be settled in equity and £24m
(2012 £27m) in cash

Share option schemes
The Company had ten share option schermnes in operation during the financial year, all of which are equity-settled schemes

1) The Savings-related Share Option Scherme (1981) permits the grant to employees of options m respect of erdmary shares linked to a bullding
society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of three or five years with contnbutions from employees of an amount between £5 and £250
per four-weekly peniod Options are capable of being exerased at the end of the three- or five-year pertod at a subscription price of not less than
80% of the average of the middle-market quotations of an ordinary share over the three deahing days immediately preceding the offer date

1} The Irish Savings-related Share Option Scheme (2000) permits the grant to Insh employees of options in respect of ordinary shares hnked to a
building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of three or five years with contrnbutions from employees of an amount between €12 and
€500 per four-weekly period Options are capable of being exercised at the end of the three- or five-year penod at a subscription price of not less
than 80% of the average of the middle-market quotations of an ordinary share over the three dealing days smmedately preceding the offer date

1) The Approved Executive Share Option Scheme (1994) was adopted on 17 Octaber 1994 The exercise of options granted under this scheme
will normally be conditional upon the achievement of a specified performance target retated to the growthin earnings per share over a three-year
period No further options will be granted under this scheme and it has been replaced by the Discretionary Share Option Plan (2004) There were
no discounted options granted under this scheme

v} The Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme (1996) was adopted on 7 June 1996 The exerase of options granted under this scheme

will normally be conditional upon the achievernent of a specified performance target related to the growthin earmings per share over a three-year
penod No further options will be granted under this scheme and it has been replaced by the Discretionary Share Qption Plan (2004) There were
no discounted options granted under this scheme

v) The Internauonal Executive Share Option Scheme (1994) was adopted on 20 May 1994 This scheme permits the grant to setected non-UK
executives of options to acquire ordinary shares on substantially the same basis as their UK counterparts The exerase of options granted under
this scherne wili normally be conditional upon the achievement of a specified performance target related to the growth i earmings per share over
a three-year period Ne further options will be granted under this scheme and it has been replaced by the Discretionary Share Option Plan (2004)
There were no discounted options granted under this scheme

vi) The Executive Incentive Plan (2004) was adopted on 5 July 2004 This scheme permits the grant of options in respect of ordimary shares to
selected senior executives Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant for ml considerauon Full details
of this plan can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

vi) The Performance Share Plan (2004} was adopted on 5 fuly 2004 and amended on 29 June 2007 This scheme permits the grant of options

in respect of ordinary shares to selected executives Options granted before 29 June 2007 are normally exercisable between four and ten years from
the date of grant for nil consideration Options granted after 29 June 2007 are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of
grant for nil consideration The exercise of options will normally be conditional upon the achievement of specaified performance targets related

to the return on capital employed over a three-year period No further options will be granted under this scheme and 1t has been replaced by the
Performance Share Plan (2011}

vii} The Performance Share Plan {2011) was adopted on 1 July 2011 and amended on 4 July 2011 This scheme permrits the grant of options

in respect of ordinary shares to selected executives Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant for nil
consideration The exercise of optiens will normally be conditional upen the achievement of specified performance targets related to the return
on capital employed and earnings per share over a three-year penod
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Note 25 Share-based payments continued

]

1X) The Discretionary Share Option Plan (2004) was adopted on 5 July 2004 This scheme perrruts the grant of approved, unapproved and
international options in respect of ordinary shares to selected executives Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years from
the date of grant at a pnice not less than the middle-market quotation or average middle-market quotations of an ordinary share for the dealing
day or three dealing days preceding the date of grant The exercise of options will normally be conditional upon the achievernent of a specified
performance target related to the annual percentage growth in earmings per share over a three-year peniod There were no discounted options

granted under this scheme

x) The Group New Business Incentive Plan (2007) was adopted on 29 June 2007 This scheme permits the grant of options in respect of ordinary
shares ta selected executives Options will normally vest in four tranches four, five, six and seven years after the date of grant and wili be exeraisable
for up to two years from the vesting dates for nil consideration The exercise of options will normalty be conditional upon the achievement of
speafied performance targets related to the return on capital employed over the seven-year plan

The following tables reconcile the number of share options outstanding and the weighted average exercise pnce (‘WAEP?)

For the year ended 23 February 2013

Savings related Irish savings-related Approved Unapproved Intemnat onal executive Nil cost
Share Option Sctheme Share Option Scheme Share Opuon Scheme Share Option Scheme Share Optionscheme  share option schemes
Qpuions WAEP Opuions WAEP Oplians WAEP Options. WAEP Opucns WAEP Couions WAEP
Qutstanding at
25 February
2012 131,921,033 35028 4975203 35295 13,668,564 39547 87418835 37780 59,751,420 38537 17,801,914 000
Granted 32,771,389 28200 1407939 28200 - - — — - - 7,369,204 000
Forfeited {25,049,015) 33325 (1,055,775) 33601 (604,143) 41043 {3,130,086) 40130 (4,379,756) 39707 (3,064,780) 000
Exercised (12,430,856) 32154  (440,533) 32397 (472,092) 28187 (3,849,729) 25790 (1,706,557) 28422  (2,327,513) G 00
Qutstanding at
23 February
2013 127,212,551 33885 4,886,834 33878 12,592,329 30901 80,439,020 38262 53,665,107 38764 19,778,825 000
Exercisable as at
23 February
2013 16,192,212 38109 709,010 36040 9319436 39170 61,754,447 37137 39218,022 37574 5,630,056 000
32800 32800 19750 197 50 19750
Exercise price to to to to to
range {pence) 41000 41000 47375 47375 47375 Q00
Weighted average
remarning
contractual
life {years) 043 043 459 471 490 524
For the year ended 25 February 2012
Sawvings relared Insh savings refated Appraved Unapproved Intemational Executive Nil cost
Share Option Scheme Share Option Scheme Share Option Scheme Share Option Scheme Share Option Scheme  share option schemes
Options. WAEP Options. WAEP Opticns WAEP Opugns WAEP Options WAEP Options WAEP
Qutstanding at
26 February
2011 141,225,710 34541 5,720,602 34884 14,847,597 38921 92512818 37429 65066,054 38206 12,399,127 000
Granted 78,566,015 36400 1433139 36400 7,448 40275 2,555 40275 40,000 40275 6513912 000
Forferted {21,030,145) 37608  (1,255918) 36798 {439,466) 38594 (1,897884) 38493 (3,314,141) 38028 (603,508) 0 00
Exercised 16,840,547) 30049  (622,620) 30496  (747.015) 27682 (3,i98,654) 27220 (2,040493) 28826  (507617) 000
Cutstanding at
25 February
2012 131,929,033 35028 4,975,203 35295 13,668,564 39547 87418835 37780 59,751,420 38537 17,801,914 000
Exercisable as at
25 February
2012 16,757,641 30918 557,813 30991 7887688 40206 44131,260 38011 27530779 39335 5216671 000
24800 30700 19750 19750 19750
Exercise price to to to to to
range (pence) OO 41000 47375 47375 47375 000
Weighted average
remaining
contractual
Iife (years) 043 043 494 465 501 617

* Previously 2012 included options granted within the year

Share options were exerased on a regular basis throughout the financia! year The average share pnce duning the linancial year ended 23 February

2013 was 328 39p (2012 385 43p)
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|&te 25 Share-based payments continued

The fair value of share options 15 estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes opuon pricing mode! The following table gives the
assumplions applied to the options granted in the respective peniods shown No assumption has been made to incorporate the effects of expected
early exercise

2013 W02

Savings Savings
related Executive Nil cost refated Execuave Miicost
shareoption  share option option share option  share option  share option
schemes schemes schemes schemnes schernes schemes
Expected dividend yield {%) 50% - 0 0% 41% 41% 0 0%
Expected volatility (%) 21 -28% - 27% 23-27% 26% 26%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 07-10% - 13% 15-18% 20% 26%
Expected life of option (years) 3or5 - 6 JorS 6 6
Werghted average fair value of options granted {pence) 43 45 - 31772 69 85 62 91 40814
Probability of for feiture (%) 14 - 16% - 0% 14-16% 10% 0%
Share price (pence) 312 00 - 31772 404 00 402 75 408 14
Weighted average exercise price {(pence) 282 00 - 000 364 00 402 75 000

Volatility 15 a measure of the amount by which a price s expected to fluctuate during a penod The measure of volatility used in the Group's option
pricing models 15 the annualised standard deviatien of the continuously compounded rates of return on the share over a penod of ime in estimating
the future volatiity of the Cormpany’s share price, the Board considers the historical volatiity of the share price over the most recent period that

15 generally commensurate with the expected term of the option, taking into account the remaining contractual life of the option

Share bonus schemes

Eligible UK employees are able to participate in Shares in Success, an all-employee profit-shanng scheme which permits the award of shares to
employees, usually awarded as a percentage of earmings, up to a statutory maximurm of £3,000 per annum No award was made under this scheme
i the finanaial year Elgible Republic of Ireland employees are able to participate in a Share Bonus Scheme, an all employee profit-shanng scheme
Each year, employees receive an award of either cash or shares based on a percentage of therr earmings

Selected executives participate in the Group Bonus Plan, a performance-related bonus scheme The amount paid to employees is based on a
percentage of salary and s paid partly in cash and partly in shares Bonuses are awarded to sefected executives who have completed a required
service period and depend on the achievement of corporate targets

Selecied sentor executives participate in the Management Performance Share Plan Awards made under this planwill normally vest three years after
the date of the award for m! consideraticn Vesting will normally be conditional on the achievernent of specified performance targets related to the
return on capital ermployed over a three-year performance period No further awards will be granted under this scheme and 1t has been replaced by
the Performance Share Plan (2011)

Selected executives participate in the Performance Share Plan (2011) Awards made under this plan will normally vest three years after the date
of the award for nil consideration Vesting will normally be conditional on the achievement of specified performance targets related to the return
on capital employed and earnings per share over a three-year performance period

Sentor management in the US business also participate i the LS Long-Term Incentive Plan (2007), which was adopted on 29 June 2007 The awards
made under thus plan will normally vest in four tranches four, five, six and seven years after the date of award, for nit consideration Vestung will normally be
conditional on the achievernent of specified performance targets related to the return on capital emplayed in the US business over the seven-year plan

The Executive Directors participate in short-term and long-term benus schemes designed to align their interests with those of shareholders Full
details of these schemes can be found in the Directors' Remuneration Report

The fair vatue of shares awarded under these schemes is ther market value on the date of award Expected dividends are not incorporated into the
fair value except for awards under the LS Long-Term Incentive Plan

The number and weighted average fair value (‘WAFV'} of share bonuses awarded during the financial year were

2013 2012

Number of WAFV Number of WAFV

shares pence shares pence

Shares in Success - - 26,597,598 416 26
Insh Share Bonus Schemne 110,234 30108 156,313 419 50
Executive Incentive Scheme 4,591,717 30113 9,482 746 415 89
Performance Share Plan 27,025,617 31734 21,075,604 38913

US Long-Term Incentive Plan 178,914 31491 132,786 405 63
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Note 26 Post-employment benefits

Penslons

The Group operates a vanety of post-employment benefit arrangements, covenng both funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes and funded
defined contnbution schemes The most significant of these are the funded defined benefit pension schemes for the Group’s employees in the UK,
Republic of Irefand and South Korea

Defined contribution plans
The contributions payable for defined contribution schemes of £19m (2012 £20m) have been recognised in the Group income Statement

Defined benefit plans

Umited Kingdom

The principal plan within the Group 1s the Tesco PLC Pension Scherne, which 1s a funded defined benefit pension scheme in the UK, the assets of
which are held as a segregated fund and administered by trustees Towers Watson Limited, an independent actuary, carned out the latest tnennial
actuanal assessment of the scheme as at 31 March 2011, using the projected unit method

At 31 March 2011, the actuarial deficit was £934m The market value of the schemes' assets was £5,587m and these assets represented 86% of the
benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for expected increases in earmings and pensions in payment

Overseas

The most significant overseas schemes are the funded defined benefit schemes which operate in the Repubhc of lreland and South Korea
An independent actuary, using the projected unit method, carned out the latest actuanal assessment of the Republic of Ireland scheme as at
1 Apni 2010 and Scuth Korea as at 23 February 2013

The valuations used for IAS 19 have been based on the most recent actuanal valuatrons and updated by Towers Watson Lirmited to take account of
the requirements of IAS 19 in order to assess the liabilities of the schemes as at 23 February 2013 The schemes’ assets are stated at their market
values as at 23 February 2013 Towers Watson Limited have updated the most recent Republic of Ireland and South Korea valuations The liabilities
relauing to retirement healthcare benefits have also been determined in accordance with IAS 19 and are incorporated in the following tables

Principal assumptions
The major assumptions, on a werghted average basis, used by the actuaries were as follows

2013 2012
% %
Discount rate 51 52
Price inflation 33 31
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 23 21
Rate of increase in salanes 34 32
Rate of increase i pensions m payment”
Benefits accrued before 1 June 2012 31 29
Benefits accrued after 1 June 2012 23 -
Rate of increase m career average benefits
Benefits accrued before 1 June 2012 33 31
Benefits accrued after 1 June 2012 23 -

* In excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension ( GMP') elerment

Changes were made in the year relating to any pension eamed after 1 June 2012

* the age at which a full pension 1s paid increased by two years and will be adjusted in the future i there are unexpected changes 1o kfe expectancy, and
* the basis for calculauing the rate of increase in pensions In paytment was changed to CP) (previously RPI)

The main financial assumption s the real discount rate {1 e the excess of the discount rate over the rate of price inflation) If this assumption

ncreased/decreased by 0 1%, the UK defined benefit obligatton would decrease/increase by approximately £210m and the annual UK current
service cost would decrease/increase by approximately £13m

UK mortality assumptions
The Company conducts analysis of mortality trends under the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme in the UK as part of the tnenmal actuarial valuation
of the Scheme At the latest trienmial actuanta! valiration as at 31 March 2011 the following assumptians were adopted for funding purposes

Base tables
90% of the SAPS normal male pensioners for male staff and 809% of the SAPS all male pensioners ight for male seror managers
105% of the SAPS normal fernale penstoners for female staff and 90% for femnale senior managers

These assumptions were used for the caleulation of the pension llability as at 23 February 2013 for the main UK scheme
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| Note 26 Post-employment benefits continued

The mortality assumptions used are based on tables that have been projected to 2009 with long cohort improvements in addition, the allowance
for future mortality improvements from 2009 1s 1n hne with medium cohort projections with a mimimum annuabimprovement of 1% per annum

The following table illustrates the expectation of life of an average member retiring at age 65 at the reporung date and a member reaching age 65
at reporting date +25 years

2013 2012
years. years
Retinng at reporting date at age 65 Male 228 218
Female 243 236
Retiring at reporting date +25 years atage 65  Male 252 242
Female 265 261
Rates of return on scheme assets

The assets in the defined benefit pension schemes and the expected nominal rates of return are as follows
2013 2012
Long-term Market Long term Market
rate of retum value rate of return value
£m % £m
Equities 80 4,005 81 3,377
Bonds 39 1,533 49 1,365
Property 60 742 65 577
Other (alternative assets) 80 907 81 741
Cash 38 19 36 109
Total market value of assels 7,206 6,169

The expected rate of return on assets 1s a weighted average based on the actual plan assets held and the respective returns expected on the separate
asset classes The expected rates of return on equities and cash have both been set with reference to the expected medium term, as calculated by the
Company's independent actuary The expected rate of return on bonds was measured directly from actual yrelds for gilts and corporate bond stocks
The rates take into account the actual mix of UK gilts, UK corporate bonds and overseas bonds held at the balance sheet date

Movement in pension deficit during the financial year
Changes in the fair value of defined benefit pension assets are as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
QOpening fair vatue of defined benefit pension assets 6,169 5,608
Expected return 463 422
Actuarnial gainsi{losses) 94 {168)
Contributions by employer 486 457
Additional contribution by employer” 180 -
Actual member contributions 10 11
Foreign currency translation 9 ()
Benefits paid (205) {160)
Closing fair value of defined benefit pension assets 7,206 6,169

“ As part of the 2011 triennial valuation, the Company agreed with the Trus ees 1o increase secunty and, on top of the normat contributions, made an additional contnbution of £180m
to the UK Pension Scheme on 30 March 2012

Changes In the present value of defined benefit pension obhgation are as follows

2013 2012

£m fm

Opening defined benefit pension obligation (8,041) (6,964)
Current service cost 482) {495)
Past service gains - 3
Interest cost (411) (404)
Losses on change of assumptions 830y (373)
Experience gams 1 43
Foreign currency translation (16) -
Benefits paid 205 160
Actual member contnbutions {10) {1

Closing defined benefit pension obligation (9,584) (8,041)
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Note 26 Post-employment benefits continued I
The amounts that have been charged to the Group Income Statement and Group Statement of Comprehensive income for the year ended
23 February 2013 are set out below
2013 2012
fm £m
Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit
Current service cost {482) (495}
Past service gans — 3
Total charge to operating profit 482) (492)
Analysis of the amount (charged)/credited te finance (cost)income
Expected return on defined benefit pension assets 463 422
Interest on defined benefit pension obhigation {a11) (404)
Net pension finance income {Note 5) 52 18
Total charge to the Group Income Statement (430) (474)
Analysis of the amount recognised i the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Actuanal gams/{losses) on defined benefit pension assets 94 (168)
Expenience gans ansing on defined benefit pension obhgation 1 43
Foreign currency translation 0] -
Losses on change of assumptions on defined benefit pension obligation (830} (373)
Total losses recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income (742) {498)

The cumulatve iosses recognised through the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income since the date of transition te IFRS are £1,965m (2012 £3,223m)

Summary of movements in deficit during the financial year

2003 2012
m £m
Beficit in schemes at beginming of the year {1,872) (1,356)
Current service cost (482) {495)
Past service gains - 3
Net pension finance mncome 32 18
Contributions by employer 486 457
Addivonal contribution by employer 180 -
Foreign currency translation )] 0]
Actuanal losses (735) (498)
Defiat in schemes at the end of the year (2,378) {1,872)
Deferred tax asset (Note 6) 539 465
Defiat in schemes at the end of the year net of deferred tax (1,839) (3,407}
Histary of movements
The histoncal moverment in defined benefit pension schemes’ assets and labiities and history of experience gains and losses are as follows
2013 2012 201 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Total market value of assets 7,206 6,169 5,608 4,696 3,420
Present value of habilites relating to unfunded pension schemes (91) (60) (65) {54) (39
Present value of liabilities relating to partraily funded pension schemes {9,493) {7,981) (6,899 {6,482) {4,875}
Pension deficit {2,378) (1,872) {1,356) (1,840) (1,494}
Actuarial gains/{iosses) on defined benefit pension assets 94 (168) 278 733 (1,270}
Expenence gans/({losses) on defined benefit pension obligation 1 43 (25) (1) {i117)

Post-employment benefits other than pensions

The Company operates a scheme offering post-retirement healthcare benefits The cost of providing these benefits has been accounted for

on a stmilar basis to that used for defined benefit pension schemes

The habiity as at 23 February 2013 of £12m (2012 £11m) was determined in accordance with the adwice of independent actuanes Dunng the
full year £1m (2012 £1m) has been charged to the Group Income Statement and £1m (2012 £1m) of benefits were paid
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| Note 26 Post-employment benefits continued

A change of 1% in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effect

2013 2012
Em £m
Effect of a 1% mcrease in assumed healthcare cost trend rates on
Service and interast cost - -
Defined benefit obligation 2 2
Effect of a 1% decrease in assumed healthcare cost trend rates on
Service and interest cost - -
Defined benefit obligauon (1 (1}
Expected contnbutions
The Company expects to make normal cash contnbutions of approximately £525m to defined benefit schemes in the financial year ending
22 February 2014
IL‘"E 27 Called up share capital
2013 2012
Ordinary shares of 5p each Ordwary shares of 5p each
Number £m Number £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At beginning of the year 8,031,812,445 402 8,046,468,092 402
Share options exercises 18,632,251 1 23,490,825 1
Share bonus awards i1ssues 3,610,234 - 32,656,313 2
Shares purchased for cancellation - - (70,802,785) (3)
At end of the year 8,054,054,930 403 8,031,812,445 402

During the financia! year, 19 milhon (2012 23 million) ordinary shares of 5p each were issued in relation to share options for an aggregate

consideration of £57m (2012 £69m)

Duiing the financial year, 4 million (2012 33 million) shares of Sp each were 1ssued in relation to share bonus awards for an aggregate consideration

of £0 2m (2012 £1 6m)

Between 24 February 2013 and 12 April 2013 options over 1,288,429 ordinary shares were exercised under the terms of the Sawvings-related
Share Option Scheme (1981) and the Insh Savings-refated Share Options Scheme (2000) Between 24 February 2013 and 12 April 2013 options

over 2,741,490 ordimary shares have been exerased under the terms of the Executsve Share Option Schemes (1994 and 1996) and the Discretionary

Share Option Plan (2004)

As at 23 February 2013, the Directors were authonsed to purchase up to a maximum in aggregate of 804 0 million {2012 803 6 million) ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time 10 tme and are entitled to one vote per share at general

meetings of the Company
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Note 28 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed
in this note Transactions between the Group and its jomi ventures and associates are disclosed below

Trading transactions

Sales to Purchases from Amounts owed Amaounts owed

related paruas related parties by related partres torelated parties

2013 2012 2013 22 203 w2 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £fm

Joint ventures 303 263 516 480 13 S 21 36
Assouates 2 2 952 1,691 — - 12 368

Sales to related parties consists of services/management fees and loan interest

Purchases from related parties nchude £387m (2012 £351m) of rentals payable to the Group's joint ventures (including those jomt ventures formed
as part of the sale and leaseback programme) and £952m (2012 £1,691m) of fuel purchased from Greenergy International Limited In addition, duty
on the fuel purchases paid by the Group to Greenergy International Limited was £1,056m (2012 £1,950m)

Non-trading transactions

Sale and leaseback Loansio Loans from Inecoon of

of assets related parties related parties equity funding

2013 2012 M3 a2 2013 2012 2013 xm?

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Jomt ventures 493 450 459 384 16 16 24 49
Associates 503 — 21 21 — - 132 —

Transactions between the Group and the Group's pension plans are disclosed in Note 26

A number of the Group’s subsidiaries are merbers of one or more partnerships to whom the prowsions of the Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 (‘Regulations’) apply The accounts for those partnerships have been consolidated into these accounts pursuant to Requlation 7
of the Regulations

On 13 February 2013, the Group completed a new sale and leaseback transaction mvolving UK property assets, structured as a 50-50 joint venture
with the Cambridge University Endowment Fund Four trading stores and three mixed use sites under development were sold for a total
consideration of £493m

During the year, the Group completed two sale and leaseback transactions involving property assets in Thalland On 14 March 2012, seventeen
trading malls were seld to the Tesco Lotus Growth Fund, an associated entity of the Group, for net consideration of £360m On 4 December 2012,
a further five trading malis were sold for a consideration of £143m

Transactions with key management personnel
Members of the Board of Birectors and Executive Commuttee of Tesco PLC are deemed to be key management personnel

Key management personnel compensatton and theur transactions with Tesco Bank are disclosed below

2043 2012

£m £m

Salarnies and short-term benefits 13 13
Pensions 3 4
Share-based payments 2 9
Loss of office costs 3 -
21 26

Of the total remuneration 1o key management personnel, £7m (2012 £6m) relates to Executive Committee members who are not on the PLC Board

Transactions of key management personnel with Tesco Bank dunng the financial year were as follows

Credit card and personat

loan balances Saving deposit accounts
Number of key Number cfkey
management management
personnef im personnel £m
At 23 February 2013 12 - 5 -
At 25 February 2012 12 - 13 2
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INote 29 Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations I
3 2012
£m £m
Profit before tax 1,960 4,038
Net finance costs (Note 5} 282 235
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures and associates (Note 13) (54) (91)
Operating profit of continuing operations 2,188 4182
Qperating loss of discontinued operations (1,257) (324)
Depreciation and amortisation 1,590 1,498
Profits/losses arising on property-related items from continuing operations 210 (396)
Profits/losses ansing on property-related items from discontinued operations 239 21
Loss arising on sale of non property-related items - 4
Profit/{loss) ansing on sale of subsidianies and other investments 35 {5)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 10) 575 -
Net charge of impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets not included in property-related items 629 75
Adjustment for non-cash element of pensions charge (4) 35
Addivonal contnbution into pension scheme {180) -
Share-based payments (Note 25) 53 125
Tesco Bank non-cash items included in profit before tax 170 166
Increase in mventornes (54) (420)
Increase in development stock {40) 41
Increase in trade and other recevables (104) (139)
Increase in trade and other payables and prowisions 197 679
Tesco Bank (increase)/decrease sn loans and advances to customers (Note 17) (1,220) 150
Tesco Bank decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 359 (278)
Tesco Bank merease in customer and bank deposits and trade and other payables 487 356
{Increase)/decrease in working capital (375) 307
Cash generated from operations 3,873 5,688

The increase in warking capital Includes the impact of translating foreign currency working capital movemnents at average exchange rates rather
than year end exchange rates

Note 30 Analysis of changes in net debt

At Tesco Bank at Other Net debt At

25February 25 February Business non cash of disposal Ehminatuon 23 Februavy'

202 M2 Cashflow combinations  movements group of Tesco Bank 213

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 1,725 580 193 1 26 {13} {1,055) 1,457
Short-term Investments 1,243 - {721) - - - - 522
Joint venture lean and other receivables 359 34 10 - 73 - (42) 434
Bank and other borrowings (11,007) {576) 1,575 {0 (694) (1) 638 (10,066)
Finance lease payables (166) - 32 - (1 7 - (128)
Net dervative financial instruments 1,003 (52) 24 - 166 - 3 1172
Net debt of the disposal group 5 - - - - 7 — 12
{6,838} (14) 1113 - (430) - (428) (6,597)

= These amounts rela e to the net debt excluding Tesco Bank but induding the disposal group

Note 31 Business combinations and other acquisitions J

During the current financial year, the Group completed business combination transactions with total cash consideration of £30m, which are not
considered matenal to the Group indvidually or in aggregate
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Note 32 Commitments and contingencies j

Capital commitments
At 23 February 2013, there were cornrmutrments for capital expenditure contracted for, but not prowided for of £1,278m (2012 £1,599my), pninapally
refating 1o store development

Contingent habilities

Tesco PLC has wrevocably guaranteed the liabilities of the fellowing Insh subsidiary undertakings for the financial year ended 23 February 2013,
which undertakings have been exempted pursuant to Section 17(1) of the Companies {Amendment) Act 1986 of Ireland from the provisions of
Section 7 (other than subsecuon (1)(b)) of that Act

Monread Developments Limited, Edson Properties Limited, Edson Investments Limited, Cirrus Finance (2009) Limited, Commerctal investments
Limited, Chirac Limited, Clondalkin Propertes Lurited, Golden Island Management Services Limited, Tesco Iretand Pension Trustees Limited,
Orpingford, Tesco Trustee Company of Ireland Limited, WSC Properties Limuted, Thundridge, Pharaway Properties Lirmited, R J D Holdings, Nabola
Development Limited, PEJ Property Development Limited, Cirrus Finance Limited, Tesco Ireland Limited, Wanze Properties (Dundalk) Limited,
Valant Insurance Company Limited, Tesco Ireland Holdings Limited

For details of assets held under finance leases, which are pledged as secunty for the finance lease habilities, see Note 11

There are a number of contingent hiabikities that arise in the normal course of business which if realised are not expected to result m a matenal
lability to the Group The Group recognises provisions for habilities when it 1s more likely than not that a settlement will be required and the value
of such a payment can be rehably estimated

Tesco Bank
At 23 February 2013, Tesco Bank had commitments of formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commutments to lend, totalling £8 5bn
{2012 £74br} The amount s intended to provide an indication of the potential volume of bustness and not of the underlying credit or other nsks

The Financral Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCS") 1s the UK statutory fund of last resort for customers of authonsed financial services
nstitutions and pays compensation if a firm s unable to pay claims aganst it The FSCS has borrowed from HM Treasury to fund these compensation
costs assoctated with institutions that farled in 2008 and will receive receipts from asset sales, surplus cash flow and other recoveries from these
mstitutions sn the future The initial borrowsngs from HM Treasury are on an interest-only basis and, as from 1 Aprl 2012, this has increased from
12 month LIBOR plus 30 basis points to 12 month LIBOR plus 100 basis points The FSCS meets its cbligations by raising management expense
levies which will be capped based on hmits advised by the PRA and FCA These include amounts to cover the interest on its borrowings and
compensation levies on the industry

Each deposit-taking institution contnbutes in proportion to its share of total protected deposits As at 23 February 2013, Tesco Bank accrued £7m
(2012 £5m) inrespect of its current obligation to meet expenses levies, based on indicative costs published by the FSCS

tf the FSCS does not receive sufficient funds from the failed mstitutions to repay HM Treasury in full it will raise compensation levies At this time
115 not possible to estimate the amount or timing of any shortfa!l resulting from the cash flows receved from the fasled institutions and, accordingly,
no provision for compensation levies, which coutd be significant, has been made in these financial statements, so this element 1s treated as

a contingent hab:lity

Note 33 Capital resources I

The following table shows the composition of regulatory capital resources of Tesco Persenal Finance PLC (‘TPF), being the regulated entity, at the
balance sheet date

W03 w2
£m £m
Tier 1 capital
Sharehalders’ funds and non-controlling interests 687 661
Tier 2 capital
Qualifying subordinated debt 372 375
Other interests 25 22
50% of matenal holdings (64) (53}
Other supervisory deductions - (259)
Total reguiatory capital 1,020 746
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| Note 33 Capital resources continued j
The movement of teer 1 capital during the financial year 1s analysed as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
At beginming of the year 661 708
Share capital and share premium 45 112
Profit attributable to shareholders 158 65
Other reserves [§)] )
Ordinary dividends (105) (108)
50% of matenal holdings (11) -
Increase in intangibe assets 60 (122}
At end of the year 687 661

During the year the Group revised the caprtal disclosure of the holding in its insurance regulated associate (Tesco Underwnting Limited} This change
reduced the ter 1 capital ratio 1n the previous year to 14 15% from 15 28% There is no change in the nisk asset ratio

It 1s TPF's policy to matntain a strong capital base, to expand st as appropniate and to utilise it efficiently throughout its activities to opumise the
return to shareholders while maintaining a prudent refationship between the capital base and the underlying nisks of the business In carrying out
this policy, TPF has regard to the supervisory requirements of the PRA TPF has carned regulatory capital reserves In excess of its capital
requirements throughout the financial year

Note 34 Leasing commitments

Finance fease commitments — Group as lessee
The Group has finance leases for vanous items of plant, equiprnent, fixtures and fittings There are also a smail number of buildings which are held
under finance leases The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximate 1o their carrying value

Future mumirmum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, together with the present value of the net minimum lease
payments, are as follows

Present value of

Minrmum lease payments minmurm ease payments

2013 2012 2013 2012

Em £m £m £m

Within one year 13 39 6 32

Greater than one year but less than five years 52 58 15 20

After frve years 212 222 107 114

Total minimum lease payments 277 319 128 166
Less future finance charges {149) (153)
Present value of minimum lease payments 128 166

Analysed as

Current fingnce lease payables 6 32
Non-current finance lease payables 122 134

128 166
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I&te 34 Leasing commitments continued

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee
Future minwmum rentals payable under non-canceilable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Within one year 1,404 1,289

Greater than one year but less than five years 4,999 4,797

After five years 10,867 11,237

Total mmimum lease payments 17,270 17,323
Future mimmurn rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases after five years are analysed further as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Greater than five years but less than ten years 4,756 4,667

Greater than ten years but less than fifteen years 3,128 3,245

After fifteen years 2,983 3,325

Total mimimurm fease payments — after five years 10,867 11,237

Future mumimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating Jeases assocated with the discontinued operations in the US are excluded from
the above tables (2012 £709m) See Note 7 for further details on discontinued operations

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its retail, distnibution and office properties and other assets such
as motor vehicles The leases have varying terms, purchase options, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

The Group has lease break options on certain sale and teaseback transactions, which are exercisable if an existng option to buy back leased assets
at market value at a specified date 1s also exercised, no commitment has been included in respect of the buy-back option as the option s at the
Group's discretion The Group 1s not obhged to pay lease rentals after that date, therefore mirumum lease payments exclude those falling after the
buy-back date

Operating lease commitments with joint ventures and associates

Since 1988 the Group has entered into several joint ventures and sold and Jeased back properties to and from these joint ventures in addition,

the Group also entered into property sale and leaseback transactions with an associate in this financial year The terms of these sale and leasebacks
vary, however, commeon factors include the sale of the properties to the joint venture at market value, options within the lease for the Group to
repurchase the properties at market value, market rent reviews, and 20 to 30 full-year lease terms The Group reviews the substance as well as the
form of the arrangements when determining the classification of leases as operating or finance All of the leases under these arrangements are
operating leases

Operating lease receivables — Group as lessor
The Group both rents out its properties and also sublets varraus leased buildings under operating leases At the balance sheet date, the following
future mmimum lease payments are contractually recevable from tenants

2013 2012

£m £m

Withmn one year 258 241
Greater than one year but less than five years 348 398
After five years 260 297
Total minimum lease recewables 366 936
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Tesco PLC — Parent Company balance sheet

23 February 25 February
2013 2012
note$ £m m
Non-current assets
Invesiments 5 14,540 13,675
Dervative financial instruments 10 1,913 1,706
16,453 15,381
Current assets
Dernwative financial mstruments 10 198 19
Debtors [ 12,017 8,807
Current asset Investments 7 522 1,289
Cash and cash equivalents 5 -
12,742 10,115
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings 9 (292) {1,437)
Derivative financial instruments 10 (91) (90)
Other creditors [ (8,218) (5,708)
(8,601) {7,235)
Net current assets 4,141 2,880
Total assets less current habthties 20,594 18,261
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings ] (9,436} (9,433)
Derwative frnancial instruments 10 {694) {620)
(10,130)  {(10,053)
Nat assets 10,464 8,208
Capital and reserves
Called up share capnal 13 403 402
Share premum 14 5,020 4,964
Profit and loss reserve 14 5,041 2,842
Total equity 10,464 8,208

The notes on pages 127 1o 134 form part of these financial statements

Philip Clarke ' .
Laurie Mcllwee \ F’ /é\

Directors
The Parent Company financial statements on pages 126 to 134 were ayfKonised for 1ssue b
approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 28 June 2013

Tesco PLC
Reguistered number 00445790

e Directors on 1 May 2013 and are subject to the
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements

u\lote 1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Parent Company financal statements have been prepared on

a going concern basis using the histonical cost convention modified
for the revaluation of certain financial instruments and in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles {'UK GAAP') and the
Companies Act 2006

The financial year represents the 52 weeks to 23 February 2013
{prior finanaial year 52 weeks to 25 February 2012)

A surmmary of the Company's significant accounting policies 1s set
out below

Exemptions

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption avatable under
Secuon 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not presented a Profit
and Loss Account for the Company alone

The Company has taken advantage of the FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments
Disclosures’, exemption and not provided denvative financial instrument
disclosures of the Company alone

The Company has also taken advantage of the exemption from
prepanng a Cash Flow Statermnent under the terms of FRS 1 'Cash Flow
Statement' The cash flows of the Company are included in the Tesco
Group finanaal statements

The Company is also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Parties’
from disclosing related party transactions with entities that are part of
the Tesco Group

Current asset investments

Current asset investments relate to money market deposits which are
recogrsed imitially at farr value, and subsequently at amortised cost
Alhncome from these investrnents 1s included in the Profit and Loss
Account as interest recevable and similar income

Investments in subsidiarles and joint ventures
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated at cost less,
where appropriate, provisions for imparrment

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilities that are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Pounds Sterling at the exchange rates prevailing
at the balance sheet date of the financal year

Share-based payments

The fair value of employee share option plans is calculated at the grant
date using the Black-Scholes mode! The resulting cost 1s charged to the
Profit and Loss Account over the vesting penod The value of the charge

15 adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of vesting

Where the Company awards shares or options to employees of subsidiary
entities, this is treated as a capital contnbution

Financial Instruments

Fiancial assets and financial labihves are recogrised on the Company's
Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the mnstrurnent

Debtors

Debtors are recogmised imitialty at farr value, and subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision
for impairment

Financial habihities and equity mstruments

Finangial kabiities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity
instrument 1s any contract that geves a residual interest in the assets

of the Company after deducting all of its labihties Equity tnstruments
1ssued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds recewved, net

of directissue costs

Borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are initially recognised at

the value of the amount received, net of attributable transaction costs
Subseguent to rutial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any differences between cost and redemption
value being recogrused in the Company Profit and Loss Account over
the penod of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

Other creditors
QOther creditors are recegrused initially at fair value, and subsequently
atamortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses denvatwe financal instruments to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks ansing from
operating, financing and investing activities The Company does not
hold or 1ssue dervative financial instruments for trading purposes

Derwative fimancial instruments are recogrised and stated at far value
Where derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or
losses on remeasurement are iImmediately recognised in the Company
Profit and Loss Account Where dervatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship and the items being hedged

in order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Company is required to
document from inception, the relationship between the item being
hedged and the hedging instrument The Company is also required to
document and dermonstrate an assessment of the relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging mstrument, which shows that the
hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis This effectiveness
testing 1s performed at each reporting date to ensure that the hedge
rermamns highly effecuive

Dervative financial instruments with matunty dates of more than one
year from the balance sheet date are disclosed as faling due after more
than one year
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|Note 1 Accounting policies continued

Fair value hedging

Denvatve financal instruments are classified as fawr value hedges when
they hedge the Company's exposure to changes in the fair value of

a recognised asset or habuhity Changes in the fair value of denvatives
that are designated and quabfy as fair value hedges are recorded m the
Company Profit and Loss Account, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged jtem that 1s attributable to the hedged nsk

Cash flow hedging

Dervative financral instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when
they hedge the Company's expasure to vanability m cash flows that are
either attnibutable to a particular nsk asscaated with a recognised asset
or liability, or a hughly probable forecasted transaction

The effective element of any gain or loss from remeasuning the
derivative instrument 15 recognised directly m equity

The associated cumulative gain or loss 1s removed from equity and
recognmised in the Company Profit and Loss Account in the same penod
durning which the hedged transaction affects the Company Profit and
Loss Account The classificauon of the effective portion when recognised
in the Company Profit and Loss Account 15 the same as the classification
of the hedged transaction Any element of the remeasurement ¢ritena
of the derivative instrument which does not meet the critena for an
effective hedge 15 recogmsed immediately i the Company Profit and
Loss Account

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging nstrument
expires or 1s sold, terminated or exeraised, no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting or 15 de-designated At that point in tme, any cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 1s retained
n equity until the forecasted transaction occurs or the onginal hedged
item affects the Company Profit and Loss Account If a forecasted
hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gain or loss recognised 1 equity is transferred to the Company Profit
and Loss Account

Pensions

The Company participates in the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme and cannot
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme
Accordingly, as perrmitted by FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits', the Company
has accounted for the scheme as a defined contnbution scheme, and
the charge for the penod 15 based upon the cash contributions payable

Taxation

Corporation tax payable s provided on the taxable profit for the year,
using the 1ax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax i1s recognised in respect of all timing differences that have
onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date and would give
nse to an obhgation to pay more or less tax in the future

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that they are
recoverable They are regarded as recoverable to the extent that on the
basis of all available evidence, 1t 1s regarded as more hikely than not that
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying iming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discontinued basis at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the penods in which the trming differences
reversg, based on tax rates and 1aws that have been substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date
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Note 2 Auditor remuneration |
2013 2012
£Em £r
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company and Group financial statements tk:] 07
Note 3 Employment costs, including Directors’ remuneration
2013 2012
£m £m
Wages and satanes 20 16
Social security costs 2 2
Pension costs 2 1
Share-based payment expense™ 6 7
30 26
* The wages and salaries expense mchrdes a recharge from Tesco Stores Limited for Board related funcuons
** The share-based payment expense includes an amount of £3m relating to habilives of Tesco Japan that were not transferred to the acgunng cornpany on disposal
The average number of employees {all Directors of the Company) during the financial year was 13 (2012 15)
The Schedule VI requirernents for Directors' remuneration are mcluded withan the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 44 to 66
I Note 4 Dividends I
For details of dwvidends see Note 8 in the Group financial staterments
[ Note 5 investments I
Shares
n Group Sharesin
undertakings joint ventures Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 25 February 2012 14,194 16 14,210
Additions 1,449 - 1,449
Disposals {45) - (45}
At 23 February 2013 15,598 16 15,614
Impairment
At 25 February 2012 535 ~ 535
Impairment 539 - 539
At 23 February 2013 1,074 - 1,074
Net carrying value
At 23 February 2013 14,524 16 14,540
At 25 February 2012 13,659 16 13,675

For a hst of the Company’s principal operating subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures see Note 13 i the Group financial statements
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|Note 6 Debtors

2013 2012

£m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 11,823 8,611
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates’ 173 177
Other debtors 17 15
Deferred tax asset™ 4 4
12,017 8,807

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are either interest-beanng or non interest-beanng depending on the type and duration of debtor relationship

= Of the amounts owed by joint ventures and associates, £112m (2012 £117m) 1s due after more than one year
** The deferred tax asset recogrised by the Company, and the movements thereon, duning the financal year are as follows

Financial  Other trming

mstruments differences Total
£m £m £m
At 25 February 2012 6 2 4
Charge to the Profit and Loss Account for the year (1) 1 —
At 23 February 2013 5 (1) 4

lNote 7 Current asset investments
2013 2012
£fm £m
Short-term investments 522 1,243
Short-term deposits and cash at bank - 46
522 1,289

Note 8 Other creditors
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year

Other tax and social secunity 1 2
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 8,167 5,640
Other liabilities 47 66
Accruals and deferred iIncome 3 -
8,218 5,708

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are either interest-bearing or non interest-bearing depending on the type and duration of creditor relationship
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Note 9 Borrowings

Watonity Fiakd WAL
Par volue year £m £m
Barnk loans and overdrafts - ~ 58 123
Loans from jeint ventures - - 10 10
5625% MTN €1,500m 2012 - 1,304
5% MTN £600m 2014 642 619
2% USD Bond $500m 2014 328 317
5125% MTN €600m 2015 566 526
4% RPIMTN® £290m 2016 295 288
5 875% MTN €1,039m 2016 1,071 1,042
2 7% USD Bond $500m 2017 328 318
5 5% USD Bond $850m 2017 674 659
3 375% MTN £€750m 2018 653 638
5 5% MTN £350m 2019 352 352
6125% MTN £900m 2022 948 892
5% MTN £389m 2023 404 401
3322% LPIMTN™ £296m 2025 299 290
0% MTN £200m 2029 253 251
5 5% MTN £200m 2033 251 249
1982% RPIMTN! £247m 2036 248 242
615% USD Bond $1,150m 2037 911 896
4 875% MTN £173m 2042 174 174
5125% MTN €600m 2047 641 635
5 2% MTN £279m 2057 274 274
Other MTNs - - 122 124
Qther loans - - 224 246
9,728 10,870
* The 4% RPI MTN 15 redeemable at par, including indexation for increases in the RPl over the Ife of the MTN
** The 3 322% LPI MTN 1s redeemable at par, including indexa’icn for mcreases in che RPIover the fe of the MTN The maximum indexation of the principatin any one year1s 5%
with a minimum of 0%
t The1982% RPIMTN is redeemable at par including indexaticn for increases in the RP) over the life of the MTN
2003 2012
£fm £m
Repayment analysis
Amounts falling due within one year 292 1,457
292 1,437
Amounts falling due after more than one yvear
Amounts falling due between one and two years 1,093 1,306
Amounts falling due between two and five years 2,934 1,856
Amounts falling due after more than five years 5,409 6,271
9,436 9,433
9,728 10,870
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|Note 10 Dervative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments has been disclosed n the Company’s Balance Sheet as

2013 2012
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£m £m £m fm
Current 198 (91) 19 [€10)]
Non-current 1,913 {694) 1,706 (620)
Total 2,11 (785) 1,725 {710)
2013 2012
Asset Liabiiity Asset Liabillty
Famvahie Notronal Far vaive Nouonal Fau value Nouonal Faw value Nouonal
£m £m £fm £fm £m £m £m fm
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps and simular instruments 103 1,065 - - 81 1,065 - -
Cross currency swaps 890 2,749 (34) 249 818 2,686 {8) 269
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps and similar mstruments - - {126) 400 - - (132) 400
Cross currency swaps 237 642 {31) 531 233 304 41) 988
Index-linked swaps 80 833 - - 30 809 - -
Forward foreign currency contracts - 93 {1) 72 1 285 (4) 616
Denwvatives not in a formal hedge
relationship’
Forward foreign currency contracts - - - - - - {7 969
Derivatives in cash flow hedge and not
in a formal relationship™”
Cross currency swaps - - (10} 325 - - U] 318
Derivatives not in a formal hedge relationship
Index-linked swaps 603 3,089 {530) 3,589 539 3,089 (468) 3,089
Forward foreign currency contracts 198 2,630 (53) 919 23 782 (49) 1,034
Total 2,111 11,101 (785) 6,085 1,725 9,020 {710) 7,683

* These are designated as net investment hedges at Group jevel but for PLC fmancial statements are classified as ‘not in a formal hedge relaticnship’

** These are designated as cash flow hedges and net investment hedges at G, oup level but For PLC financeal s atements ate classfied as cash flow hedges and ‘nat in a formal

hedge relananship

Note 11 Share-based payments

The Company's equity-settled share-based payment schemes comprise vanous share schemes destgned to reward Executive Directors For further
information on these schemes, including the valuation models and assurnptions used, see Note 25 in the Group financial staterments

Share option schemes

The number of options and WAEP of share option schemes relating to the Company employees are

Sawvings related Approved Unapproved Nl cost

Shate Opuion Scheme Share Dptian Scheme Share Opton Scheme share oprians

For the year ended 23 February 2013 Options WAEP Optiony WAEP Options WAEP Qptions WAEP

Qutstanding at 25 February 2012 25,912 355 62 64,330 37306 14,368,570 38559 16,030,275 000

Granted 3,189 28200 - - - - 3,606,494 000

Forferted (11,711) 348 94 (7,146) 419 80 (379,704) 41980  (2,991,480) 000

Exerased - - - - - - (2,327,513) 000

Outstanding at 23 February 2013 17,390 346 61 57,184 36722 13,988,866 38466 14,317,776 000

Exercisable as at 23 February 2013 3,276 41000 28,600 31468 11,218,026 37598 5,630,056 000

31275t 27510

Exerase price range {pence) - 41000 - 318 60 - 47375 - 000
Woeighted average remaining

contractual hfe (years) — 020 - 251 - 474 — 524
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Note 11 Share-based payments continued

Sawvings-related Approved Unapproved Ml cost
Share Opuon Scheme Share Ophon Scheme $hare Option Scheme share options
For the year ended 25 February 2012 Cpuions WAEP Opaons WAEP QOgptions WAEP Opuons WAEP
Qutsianding at 26 February 2011 33,834 342 93 64,330 37306 14,368,570 38559 12,399,127 0090
Grarted 4,944 364 00 - - - - 4,742,273 G oo
Forferted {5,028) 343 54 - - — — (603,508} 000
Exercised (7,838) 313 89 - - - - (507,617) 000
Qutstanding at 25 February 2012 25,912 355 62 64,330 37306 14,368,570 38559 16,030,275 000
Exercisable as at 25 February 2012 - - 28,600 314 68 7,413,586 395 27 9,468,818 000
31275 31275
Exercise price range {pence) — — - to31860 — 1047375 - 000
Weighted average remaining
contractual ife (years) - - - 351 — 498 - 612
Share bonus schemes
The number and WAFV of share bonuses awarded dunng the financial year relating to the Company employees are
2013 2012
Shares WAFY Shares WAFYV
number pence number pence
Shares in Success - - 5,045 416 26
Executive Incentive Scheme 37424 308 25 195,497 41175
Performance Share Plan 649,113 3710 500,615 40709

\ Note 12 Pensions

The total cost of the pension scheme to the Company was £1 5m (2012 £1 2m) Further disclosure relating to the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme

can be found in Note 26 of the Group financal statements

|Note 13 Called up share capital

2013 2012

Ordinary shares of 5p each Ordmary shares of 5p each

Number £m Number fm

Allotted, called up and fully parg

At beginming of the year 8,031,812,445 402 8,046,468,092 402
Share options 18,632,251 1 23,490,825 1
Share bonus awards 3,610,234 - 32,656,313 2
Shares purchased for cancetlation - — (70,802,785) {3
At end of the year 8,054,054,930 403 8,031,812,445 402

Durning the financial year, 19 million (2012 23 nullion} ordinary shares of 5p each were 1ssued in relation to share options for an aggregate

consideration of £57m (2012 £69m)

Duning the financial year, 4 milion (2012 33 million) shares of 5p each were issued 1n relatron to share bonus awards for an aggregate consideration

of £0 2m (2012 £1 6m)

Between 24 February 2013 and 12 Apnil 2013 options over 1,288,429 ordinary shares were exerased under the terms of the Savings-related Share
Option Scheme (1981) and the Insh Savmags-related Share Options Scheme {2000) Between 24 February 2013 and 12 April 2013 optrons over
2,741,490 ordinary shares have been exercised under the terms of the Executive Share Option Schemes (1994 ang 1996) and the Discretionary

Share Gption Plan {2004)

As at 23 February 2013, the Directors were authonsed to purchase up to a maximum in aggregate of 804 0 nulhon (2012 BO3 6 milion) ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are enttiled to receve dividends as declared from time to ime and are entitled to one vote per share at general

meetings of the Company
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\E)te 14 Reserves

2013 2012
fm £m

Share premium
At beginning of the year 4,964 4,896
Prermium on ssue of shares less costs 56 68
At end of the year 5,020 4,964
Profit and loss reserve
At beginning of the year 2,842 2,621
Share-based payments 61 M
Shares purchased for cancellation ~ profit and loss reserve - (290)
Shares purchased for cancellation — capital redemption reserve - 3
Dwvidends authonsed in the year (1,184) (1,180)
Net movement on cash flow hedges 2 79
Profit after tax for the year 3,320 1,498

At end of the year 5,041 2,842




Independent auditors’ report

We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of Tesco PLC
for the financial year ended 23 February 2013 which compnse the Parent
Company balance sheet and the refated notes The financial reporting
framewaork that has been applied in therr preparation is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accountuing Practice)

Respective responsibihities of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilives set
out on page 70, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give 3 true and fair view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an
opmnion on the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Thaose standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethucal Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimions, has been prepared for and only for
the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom thus report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtairing ewidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staterents sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
rmusstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting pohcies are appropriate to
the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all
the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report
and Financial Statements to identify matenal inconsistencres

with the audited financial statements H we become aware

of any apparent matenal misstatements or incensistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinton the Parent Company financial statements

* gve a true and farr view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
23 February 2013,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006
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to the members of Tesco PLC

QOpinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
I our opinion

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparmes Act 2006,
and

¢ the nformation given in the Report of the directors for the financial
year ended 23 February 2013 for which the Parent Company financial
statements are prepared s consistent with the Parent Company
financial staterments

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to reportin respect of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o report to you if, i our opmion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

+ the Parent Company financial staternents and the part of the
Durectors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are nat in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certam disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speaffied by law are not
made, or

+ we have not received all the infermation and explanations we require
forour audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of
Tesco PLC for the fingnual year ended 23 February 2013

Mark Gill (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London r
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Five year record

2009 2010 2007 2012' 2013"
Financial statistics (Em)
Sales including VAT excluding IFRIC 13 59,426 62,537 67,074 71,402 72,363
Revenue excluding IFRIC 13
UK 38,028 39,104 40,766 42,803 43,579
Rest of Europe 8,862 8,724 49,192 9,866 9,319
Asia 7,068 8,465 9,802 10,828 11,479
s 206 349 495 - -
Tesco Bank 163 860 919 1,044 1,021
Group revenue excluding IFRIC 13 54,327 57,502 61,174 54,541 65,398
Trading profit
UK 2,309 2,413 2,504 2,478 2,272
Rest of Europe 496 474 527 529 329
Asia 355 440 605 737 661
us (142) (165) {t86) - -
Tesco Bank 68 250 264 225 191
Group trading profit 3,086 3,412 3,714 3,969 3,453
Cperating profit® 3,169 3,457 3,917 4182 2,188
Operating profit margin® 58% 6 0% 6 4% 6 5% 3 3%
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures and associates 110 33 57 91 54
Net finance costs (362) 314) (333 {235) (282)
Profit before tax 2,917 3,176 3,641 4,038 1,960
Taxation (779) (840) (864) (874 679
Profit for the year from continuing operations 2,138 2,336 2,777 3,164 1,386
Discontinued operations - - (106} (350) {1,266)
Profit for the period 2,138 2,336 2,671 2,814 120
Attnbutable to
QOwners of the parent 2,133 2,327 2,655 2,806 124
Non-controlling interests 5 9 16 8 (4
Underlying profit before tax — continuing operations* 3,124 3,395 3,853 4,149 3,549
Other financial statistics
Diluted earnings per share — continuing operattons 26 96p 2919p 34 25p 39 23p 17 30p
Underlying diluted earnings per share — continuing operations 28 87p 3166p 36 26p 40 31p 3597p
Dmndend per share’ 1196p 13 05p 14 46p 14 76p 14 76p
Return on capital employed (‘ROCE")® 12 8%7 12 1% 12 9%:* 14 7% 12 7%
Total sharehaolder return® 8 0% 95% 67% 3 00% 21%
Net debt (£m) 9,600 7929 6,790 6,838 6,597
Enterpnise value (£ém)® 35907 41,442 39,462 32,324 36,578
Group retail statistics
Nurmber of stores 43321 4,836" 5,265 6,049 6,784
Total sales area — 000 sq ft" 88,5561 95,2311 103,172 110,563 116,236
Average employees 468,508 472,094 488,347 514,615 537,784
Average full-time equivalent employees 364,015 366,413 382,049 401,791 416,441
UK retail statistics
Number of stores 2,306 2,507 2,715 2,979 3,146
Total sales area — 000 sq it 32,389 34,237 36,722 39,082 40,495
Average full-ime equivalent employges 194,420 196,604 200,966 205,852 213,304
Revenue per employee — £ 195,597 198,897 202,850 207,93 204,303
Weekly sales per sq f1 - £ 2534 2522 2495 24 86 2415

re presented 1o be consntent wath 2013 Pnior years have not been re presented
Excludes fapan

See giossa y for defin oons
Dnadend per share refating to the mtenm and proposed final dadend

- RV I SV N

creditor less net asseis held for resale

7 Excluding acquisition of Tesco Bank and Homever, India start up costs, and after adjusting for assets held for sale Calulated on g 52 week basis ROCE for 2009 15 12 8%

B Includes Japan

9 Market copitatisation plus net debt
18includes franchise stores but excludes Japan
11 Store sizes exclude lobby and restaurant areas
12 Restated 10 include Dobbes siores

Operatmg profit ircludes restructuning costs and piofit ansing on sale of foed assets Operating margin is based upon revenue excludng IFRIC 13

13 Restated o include Dobbies stores and account for a space restatement of 109 000 sq f1 driven by a comprehensive remeasurement of One Stop stores
14 Based on average number of full ume equivalent emplayees m the LK and revenue excluding IFRIC 13

15 Based on weighted average sales area and average weekly sales, excluding Dobbies stores

Durning the fimancial year, the Group decided 10 sellits operations in the US. Accordmgly, these operations have been treated as discontinued m 2013 The 2012 statistics have been

Returm on capnal employed 15 profit before mterest and tax kess tax at the eFectrve rate of tax dnded by the calcudated average of apereng and closmg net assets plus net debt plus dovndend



Financial calendar

Financial year end 2012/13

23 February 2013

Final ex-dividend date 24 Apnl 2013
Record date 26 Apnl 2013
Q1 Intenm Management Statement 5 June 2013
Annual General Meeting 28 June 2013
Final dvidend payment date 5 July 2013
Half-year end 201314 24 August 2013

Interim Results

2 October 2013

Q3 Interim Management Statement

4 December 2013
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22 February 2014

Please note that dates are provisional and subject to change

Glossary

Capttal expenditure the additions to property, plant and equipment,
Investment property and intangible assets (excluding assets acquired
under business combinations}

Capex % of sales capital expenditure as defined above, dwided by
Group sales including VAT and excluding {FRIC 13

Constant tax rate using the prior year's effective tax rate

EBITDAR cperating profit before depreciation, amertisation, rent
and movements in imparrments of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets

Fixed charge cover the ratio of EBITDAR {excluding Tesco Bank
EBITDAR) divided by financing costs (net interest excluding 1AS 32 and
39 impacts and pension finance costs) plus operating lease expenses

Geaning net debt dwvided by total equity
Net indebtedness the ratio of adjusted net debt (net debt plus

pension deficit and the present value of lease obligations) dvided
by EBITDAR (excluding Tesco Bank EBITDAR)

Return on capital employed profit before interest and tax less tax

at the effective rate of tax divided by the calculated average of opeming
and closing net assets plus net debt plus dvidend creditor less net assets
held for resale

Total shareholder return the notional return from a share, measured
as the percentage change in the share pnice, ptus the dividends pad
with the gross dividends reinvested in Tesco shares This 1s measured
over esther a five-year or a one-year penod For the latler, TSR represents
the movement for the current financial year

Underlying diluted earnings per share underlytng profit less tax
at the effective tax rate and rminonty interest divided by the diluted
weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year

Underlying profit before tax underlying profit before tax excludes

the impact of nagn-cash elements of IAS 17, 19, 32 and 39 (principally

the impact of annual uphfts in rents and rent-free penods, pension costs,
and the marking to market of financial Instruments), the amortisation
charge on intangible assets arising on acquisition and acquisition costs,
and the non-cash impact of IFRIC 13 It also excludes restructurng and
other one-off costs
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